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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)

| ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 FOR THE FISCAL YE AR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2014

OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
Commission File Number: 1-34354

ALTISOURCE PORTFOLIO SOLUTIONS S.A.

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its Gnart
Luxembourg 98-0554932

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation oganization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)
40, avenue Monterey
L-2163 Luxembourg
Grand Duchy of Luxembourg
(352) 24 69 79 00
(Address and telephone number, including area aifdegistrant’s principal executive offices)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(thefct:

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered
Common Stock, $1.00 par value NASDAQ Global Select Market
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(ghefAct:
None

Indicate by check mark if the Registrant is a vikelbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405%eoBéturities Act. YeRl No O
Indicate by check mark if the Registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ortecl5(d) of the Act. YeEl No ™

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant & filed all reports required to be filed by secti8 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of4l88ring the preceding 12 months (or for such h
period that the registrant was required to filehsteports), and (2) has been subject to such filagirements for the past 90 days. ¥&s NoO

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lidsnitted electronically and posted on its corpoi&b site, if any, every Interactive Data File reed to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rubeod
Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during pheceding 12 months (or for such shorter pefiatithe registrant was required to submit and posh files). Ye® NoO

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquéierrs pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (§2®% of this chapter) is not contained herein aildnet be contained, to the best of the Registsant
knowledge, in the definitive proxy or informatiotatements incorporated by reference in Part Ithaf Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 1@K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlezge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, m-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting
company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchangg: A

Large accelerated filé&d Accelerated filed

Non-accelerated filelEl (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting compariy
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exgje Act). Yedl NoM™

The aggregate market value of the voting stock bgldonaffiliates of the registrant as of June 30, 2014 %4,824,344,937 based on the closing share psiceiaed on the NASDAQ Global Market
that day and the assumption that all directorsexaatutive officers of the Company, and their fagsiliare affiliates. This determination of affilistatus is not necessarily a conclusive deterngndtr an

other purpose.
As of February 20, 2015 , there were 20,132,326tanting shares of the registrant’s shares of i@alehterest (excluding 5,280,422 shares heltt@ssury stock).
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the registrant’s Definitive Proxy Staent to be filed subsequent to the date hereof thi¢hSecurities and Exchange Commission pursuaRegulation 14A in connection with the registrant’
Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May ZL5 are incorporated by reference into Parbilthis Report. Such Definitive Proxy Statementlwi filed with the Securities and Excha
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K and certain infotioia incorporated herein by reference contain foradooking statements within the s
harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigat Reform Act of 1995. These statements may riedatamong other things, future event
our future performance or financial condition. Werduch as “anticipate,” “intend,” “expect,” “may,”“could,” “should,” “would,” “plan,”
“estimate,” “believe,” “predict,” “potential,” or “ continue” or the negative of these terms and comparable teiogy are intended to ident
such forward-looking statements. Forwdobking statements are not guarantees of futuréoperance and involve a number of assumpt
risks and uncertainties that could cause actualltssto differ materially. Important factors thabwuld cause actual results to differ materi
from those suggested by the forw-looking statements include, but are not limitedth® risks discussed in Item 1A of Part | “Riskcteas.”
We caution you not to place undue reliance on tli@seard{ooking statements which reflect our view only fithe date of this report. We ¢
under no obligation (and expressly disclaim anyigdilon) to update or alter any forwandoking statements contained herein to reflect
change in our expectations with regard thereto lnsirege in events, conditions or circumstances omlwvany such statement is based.

PART |

Except as otherwise indicated or unless the comemires otherwise“Altisource,” “we,” “us,” “our” and the “Company” refer to Altisourc
Portfolio Solutions S.A., a Luxembourg société gnua or public limited company, and its wh-owned subsidiaries.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

The Company

Altisource®is a premier marketplace and transaction soluosider for the real estate, mortgage and consulebt industries offering bc
distribution and content. We leverage proprietargibess process, vendor and electronic paymentgearent software and behavioral scie
based analytics to improve outcomes for marketptectcipants.

We are publicly traded on the NASDAQ Global Seldetrket under the symbol “ASPS.” We are incorporatader the laws of Luxembourg.
2014 Highlights
Our 2014 highlights include:

* Recognized revenue of $1,078.9 million , @4(ncrease compared to the year ended Decemb2033

» Recognized service revenue of $938.7 millio2&6 increase compared to the year ended Decembg033

* Recognized diluted earnings per share of $56%90% increase compared to the year ended Decembg033

» Generated cash flows from operations of $197lkom, a 6%increase compared to the year ended December 33;

e The average number of loans serviced by Ocwaarfial Corporation and its subsidiaries (“Ocwenri) REALServicing totale@.2
million , a 91% increase compared to the year efsmémber 31, 2013;

e« On November 21, 2014, we acquired certain assetisassumed certain liabilities of Owners Advaetdd C (“Owners.com”),a
leading self-directed online real estate marketpléer an initial purchase price of $19.8 milliplus contingent earn out considera
of up to an additional $7.0 million over two yeasabject to Owners.com achieving annual performaagets;

e On September 12, 2014, we completed the acquisitiarertain assets and assumed certain liabildfdglortgage Builder Softwar
Inc. (“Mortgage Builder”), a provider of mortgageah origination and servicing software systemsafomitial purchase price &15.7
million plus contingent earn out consideration @f 1o an additional $7.0 milliomver three years, subject to Mortgage Bu
achieving annual performance targets; and

e« On August 1, 2014, we amended our senior sederatloan agreement and increased our borrowing2b0.0 million.

Reportable Segments
We classify our businesses into the following thmegortable segments:

Mortgage Service: Provides services that span the mortgage andestate lifecycle and are typically outsourced bgnl servicers, loi
originators, investors and other sellers of sidgiaily homes. We provide most of these servicaemarily for loan portfolios
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serviced by Ocwen. We also have longstanding oeiakiips with commercial banks, insurance compaaiesmortgage bankers. Within
Mortgage Services segment, we provide the follovéeryices:

Asset managementAsset management services principally include ptgppreservation, property inspection, real estateec
(“REQ”) asset management, the Hulfzand Owners.corficonsumer real estate portals and real estate lagéeservices. We also prov
property management, lease management and rernovasinagement services for single family rental prigs.

Insurance services Insurance services include an array of insurasemwices including présreclosure, REO and refinance 1
searches, title insurance agency services, settteamel escrow services and loss draft claims psitgsPrior to the November 11, 2(
discontinuation, we provided insurance program rgameent and insurance brokerage services for REOlemker placed insurar
companies.

Residential property valuationResidential property valuation services principafiglude traditional appraisal products through
licensed appraisal management company and alteenatiluation products, some of which are through wetwork of real esta
professionals. We generally provide these senfimeresidential loan servicers, residential lenderd investors in single family homes.

Default management serviceBefault management services principally includiee€losure trustee services for loan servicersnamd
legal processing and related services for and utheéesupervision of foreclosure, bankruptcy andtéwm attorneys.

Origination management servicegOrigination management services principally inclidertgage Partnership of America, L.L
(“MPA™ and our contract underwriting and quality controsinesses. MPA serves as the manager of Best PaMioetgage Cooperativ
Inc., which is referred to as the Lenders Oiortgage Cooperative (“Lenders Oned)national alliance of independent mortgage bal
that provides its members with education and tnginalong with revenue enhancing, cost reducing aratket share expandi
opportunities. We provide other origination relasadvices in the residential property valuationifess and insurance services busine
In September 2014, we launched a new cooperatiest Bartners Mortgage Brokers Cooperative, Incichwviis referred to as t
Wholesale Oné’ Mortgage Cooperative (“Wholesale OnefY)r the wholesale mortgage industry. Wholesale @mwides a platform f
mortgage brokers, wholesale lenders and relatedorerio provide quality loans to U.S. consumergonatide. The new cooperative v
assist mortgage brokers and other third party waigirs with tools to improve their businesses.

Financial Service: Provides collection and customer relationship agament services primarily to debt originators sexvicers (e.g., cret
card, auto lending, retail credit and mortgage) dhredutility, insurance and hotel industries. Witlihe Financial Services segment, we prc
the following services:

Asset recovery managementAsset recovery management principally includestpbargesff debt collection services on
contingency fee basis.

Customer relationship managemen€ustomer relationship management principally inekid¢ustomer care, technical support
early stage collections services as well as insigraall center services and administrative support.

Technology ServicesComprises our REALSUIté of software applications, Equator, LLC (“Equatosftware applications, Mortgage Buil:
® software applications and our information techngl@¢dT”) infrastructure management services. We currentbyide our IT infrastructu
management services to Ocwen, Home Loan ServicoigtiBns, Ltd. (“HLSS”), Altisource Residential Guoration (“Residential”)anc
Altisource Asset Management Corporation (“AAMCthrough managed services agreements, and our séigenents in a shared serv
model. Brief descriptions of the key REALSuite, Btpr®and Mortgage Builder software solutions are below:

The REALSuite platform provides a fully integratedt of software applications and technologies thahage the end-tenc
lifecycle for residential and commercial mortgagar servicing including the automated managemeahpagment of a distributed netwi
of vendors.

REALServicing® - An enterprise residential mortgage loan servicitajfgrm that offers an efficient and effect
platform for loan servicing including default adnsimation. This technology solution features autmdawvorkflows and robu
reporting capabilities. The solution spans the Isanvicing lifecycle from loan boarding to satigfan
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including all collections, payment processing amegorting. We also offer the REALSynerdyenterprise commercial lo
servicing system.

REALResolutiori’ - A technology platform that provides servicers wathautomated default management and home ret
solution for delinquent and defaulted loans.

REALTrans® - A patented electronic businesskosiness exchange that automates and simplifiedoveselection, orderin
tracking and fulfilling of vendor provided servicpsincipally related to real estate and mortgageketplaces. This technolo
solution, whether accessed through the web orriated into a servicing system, connects to a mpl&es of services throug}
single platform and delivers an efficient methodrfanaging a large scale network of vendors.

REALRemif - A patented electronic invoicing and payment systieat provides vendors with the ability to submitadices
electronically, provides servicers with the ability automatically adjudicate invoices accordingctimpliance rules and 1
electronic payments to be delivered after revied approval.

REALDoc® - An automated document management platform thatistsnef three primary modules: REALDoc Capt
which converts document images into processable, dadexes documents and provides customizable fluark based on da
attributes; REALDoc Correspondence, which providesalable correspondence creation, managemerledindry platform; an
REALDoc Vault, which provides a scalable and distted storage platform and secure document viewer.

REALAnalytics” - A software platform that incorporates econometrimdels and behavioral economics to assist servin
various aspects of servicing, including determoratf loss mitigation options for decision-makingthe servicer.

Equator- Includes the EQ Workstatidh EQ Marketplac€, EQ Midsource and EQ Portal' platforms and can be used separate
together as an end-to-end solution. EQ Workstagtimvides comprehensive, enddod workflow and transaction services to managk
estate and foreclosure related activities. EQ Mai&ee provides a coordinated means of purchaswayiaty of real estate services fr
vendors including real estate brokerage, titlesiolg, inspection and valuation. EQ Midsource allassrs of EQ Workstation to outsot
all or specific components of real estate relattities. EQ Portal provides realtors direct asctsprocess real estate transactions
secure exchange of data and documents along veiltorenarketing, training and certification.

Mortgage Builder- Includes the ArchitecP , Surveyance® , Colonnade® and LoanXEngin€" technologies, which are softw:
solutions for mortgage banks, community banks, ittgdons and other financial institutions. The Aitect platform is a next generat
all-inclusive origination platform available in the atb that manages loans from prequalification throingérim servicing and deliver
The Surveyance platform is a mobile originationusoh that provides originators with the ability $ervice their clients remotely. T
Colonnade platform is a comprehensive loan sergisolution and the LoanXEngine platform providestomer relationship managem
and product pricing and eligibility solutions.

Corporate Items and Eliminationdncludes interest expense and costs relatedrfmocate support functions including executive, fioe, lega
compliance, human resources, vendor managemeit,arid operational effectiveness and marketing, aisg includes eliminations
transactions between the reportable segments. €deplbems and Eliminations also include the cégaailities until approximately 40% of tl
facilities are occupied by the business unit(syylath time costs are charged to the businesssjinit(

We classify revenue in three categories: servigemee, revenue from reimbursable expenses andowinelling interests. In evaluating ¢
performance, we focus on service revenue. Sergigenue consists of amounts attributable to oubtesed services. Reimbursable expe
and non-controlling interests are palsssugh items for which we earn no margin. Reimbhbks expenses consist of amounts we incur on k
of our customers in performing our fee-based sesyibut we pass such costs directly on to our m&t®without any additional markup. Non-
controlling interests represent the earnings ofdees One, a consolidated entity not owned by Altise, and are included in revenue
reduced from net income to arrive at net incomebatiable to Altisource.
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Separation of the Residential Asset Businesses

On December 21, 2012, we completed the spin-offaraf wholly-owned subsidiaries, Residential and AAMC, into sefgapublicly trade
companies (the “Separation of the Residential ABsisinesses”). Residentialcommon stock is listed on the New York Stock Exade unde
the symbol “RESI,” and AAMC’s common stock is lidten the New York Stock Exchange’s NYSE MKT undee symbol “AAMC.” On
December 24, 2012, we distributed all of the shafdResidential common stock and AAMC common sttackur shareholders of record a:
December 17, 2012. Residential is focused on aioguand managing single family rental propertiesaoguiring sub-performing and non-
performing residential mortgage loans as well aglsifamily homes at or following the foreclosuedesthroughout the United States. AAI
provides asset management and certain corporatrmpmnce services to Residential. Residential antMB8Aare further described in Item 7
Part Il, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiahdition and Results of Operatioris.

Customers

Our customers include one of the largest sub-préeevicers in the United States, a government-spedsenterprise (“GSE”)utility
companies, commercial banks, servicers, investoostgage bankers and financial services compa@eslargest customer, Ocwen, accou
for 60% of our total revenue in 2014.

Related party revenue primarily consists of reveaamed directly from Ocwen and revenue earned tl@rioans serviced by Ocwen wil
Ocwen designates us as the service provider. Rlefsty revenue from Ocwen as a percentage of sagamel consolidated revenue wa
follows for the years ended December 31:

2014 2013 2012
Mortgage Services 67% 71% 68%
Financial Services 27% 30% <1%
Technology Services 41% 49% 42%
Consolidated revenue 60% 65% 59%

We record revenue we earn from Ocwen under thacgeagreements at rates we believe to be market et we believe they are consis
with the fees we charge to other customers for @raige services and/or fees charged by our coropstit

We earn additional revenue on the portfolios sediby Ocwen that is not considered related pasgmee when a party other than Oc
selects Altisource as the service provider. Forytbars ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012ecogmized revenue of $256.0 millign
$161.9 million and $125.4 million , respectively the portfolios serviced by Ocwen that are notstdered related party revenue.

Our services are provided to customers primaribated in the United States. Financial informationdur segments can be found in Note Z
our consolidated financial statements.

Sales and Marketing

We have experienced sales personnel and relatjpnslinagers with subject matter expertise. Thesw&iththls maintain relationshi
throughout the industry sectors we serve and plaiyn@ortant role in generating new client leadsvai as identifying opportunities to expe
our services with existing clients. Additional Isadre also generated through requests for propmsalesses. Our sales team wi
collaboratively and is compensated principally vdathase salary and commission for sales generated.

Our primary sales and marketing focus is expanda@tionships and services provided to existingamusrs and Lenders One and Whole
One members as well as adding new Lenders One dmudedale One members, adding new customers of &gaatl Mortgage Builder, ne
default services customers and more consumer linsigevice brokerage customers. Given the highlceotmated nature of the industries
serve, the time and effort we spend in expanditadiomships or winning new relationships is sigrafint.

Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of contractual restricéioiternal security practices, patents, trademackgyrights, trade secrets and o
intellectual property to establish and protect saftware, technology and expertise. We also owa®necessary and
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appropriate, have obtained licenses from thirdigsutpb intellectual property relating to our seedcprocesses and business. These intell
property rights are important factors in the susagour businesses.

As of December 31, 2014, we have been awarded atemtpthat expires in 2023, four patents that expir2024, six patents that expire
2025, two patents that expire in 2026, one pateat ¢xpires in 2029 and one patent that expire20B0. In addition, we have registe
trademarks, or recently filed applications for ttegistration of trademarks, in a number of juriidits including the United States,
European Community, India and in eight other judsdns. These trademarks generally can be renemgsfinitely, provided they are bei
used in commerce.

We actively protect our rights and intend to condirour policy of taking all measures we deem realsienand necessary to develop and pr
our patents, trademarks, copyrights, trade searetother intellectual property rights.

Industry and Competition

The industry verticals in which we engage are higtdmpetitive and generally consist of a few natlorendors as well as a large numbe
regional, local and imouse providers resulting in a fragmented markeh wlisparate service offerings. From an overallspective, w
compete with global business process outsourcingsfiOur Mortgage Services segment competes withrad and regional third party serv
providers and irtouse servicing operations of large mortgage lended servicers. We also compete with companiegiding online ree
estate auction services and limited service br@gefams. Our Financial Services segment compeits ather large receivables manager
companies as well as a fragmented group of smadlerpanies and law firms focused on collections. @echnology Services segm
competes with data processing and software developoompanies and in-house technology and softeeeations of other loan servicers.

Given the diverse nature of services we and oumpatitors offer, we cannot determine our positiomhi@ market with certainty, but we belit
we represent only a small portion of very large kats. Given our size, some of our competitors nfésr anore diversified services, operat:
broader geographic markets or have greater finbresaurces than we do. In addition, some of orgelacustomers retain multiple provid
and continuously evaluate our performance agaunstompetitors.

Competitive factors in our Mortgage Services bussnaclude the compliance, quality and timelinelssw services, the size and compett
of our network of vendors and the breadth of theises we offer. Competitive factors in our Finalcervices business include the abilit
achieve a collection rate comparable to our cortgratithe compliance, quality, timeliness and peasmature of the service; the consiste
and professionalism of the service; and the remeritt, training and the retention of our workfor€@ampetitive factors in our Technolc
Services business include the quality of the teldgyebased applications or services; application featared functions; ease of delivery
integration; our ability to maintain, enhance anggrt the applications or services; our abilityeoruit and retain software and other techi
employees; and the cost of obtaining, maintainimg) enforcing our patents.

Employees

As of December 31, 2014, we had the following nundieemployees:

United Consolidated
States India Philippines Luxembourg Altisource
Mortgage Services 44z 2,841 377 9 3,67¢
Financial Services 874 2,11: 86 2 3,07t
Technology Services 634 1,31¢ 12 2 1,96¢
Corporate 12¢ 43¢ 23 20 59¢
Total emp|oyees 2,07: 6,705 49¢€ 33 9,31:

We have not experienced any work stoppages andngder our relations with employees to be good baleve our future success will
depend, in part, on our continuing ability to attrdire and retain skilled and experienced persbnn

Seasonality

Certain of our revenues are seasonal. More spaltyfidMortgage Services’evenue is impacted by REO sales and lawn maintenamhict
tend to be at their lowest levels during fall andter months and highest during spring and sumnmths.
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Financial Servicesasset recovery management revenue tends to ber gt first quarter, as borrowers may utilize tafunds and bonus
to pay debts, and generally declines throughoutebeof the year.

Government Regulation

Our business and the business of our customersudnject to extensive scrutiny and regulation byefal] state and local governme
authorities including the Federal Trade Commisgi&iTC”), the Consumer Financial Protection Bure&DRPB”), the Securities and Exchar
Commission (“*SEC”)and the state and local agencies that license ensee certain of our auction, real estate brokenagetgage and de
collection services, including insurance servicesd aollection services. We also must comply wituwmnber of federal, state and Ic
consumer protection laws including, among othdrs,Gramm-LeactBliley Act, the Fair Debt Collection Practices Attnfair, Deceptive ¢
Abusive Acts and Practices statutes, the Real &Seattlement Procedures Act (“RESPA”), the Truthémding Act (“TILA"), the Fair Cred
Reporting Act, the Telephone Consumer Protectioh #iee Homeowners Protection Act, the Californiantémwner Bill of Rights and tl
Secure and Fair Enforcement for Mortgage LicengiS\FE") Act. We are also subject to the requirements ofRtieign Corrupt Practic
Act (“FCPA”) and comparable foreign laws, due ta aativities in foreign jurisdictions.

Requirements can and do change as statutes anldtiegs are enacted, promulgated or amended. Octe exuacted regulation is the Dodd
Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protectioh (Agodd-Frank Act”). The Dodd-rank Act is extensive and includes reform of
regulation and supervision of financial institutioras well as the regulation of derivatives, cépitarket activities and consumer finan
services. The Dod#rank Act, among other things, created the CFFBdaral entity responsible for regulating consufireancial services ar
products. Title XIV of the Dodd-Frank Act contaititee Mortgage Reform and Anti-Predatory Lending Adlortgage Act”). The Mortgag
Act imposes a number of additional requirementdendlers and servicers of residential mortgage Idmnamending and expanding cer
existing regulations. In some cases, penaltiesiéamrcompliance are significant and could lead ttlesaents or consent orders affecting u
our customers that may curtail or restrict the hess as it is currently conducted.

We are subject to licensing and regulation as aigeo of certain services including, among othexsivices as a mortgage origina
underwriter, valuation provider, appraisal manageneempany, asset manager, property managerjrigleance agent, property and cast
insurance broker, real estate broker, auctioneegcfosure trustee and debt collector in a numbstates. Our employees and subsidiaries
be required to be licensed by various state comamisgor the particular type of service sold angh#oticipate in regular continuing educa
programs. Periodically, we are subject to auditd examinations by federal, state and local reggfadgencies and receive subpoenas,
investigative demands or other requests for infoienafrom such regulatory agencies in connectiothwtheir regulatory or investigati
authority.

Available Information

We file Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Repan Form 10-Q, Current Reports on ForriK &nd other information with the SE
These filings are available to the public overlifiternet at the SEC’s websitelstp://www.sec.govYou may also read and copy any docutr
we file at the SEC’s public reference room locaed 00 F Street, N.E., Washington, DC 20549. Pleafiehe SEC at 1-800-SE@330 fo
further information on the public reference room.

Our principal Internet addressvsvw.altisource.conand we encourage investors to use it as a waysilfydading information about us. V
promptly make the reports we file or furnish wittetSEC, corporate governance information (including Code of Business Conduct
Ethics), select press releases and other relatedriation available on this website. The conterfitewr website are available for informatio
purposes only and shall not be deemed incorpotatedference in this report.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The following risk factors and other informatiorcinded in this Annual Report on Form KOshould be carefully considered. The risks
uncertainties described below are not the only amedace. Additional risks and uncertainties nasgntly known to us or that we prese
deem less significant may also impair our busirgserations. If any of the following risks actuatigcur, our business, operating results
financial condition could be materially adverseffeated.
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Risks Related to Our Business and Industry

Ocwen is our largest customer and the loss of Ocagea customer or a reduction in the size of Ocearid adversely affect our business
results of operations.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, we geneagidximately 60% of our revenue from Ocwen. Adahélly, 24%of our 2014 revent
was earned on the portfolios serviced by Ocwenjsnbt considered related party revenue becapsetya other than Ocwen selects Altisot
as the service provider. Prior to the 2009 sepandtiom Ocwen, our businesses were whollyaed subsidiaries of Ocwen and since the
separation Ocwen has been our largest customere®@q@urchases certain services from our Mortgagei&s; Financial Services &
Technology Services segments under service agrésrtieat extend through August 2025, subject to iteation under certain conditions.
addition, Ocwen purchases certain origination sexifrom Altisource under an agreement that extehdsigh January 2017, subjec
termination under certain conditions.

Ocwen has been and is subject to a number of pgridideral and state regulatory investigations, imeg and requests for information t
have or could result in adverse regulatory actmgeinst Ocwen. For example, as a result of vaniegalatory actions, Ocwen is (i) subjec
an independent auditarreview of compliance with California servicingdaand has agreed not to obtain any new serviggdsrin Californii
until the regulator is satisfied with future docurtheequests, (ii) operating under the oversighdrobnsite operations monitor imposed by N
York Department of Financial Services (“NYDFS”), iwh is assessing the adequacy and effectivene€d3caiens operations, includir
information technology systems, (iii) required &rform benchmarking pricing studies for transactiaiith related parties, which are subjec
periodic review by the monitor imposed by the NYD&®I (iv) subject to requirements under an agreemith the CFPB and various ste
attorneys general and agencies that imposed spessfivicing guidelines and oversight by an indepahdational monitor, who recer
reported they were investigating the reliabilityimfiormation Ocwen has provided. In addition tosthenatters, Ocwen continues to be subje
other regulatory investigations, inquiries and xis for information and pending legal proceediagsl Ocwen may become subject to fu
federal and state regulatory investigations, irigaiand requests for information, any of which doallso result in adverse regulatory or o
actions against Ocwen.

As a result of these various difficulties faced @gwen, its debt and servicer ratings have been dmawed. Further, certain bondholder
Ocwen-serviced residential mortgage-backed seesrdileged that Ocwen, as servicer of certain ragabacked securities trusts, defaultet
these servicing agreements.

Ocwen relies, in part, on HLSS to finance its ofiers. For a significant portion of Ocwen-servigezh-GSE loans, HLSS owns (1) the rig
to receive the servicing fees that Ocwen is eutitle receive and (2) associated servicing advangesa result of certain of the forego
matters, HLSS has received notices of default wedpect to certain of its debt financing and hazived demands from a shareholder
servicing be transferred away from Ocwen.

The foregoing may have significant and varied affem Ocwers business and our continuing relationships witlv€t For example, Ocw
may be required to alter the way it conducts bissinencluding the parties it contracts with forvéegs (including information technolo
services), it may be required to seek changes &xisting pricing structure with related partieotherwise, it may lose or sell some or all ¢
non-GSE servicing rights or subservicing arrangementaay lose one or more of its state servicing leen Additional regulatory actions n
impose additional restrictions on or require chanigeOcwens$ business that would require it to sell assetshange its business operatic
Further, Ocwers ability to finance its operations and repay matuobligations rests in large part on its abikityd the ability of HLSS -
continue to borrow money, which also may be affédig any or all of the circumstances described abéwny or all of these effects coi
result in our eventual loss of Ocwen as a cust@narreduction in the volume of services they pasehfrom us.

The loss of Ocwen as a customer or a significatiticion in the volume of services they purchasenfues would significantly reduce ¢
revenue and materially adversely affect our resfltsperations. Further, if Ocwen were to losea & significant portion or all of its noBSE
servicing rights or subservicing arrangements se liss state servicing licenses in states wittyaifstant number of loans in Ocwen's servic
portfolio, our revenue and results of operationsulidbe materially adversely affected. In additiénthere are significant changes to
contractual relationship with Ocwen or significafitanges to our pricing to Ocwen for services frohicw we generate material rever
Altisource’s revenue and results of operations @¢dad materially negatively impacted.

Our continuing relationship with Ocwen may inhibitr ability to attract and retain other customers.

Given our close and continuing relationship withw@a and the regulatory scrutiny related to the wawhich Ocwen does business v
Altisource, we may encounter difficulties in atting new customers and retaining existing custonf&hsuld
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these and other potential customers view Altisowrsepart of Ocwen or as too closely related to epetident upon Ocwen, they may
unwilling to utilize our services and our growthudm be inhibited as a result.

We have key customer relationships, other than @¢cthe loss of which could affect our businessrasdlts of operations.

While no individual client, other than Ocwen, reggats more than 10% of our consolidated revenu@ravexposed to customer concentra
Most of our customers are not contractually obbgdatio continue to use our services at historioatlieor at all. The loss of any of these
customers or their failure to pay us could reduserevenue and adversely affect results of operatio

The strength of the economy and the housing masgkeaffect demand for our services.

The performance and growth of our origination segsibusiness is dependent on the volume of logimations by third parties. In the even
an economic slowdown, increase in interest ratemnygrother factor that would likely lead to a dese in the level of origination transactic
including refinancing transactions, our originatservices growth prospects could be adversely t@ffie@dlso, in a strengthening economy
housing market, reduced delinquencies negativepathour default business. Further, in the eveat dldverse economic conditions or o
factors lead to a decline in levels of home ownigrsimd a reduction in the aggregate number of drf@tes mortgage loans outstanding
revenues from our software applications could besegkly affected.

Our business is subject to substantial competition.

The markets for our services are very competiter competitors vary in size and in the scope am@édth of the services they offer.
compete for existing and new customers against thitth parties and the iheuse capabilities of our customers. Some of ourpsgitors ar
more established and better known, have substametaurces and some have widaled technology platforms which they seek to use
competitive advantage to drive sales of other pctsdand services. In addition, we expect the marketwhich we compete will continue
attract new competitors and new technologies. Tinese technologies may render our existing technieigbsolete, resulting in operat
inefficiencies and increased competitive pressiinere can be no assurance we will be able to carpetcessfully against current or fu
competitors or that competitive pressures we fadbé markets in which we operate will not matéyiabversely affect our business, finan
condition and results of operations.

Our intellectual property rights are valuable andyainability to protect them or challenges to oight to use them could reduce the valu
our services or increase our costs.

Our patents, trademarks, trade secrets, copyragtdther intellectual property rights are importassets. The efforts we have taken to pr
these proprietary rights may not be sufficient dective in every case. The unauthorized use of iotellectual property or significa
impairment of our intellectual property rights couiarm our business, make it more expensive tousinbss or hurt our ability to comp
Protecting our intellectual property rights is ¢psind time consuming.

Although we seek to obtain patent protection fataia of our innovations, it is possible we may hetable to protect all of the innovations
which we seek protection. Changes in patent laeh €1 changes in the law regarding patentable culmiatter, can also impact our ability
obtain patent protection for our innovations. Irdi&idn, given the costs of obtaining patent pratectwe may choose not to protect cet
innovations that later turn out to be importantrtRermore, there is always the possibility, despite efforts, that the scope of the protec
gained will be insufficient or an issued patent rbaydeemed invalid or unenforceable.

Further, as our technology solutions and serviea®ldp, we may become increasingly subject torigiEment claims by others. Any clail
whether with or without merit, could:

* be expensive and timmnsuming to defen

* cause us to cease making, licensing or using téohyneolutions that incorporate the challengedlliestual property
* require us to redesign our technology solutionfeakible

» divert managemerd’attention and resources; an

* require us to enter into royalty or licensing agneats in order to obtain the right to use necessatynologie:
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Technology failures, defects or inadequacies, agwveent delays or installation difficulties, secwuribreaches, acts of vandalism or
introduction of harmful code could damage our basgoperations and increase our costs.

Disruptions, failures, defects or inadequaciesuntechnology, delays in the development of, otailtstion difficulties with, our technology,
security breaches, acts of vandalism, system attackhe introduction of malicious code to our tealogy, may interrupt or delay our ability
provide services to our customers. Any sustained r@peated disruptions in these services may haveadaerse impact on our and

customerstesults of operations. Further, Ocwen or otherwfaustomers may require changes and improvemettetsystems we provide
them to manage the volume and complexity of theisifesses, which changes and improvements may $iy @nd time consuming

implement and may create disruptions in our provisif services to customers, which could have ar@e impact on our business operal
and financial position, and increase our costs.idauhlly, the improper implementation or use oftisdurce technology by customers cc
impact the operation of that technology, and paa#iptcause harm to our reputation, loss of cust@naegative publicity or exposure
liability claims.

The Company s databases containing proprietary information gretsonal information of our customers and employsrgd be breache
which could subject us to adverse publicity, cogtlyernment enforcement actions or private litigatiand expenses.

As part of our business and operation of our teldgye we maintain proprietary information electreally and electronically receive, proce
store and transmit consumer information and contideand sensitive business information of ourteoers and employees. We rely on
security of our networks, databases, systems aptkpses and, in certain circumstances, those rdf phirties, such as vendors, to protec
proprietary information and information about owrstomers and employees. Criminals are constantisidg schemes to circumve
information technology security safeguards and rothege companies have recently suffered seriows slacurity breaches. If unauthori
parties gain access to our networks or databasdbpse of our vendors, they may be able to siailish, delete, or modify our sensit
proprietary information and sensitive third partyformation, including personally identifiable infoation. In addition, employees n
intentionally or inadvertently cause data or sdgusieaches that result in unauthorized releasiofi personal or confidential information
such circumstances, our business could suffer andowuld be held liable to our customers, otherigmror employees, as well as be subje
regulatory or other actions for breaching privaay lor failing to adequately protect such informati®@his could result in costly investigatic
and litigation, civil or criminal penalties, operatal changes or other response measures, logmetimer confidence in our security meas
and negative publicity that could adversely affeat financial condition, results of operations, amgbutation. Furthermore, Congres:
individual states could enact new laws regulatiegteonic commerce that could adversely affectné@ur results of operations.

We have long development and sales cycles for mboyr services and technology solutions and iffaieto close sales after expend
significant time and resources to do so, our busshéinancial condition and results of operatioraynbe adversely affected.

We may have long development and sales cycles forynof our services and technology solutions. We mpend significant time a
resources in pursuing a particular service, teawpolsolution or customer that does not generatemay. We may encounter delays w
developing new services or technology solutions.&y experience difficulties in installing or intatjng our technologies on platforms u
by our customers. Further, defects in our technokagutions, errors or delays in the processinglettronic transactions or other difficuli
could result in interruption of business operatjateday in market acceptance, additional developrard remediation costs, loss of custon
negative publicity or exposure to liability claims.

Delays due to the length of our sales cycle orscosturred that do not result in sales could hameaterially adverse effect on our busin
financial condition or results of operations.

Our business and the business of our customersangct to extensive scrutiny and regulation, aaitlife to comply with existing or ne
regulations may adversely impact us.

Our business and the business of our customersudiject to extensive scrutiny and regulation byefal] state and local governme
authorities including the FTC, the CFPB, the SE@ #re state and local agencies that license orseeecertain of our auction, real es
brokerage, mortgage and debt collection servicedding insurance services and collection servigés also must comply with a numbe
federal, state and local consumer protection lagkiding, among others, the Gramm-Ledihey Act, the Fair Debt Collection Practices /
Unfair, Deceptive or Abusive Acts and Practicesustes, RESPA, TILA, the Fair Credit Reporting Attte Telephone Consumer Protec
Act, the Homeowners Protection Act, the CaliforHameowner Bill of Rights, the SAFE Act, the Mortgadct, the FCPA and the Dodetank
Act. These requirements can and do changsatates and regulations are enacted, promulgatachended. We are also subject to licer
and regulation as a provider of certain servicetuding, among others, services as a mortgagenation underwriter, valuation provid
appraisal management
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company, asset manager, property manager, titleranse agent, property and casualty insurance brokal estate broker, auctione
foreclosure trustee and debt collector in a nuntdfestates. Our employees and subsidiaries may dpgiresl to be licensed by various s
commissions for the particular type of service sadl to participate in regular continuing educatwagrams. We incur significant ongo
costs to comply with licensing requirements andegomnental regulations.

Participants in the industries in which we opei@ subject to a high level of regulatory scrutifitis scrutiny has included federal and ¢
governmental agency review of all aspects of thetgage servicing and lending industries and thet deblection industry, including :
increased legislative and regulatory focus on comsuprotection practices. In some cases, penditiesioncompliance are significan
increased and could lead to settlements or corsdets against us, or our customers, that mayitortaestrict our business as it is curre
conducted. If regulators continue to impose newnore restrictive requirements, we may incur sigatfit additional costs to comply with si
requirements which could further adversely affaat esults of operations or financial condition.addition, our failure to comply with the
laws and regulations can possibly lead to civil @nichinal liability, loss of licensure, damage taraeputation in the industry, fines ¢
penalties and litigation, including class actiowdaits or administrative enforcement actions. Afiyhese outcomes could harm our resul
operations or financial condition.

Periodically, we are subject to audits and exanonatby federal, state and local regulatory agenaied receive subpoenas, civil investige
demands or other requests for information from segjulatory agencies in connection with their ragpdy or investigative authority. We |
currently responding to such inquiries from fedexall state agencies relating to certain aspectaiobusiness. Responding to such at
examinations and inquiries will cause us to incosts, including legal fees or other charges, whiey be material in amount. If any si
audits, examinations or inquiries result in findir@f noncompliance, we could incur fines, penaltsettiement costs or other damages or
sanctions imposed on us or restrictions imposedumbusiness that could have a material adversstetfin our business and result:
operations.

National servicing standards and federal and giateernment scrutiny and regulation and other remoénts require very specific Ic
modification and foreclosure procedures that hawéhér reduced the number of loans entering thecfosure process and have negati
impacted our default services revenue and profis. Unclear when or if volumes will increase ie fiature.

Our customers are subject to government regulatiequiring our customers to, among other thingsereee their vendors and maint
documentation that demonstrates their oversighaulf performance does not meet our custom&tesdards, our results of operations coul
adversely affected.

Our customers are subject to a variety of governmegulations, including those promulgated by tHe&P8. Certain regulations require
customers to oversee their vendors and documergrduedures performed to demonstrate that oversigtisource, as a vendor, is subjec
oversight by our customers. If we do not meet thadards established by our customers or if angraifiersight procedures result in a neg:
outcome for Altisource, we may lose customers oy nalonger be granted referrals for certain sewimegatively impacting our business
results of operations.

We rely on third party vendors for many aspectewfbusiness. If our vendor oversight process é&factive or we face difficulties manag
our relationships with third party vendors, our v#s of operations could be adversely affected.

We rely on third party vendors to provide goods aadvices in relation to many aspects of our opmrat Our dependence on these ver
makes our operations vulnerable to such third @sifailure to perform adequately under our contradth them. In addition, where a ven
provides services that we are required to proviuten a contract with a client, we are generallpoesible for such performance and coul
held accountable by the client for any failure effpormance by our vendors. We evaluate the compgtand solvency of our key third pa
vendors. Additionally, we perform ongoing vendoemmight activities to identify any performance tinar issues related to these vendors
vendor fails to provide the services that we regjoir expect, or fails to meet contractual requineisiesuch as service levels or compliance
applicable laws, the failure could negatively imipar business by adversely affecting our abilitysérve our customers and/or subjecting
litigation and regulatory risk for ineffective vemdoversight. Such a failure could adversely affaetreliability and quality of the services
provide our customers and could adversely affectesults of operations.

If financial institutions at which we hold escrowdatrust funds fail, it could have a materially adse impact on our Compar

We hold customersassets in escrow and trust accounts at variouadiakinstitutions pending completion of certaimlrestate activities. V!
also hold cash in trust accounts at various firernostitutions where contractual obligations maedaaintaining dedicated bank account:
Financial Services collections. These amounts até im escrow and trust accounts for limited pesiad time and are not included in
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. We ntayrteeliable for funds owed to third
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parties as a result of the failure of one or mdréhese financial institutions, and there is norguéee we would recover the funds depos
whether through Federal Deposit Insurance Corpmraidverage, private insurance or otherwise.

We may be subject to claims of legal violationsvosngful conduct which may cause us to pay uneggditigation costs or damages or moi
our products or processes.

From time to time, we may be subject to costly ime-consuming legal proceedings that claim legal viofeg or wrongful conduct. The
lawsuits may involve clients, our clientsustomers, vendors, competitors and/or other Igrgaps of plaintiffs and, if resulting in findings
violations, could result in substantial damageserhlatively, we may be forced to settle some cladoisof court and change existing comg
practices, services and processes that are cyrrentnue generating. This could lead to unexpeatsts or a loss of revenue.

Our debt makes us more sensitive to the effeatea@iomic change; our level of debt and provisionsur debt agreements could limit «
ability to react to changes in the economy or awdustry.

Our debt makes us more vulnerable to changes imesults of operations because a portion of oun dasvs from operations is dedicatec
servicing our debt and is not available for othemoeses. Our debt is secured by virtually all of assets and is trading at a substantial dis
to face value. Our ability to raise additional débtimited, subject to lender approval and wouddjuire modification of our current di
agreements. Additionally, increases in interestgatill negatively impact our cash flows as theiiest on our debt is variable. The provis
of our debt agreement could have other negativeemurences to us including the following:

» limiting our ability to borrow money for our workincapital, capital expenditures, debt service mregouénts or other general corpo
purposes;

» limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reaatig to, changes in our operations, our businedseoindustry in which we compe

e requiring us to repay a portion of our excess dish, as defined in the debt agreement, in the eeen debt to EBITDA ratios, .
defined in the debt agreement, exceed certainhblés; and

« placing us at a competitive disadvantage by lirgitrr ability to invest in the busine

Our ability to make payments on our indebtednegedds on our ability to generate cash in the futlirwe do not generate sufficient ci
flows to meet our debt service and working capitguirements, we may need to seek additional fingnor sell assets. This may make it n
difficult for us to obtain financing on terms therte acceptable to us, or at all. Without any surchnicing, we could be forced to sell asse
make up for any shortfall in our payment obligaamder unfavorable circumstances. If necessarynese not be able to sell assets qui
enough or for sufficient amounts to enable us tetroer obligations.

In addition, our debt agreement contains coventras limit our flexibility in planning for, or reding to changes in, our business and
industry, including limitations on incurring additial indebtedness, making investments, granting leamd merging or consolidating with ot
companies. Complying with these covenants may impai ability to finance our future operations @pital needs or to engage in o
favorable business activities.

Our failure to comply with the covenants contaimedur debt agreement, including as a result ofréydeyonaur control, could result in €
event of default which could materially and advBrsdfect our operating results and our financiaindition.

Our debt agreement requires us to comply with w&rigperational, reporting and other covenantslittnéttus from engaging in certain types
transactions. If there were an event of defaultenrair debt agreement that was not cured or wathedholders of the defaulted debt cc
cause all amounts outstanding with respect todbhbt to be immediately due and payable. We carsgira you that our assets or cash f
would be sufficient to fully repay borrowings undmir outstanding debt instruments, either upon ritgtar if accelerated, upon an even
default or that we would be able to refinance streeture the payments on those debt instruments.

Our failure to maintain certain debt to EBITDA rasi contained in our debt agreement could resultenuired payments to the lenders «
percentage of our excess cash flows, which couténaly and adversely affect our ability to user @xcess cash flows for other purpos

Our debt agreement requires us to distribute 50%uofexcess cash flows, as defined in the debteaggat, if our net debt to EBITDA ra
exceeds 3.50 to 1.00 and 25% of our excess cash ffaur net debt to EBITDA ratio is 3.50 to 1.80less, but greater than 3.00 to 1.00. |
were required to distribute a portion of our exaessh flows to our lenders, we may be limited
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in our ability to grow our business through acdigsis or investments in technology and we may betéid in our ability to repurchase «
common stock. We cannot assure you that we wilhta@ debt to EBITDA ratios at levels that will netquire us to distribute a portion of
excess cash flows to lenders.

Risks Related to our Growth Strategy
Our ability to grow is affected by our ability tetain and expand our existing client relationshaps! our ability to attract new customers.

Our ability to retain existing customers and expé#mube relationships and attract new customerahgest to a number of risks including
risk that we do not:

* maintain or improve the compliance and qualityef/gces we provide to our customi
* meet or exceed the expectations of our custo

» successfully leverage our existing client relatops to sell additional services; ¢

» attract other servicers and ndistressed home sellers as new custol

If our efforts to retain and expand our client tielaships and to attract new customers do not peffective, it could have a materially adve
effect on our business and results of operatiodsoain ability to grow our operations.

Our ability to expand existing relationships antleatt new customers is also affected by broadem@uic factors and the strength of the ow
housing market, which can reduce demand for ourics and increase competition for each custontmrsness. Se€The strength of tt
economy and the housing market can affect demaralifcservices.”

If we do not adapt our services to changes in teldgy or in the marketplace, or if our ongoing effoto upgrade our technology &
particularly our efforts to complete developmenbof technology are not successful, we could lestomers and have difficulty attracting r
customers for our services.

The markets for our services are characterizeddmgtant technological change, frequent introductbmew services and evolving indus
standards. We are currently in the process of deual and introducing our technology. Our futurecass will be significantly affected by «
ability to complete our current efforts and in theure enhance, primarily through use of automatieconometrics and behavioral scie
principles, our services and develop and introduee services that address the increasingly sophteti needs of our customers and

customers. These initiatives carry the risks assediwith any new service development effort, idilg cost overruns, delays in delivery
performance effectiveness. There can be no assutaat we will be successful in developing, mangtand selling new services that n
these changing demands or completing the developofeour technology. In addition, we may experiemtificulties that could delay
prevent the successful development, introductiod ararketing of these services. Finally, our sewiesd their enhancements may
adequately meet the demands of the marketplaceaciméve market acceptance. Any of these resultddMoave a negative impact on

financial condition and results of operations and ability to grow our operations.

Our growth objectives are dependent on the timing market acceptance of our new service offerings.

Our ability to grow may be adversely affected bffidlilties or delays in service development or ithability to gain market acceptance of r
services to existing and new customers. There@guarantees that new services will prove to bengernially successful.

Our business is dependent on the trend towardauting.

Our continued growth at historical rates is depahda the industry trend towards outsourced sesvi€here can be no assurance this trenc
continue as organizations may elect to perform sechices themselves or may be prevented from owgsm services. A significant change
this trend could have a materially adverse effecbor continued growth.

Acquisitions to accelerate growth initiatives inv@lpotential risks

During 2014, we acquired Mortgage Builder and Owream. During 2013, we acquired feased businesses from Ocwen and acq
Equator. We intend to continue to consider acqaisst of other businesses that could complementbosiess. In addition to consider
acquisitions that could offer us greater accessun current markets, we also consider acquisitiohentities offering greater access
expertise in other asset types and markets thaekated to ours but we do not currently serve.
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As we acquire businesses, we may face a numbé&sksfincluding a loss of focus on our daily oparasi, the need for additional managen
constraints on operating resources, constrainfinancial resources from integration and systenmveesion costs, the inability to maintain |
pre-acquisition relationships with customers, supplard employees and other integration risks. Anysitipn may result in the incurrence
additional amortization expense of related intalegdssets, which could reduce our profitability r @hility to pursue additional acquisitions
the future is dependent on our access to sufficiapital (equity or debt) to fund the acquisitiodaubsequent integration. We may not be
to secure adequate capital as needed on termarthatceptable to us, or at all, and our abilitggoure such capital through debt financir
limited by our current debt agreements.

Risks Related to International Business
Our international operations subject us to additbrisks which could have an adverse effect onresults of operations.

We have reduced our operating expenses by utilipvwgr cost labor in foreign countries such asadrald the Philippines. As of December
2014, 7,207 of our employees were based in Indiathe Philippines. These countries are subjecelatively higher degrees of political ¢
social instability and may lack the infrastructtwewithstand political unrest or natural disast&sch disruptions can decrease efficiency
increase our costs in these countries. Weaknefgedinited States dollar in relation to the curiesased in these foreign countries may
reduce the savings achievable through this strateggthermore, the practice of utilizing labor dhse foreign countries has come ur
increased scrutiny in the United States and, @&sealtt some of our customers may require us tdais® based in the United States. We
not be able to pass on the increased costs of hgleed United Statebased labor to our customers, which ultimately ddwdve an adver
effect on our results of operations.

The FCPA and other applicable aatirruption laws and regulations prohibit corruptpayments by our employees, vendors and agents
violation of the applicable antierruption laws or regulations by us, our subsid&gor our local agents, could have an adversetefie ou
business and reputation and result in substamiahial penalties or other sanctions.

Any political or economic instability in these cdrias could result in our having to replace or &these labor sources, which may incr
our labor costs and have an adverse impact oresuits of operations.

Altisource is a Luxembourg company and it may Kfecdit to enforce judgments against it or its diters and executive officel

Altisource is a public limited company organizedlenthe laws of Luxembourg. As a result, Luxembdawg and the articles of incorporat
govern the rights of shareholders. The rights @freholders under Luxembourg law may differ from tights of shareholders of compar
incorporated in other jurisdictions. A significgrdrtion of the assets of Altisource are locatedidet of the United States. It may be difficult
investors to enforce, in the United States, judgsebtained in United States courts against Altisewr its directors based on the civil liabi
provisions of the United States securities lawdooenforce, in Luxembourg, judgments obtained imeotjurisdictions including the Unit
States.

A significant change of the Luxembourg tax regimefats interpretation by the Luxembourg tax auities could adversely affect our resi
of operations.

Altisource is organized under the laws of, and lqeadered in, Luxembourg. As a result, Altisounes a lower effective tax rate than somr
its competitors. It is possible that changes imdmbourgs administrative taxation practices or applicalelgutations may cause an increas
our effective tax rate, which could result in averde effect on our results of operations.

Risks Related to Our Employees
Our success depends on our directors, executiieergfand key personnel.

Our success is dependent on the efforts and abiliif our directors, executive officers and othey lkemployees, many of whom hi
significant experience in the real estate and nageg financial services and technology industriesparticular, we are dependent on
services of our Board of Directors and key exeadiat our corporate headquarters and personnelchtaf our segments. The loss of
services of any of these directors, executivesegrpgersonnel, for any reason, could have a mdiegddiverse effect upon our business, re
of operations and financial condition.

Our inability to attract and retain skilled empl@sgmay adversely impact our business.
Our business is labor intensive and places sigmfiemportance on our ability to recruit, train aredain skilled employees. Additional

demand for qualified technical and software prafesss conversant in certain technologies may ekcepply as new and additional skills
required to keep pace with evolving computer tetdgno Our ability to locate and train employees
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is critical to achieving our growth objective. Omability to attract and retain skilled employeasam increase in wages or other cosi
attracting, training or retaining skilled employessuld have a materially adverse effect on our rimss, financial condition and results
operations.

Risks Related to Our Relationships

We could have conflicts of interest with Ocwen jd®egial, AAMC, HLSS and certain members of our agament, which may be resolved
manner adverse to us.

We have significant business relationships with pravide services to Ocwen and Residential. We pitewide certain services to AAMC ¢
HLSS. Ocwen, Residential, AAMC and HLSS have bedated parties of Altisource. Our former Chairm#filliam C. Erbey, who stepp:
down from the Altisource, Ocwen, Residential, AAM@d HLSS Boards of Directors effective January (8.5, owns or controls comm
stock in each of these companies. As of Decembgei2314, Mr. Erbey owned or controlled approximat2B6 of the common stock
Altisource, approximately 14% of the common sto€kOowen, approximately 4% of the common stock o$iBential, approximately 28%
the common stock of AAMC and approximately 1% of tommon stock of HLSS. Additionally, certain memsbef our management he
equity interests in Ocwen, Residential, AAMC andArSS. Such ownership interests could create, peapto create, conflicts of interest v
respect to matters potentially or actually invotyior affecting us and Ocwen, Residential, AAMC &idS, as the case may be.

We follow policies, procedures and practices toidvymtential conflicts with respect to our dealinggh Ocwen, Residential, AAMC a
HLSS. We also manage potential conflicts of intetésough oversight by independent members of ooar8 of Directors (independt
directors constitute a majority of our Board of &itors and our current Chairman is an independesttdr), and we will also seek to man
these potential conflicts through dispute resotutimd other provisions of our agreements with Ogviresidential, AAMC and HLSS. The
can be no assurance that such measures will batie&gethat we will be able to resolve all confiiavith Ocwen, Residential, AAMC or HL:
or that the resolution of any such conflicts wi# bo less favorable to us than if we were dealiitp & third party that had none of
connections we have with these businesses.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not applicable
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal executive offices are located in &gheffice space in Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Lulkenrg. A summary of our princif
leased office space as of December 31, 2014 amsktdraents primarily occupying each location iscliews:

Corporate and Support

Mortgage Services Financial Services Technology Services Services

Luxembourg X X X X
United States

Atlanta, GA X X X X

Boston, MA X X

Coppell, TX X X

Endicott, NY X

Fort Washington, PA X

Irvine, CA X

Los Angeles, CA X

Plano, TX X

Sacramento, CA X

Seattle, WA X

Southfield, Ml X

St. Louis, MO X

Tempe, AZ X
Pasay City, Philippines X X X X
India

Bangalore X X X X

Goa X

Mumbai X X X X

We do not own any real property. We consider tliasiities to be suitable and adequate for the rgangent and operations of our business.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we are involved in legal and adstrative proceedings arising in the course af lousiness. We record a liability for th
matters if an unfavorable outcome is probable &edaimount of loss can be reasonably estimatedjdimg expected insurance coverage.
proceedings where the reasonable estimate ofdassange, we record a best estimate of loss wiitieimange.

On September 8, 2014, the West Palm Beach FirefighPension Fund filed a putative securities clasrasuit against Altisource and cert
of its officers and directors in the United StaBastrict Court for the Southern District of Floriddleging violations of the Securities Excha
Act of 1934 and Rule 10b-with regard to disclosures concerning pricing tradsactions with related parties that allegedfiated Altisourc:
share prices. The court subsequently appointed®émsion Fund of the International Union of Pami@nd Allied Trades District Council
and the Annuity Fund of the International UniorRafinters and Allied Trades District Council 35 &ad Plaintiffs. On January 30, 2015, L
Plaintiffs filed an amended class action complathich adds Ocwen Financial Corporation as a defen@nd seeks a determination thai
action may be maintained as a class action on behplrchasers of the Compasysecurities between April 25, 2013 and DecembgePQ1¢
and an unspecified amount of damages. Altisourands to vigorously defend this lawsuit. Altisoiis unable to predict the outcome of
lawsuit or reasonably estimate the potential ldgkgny, arising from the suit, given that motiors dismiss have not yet been filed
adjudicated, discovery has not commenced and &gniflegal and factual issues remain to be deterdi

In addition to the matter referenced above, wararelved in legal actions in the course of our bess, some of which seek monetary dam
We do not believe that the outcome of these prangsedboth individually and in the aggregate, wdlve a material impact on our finan
condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Our businesses are also subject to extensive tegulahich may result in regulatory proceedingsotions against us. See Iltem 1A of Part I,
Risk Factors” above. For further information, see Note 22 te tlonsolidated financial statements.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable
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PART Il — OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOC KHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

Our common stock is listed on the NASDAQ GlobaleseMarket under the symbol “ASPSIhe following table sets forth the high and

close of day sales prices for our common stocktHferperiods indicated, as reported by the NASDAGb& Select Market:

2014
Quarter ended Low High
March 31 $ 98.3¢ $ 164.4¢
June 30 95.3¢ 125.8¢
September 30 83.9¢ 119.9¢
December 31 29.4¢ 101.9¢

2013
Quarter ended

Low High

March 31 $ 67.3t $ 96.0:
June 30 69.4: 100.1¢
September 30 95.2% 142.3(
December 31 132.8¢ 170.1¢

The number of holders of record of our common st@glof February 20, 2015 was 65he number of beneficial shareholders is subisify

greater than the number of holders as a largequooti our common stock is held through brokeragadi

Dividends

We have never declared or paid cash dividends orcammmon stock and we do not anticipate paying @sh dividends in the foresee:
future. The provisions of our senior secured teoanl agreement, as amended, limit, among other ghiogr ability to pay dividenc
Luxembourg law also limits our ability to pay dieidds, including statutory reporting requirementd dividend amount limitations based

annual net income and net income carried forwash Any amounts placed in reserve.
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Stock Performance Graph

The graph below compares the cumulative total $iolcler return on our common stock with the cumu&total return on the S&P 500 Inc
for the five year period ending on December 31,420he graph assumes an investment of $100 atebmming of this period and does
include the effects of the podistribution values of Residential and AAMC, whietere distributed to Altisource shareholders in Deloe

2012. The comparisons in the graph below are baped historical data and are not indicative of, inbended to forecast, future performa
of our common stock.
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\'"_,_ ke \J‘!_‘. latr \-"i’_ [k \"r‘ # e \ﬁ,.- - o ‘\n-" p
—@— Altisource —l— S&P 500 #— NASDAQ Composite
12/31/09 6/30/10 12/31/10 6/30/11 12/31/11 6/30/12 12/31/12 6/30/13 12/31/13 6/30/14 12/31/14
Altisource $ 100.0C $117.87 $ 136.7¢ $175.3: $239.07 $ 348.8¢ $412.8. $449.2¢ $ 755.7¢ $545.8¢ $ 160.9¢
S&P 500 100.0¢ 92.4: 112.7¢ 118.4: 112.7¢ 122.1¢ 127.9( 144.0¢ 165.7¢ 175.7¢ 184.6¢
NASDAQ
Composite 100.0( 92.9¢ 116.9: 122.2: 114.8: 129.3¢ 133.07 149.9¢ 184.0¢ 194.2] 208.7:

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Comensation Plans

The information required by this item is incorp@ditherein by reference to our definitive proxy estagnt in connection with our 2015 anr
meeting of shareholders to be filed pursuant touReimn 14A under the Securities Exchange Act 419
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

On February 28, 2014, our shareholders approveewastock repurchase program, which replaced theique stock repurchase progri
Under the new program, we are authorized to puechipgo 3.4 million shares of our common stockebdasn a limit of 15%f the outstandir
shares of common stock on the date of approvaharopen market, at a minimum price of $1.00 pareland a maximum price of $5000€
share. This is in addition to amounts previouslychased under the prior programs. From authorizatiothe previous programs throt
December 31, 2014, we have purchased approxim@i2lgnillion shares of our common stock in the operket at an average price®#9.1¢
per share. We purchased 2.5 million shares of camsimck at an average price of $103p&T share during the year ended December 31,
and 1.2 million shares at an average price of &P 6er share during the year ended December 31, 284 f December 31, 201
approximately 1.1 millionshares of common stock remain available for remsehunder the new program. Our senior secured It
agreement limits the amount we can spend on slegmerahases in any year and may prevent repurcliasasrtain circumstances. As
December 31, 2014, approximately $225 million wasilable to repurchase our common stock under enios secured term loan.

The following table presents information relatedte repurchases of our equity securities durieglthee months ended December 31, 2014:

Total number

of shares Maximum number
Total Weighted purchased as of shares that may
number of average part of publicly yet be purchased
shares price paid announced plans under the
Period purchased® per share or programs @ plans or programs®
Common stock:
October 1 — 31, 2014 475,38t $ 98.61 475,38t 1,138,33:
November 1 — 30, 2014 — — — 1,138,33
December 1 — 31, 2014 — — — 1,138,33:
Total shares of common stock 475,385 $ 98.61 475,385 1,138,331

@ May include shares withheld from employees to §atex withholding obligations that arose from #neercise of stock optior

@ On February 28, 2014, our shareholders approvesivestock repurchase program which replaced théqrsyrogram and authorized u:
purchase up to 3.4 million shares of our commoaoksio the open market.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data as of andtfar years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, 2012, &0d 2010 has been derived from
audited consolidated financial statements.

The historical results presented below may nonbeative of our future performance.
The selected consolidated financial data shouldela@ in conjunction with the information containieditem 7 of Part Il,"Management

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &elsults of Operatio” and our consolidated financial statements and rib&gsto in Item
of Part Il,“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”

For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands, except per share data) 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Revenue $ 107891 $ 768,35 $ 568,36( $ 423,68 $ 301,37
Cost of revenue 707,18( 492,48( 366,20: 275,84¢ 189,05¢
Gross profit 371,73t 275,87" 202,15¢ 147,83t 112,31¢
Selling, general and administrative expenses 201,28: 113,81( 74,71 62,13: 57,35:
Income from operations 170,45: 162,06’ 127,44° 85,70’ 54,96
Other income (expense), net:
Interest expense (23,367) (20,29) (1,210 (85) (119
Other income (expense), net 174 557 (1,58¢) 28¢ 922
Total other income (expense), net (23,189 (29,739 (2,799 203 804
Income before income taxes and non-controllingredts 147,26! 142,33: 124,64¢ 85,91( 55,77
Income tax (provision) benefit (20,179 (8,540 (8,73¢) (7,947 40z
Net income 137,08 133,79: 115,91: 77,96° 56,17«
Net income attributable to non-controlling integest (2,607) (3,820 (5,289 (6,85%) (6,907%)
Net income attributable to Altisource $ 134,48 $ 12997 $ 110,620 $ 71,11. $ 49,27

Earnings per share:
Basic $ 6.2z $ 5.6 $ 474  $ 29z % 1.9¢

Diluted $ 56¢ $ 51¢ $ 4.4 % 271 % 1.8¢

Transactions with related parties included above:

Revenue $ 666,80( $ 502,08 $ 338,227 $ 24526. $ 154,98!
Cost of revenue 38,61( 19,98: 13,46¢ 5,18( —
Selling, general and administrative expenses (26¢) 56¢ (542 (16€) (749
Other income — 773 86 — —

December 31,

(in thousands) 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Cash and cash equivalents $ 161,360 $ 130,32« $ 10550: $ 32,128 $ 22,13«
Accounts receivable, net 112,18 104,78 88,95¢ 52,00¢ 53,49¢
Premises and equipment, net 127,75¢ 87,25: 50,39¢ 25,60( 17,49:
Intangible assets, net 245,24¢ 276,16 56,58¢ 64,95( 72,42¢
Goodwill 90,85: 99,41 14,91t 14,91t 11,83¢
Loan to Ocwen — — 75,00( — —
Total assets 788,22: 730,05: 429,22t 224,15¢ 197,80(

I AnA tarm Aaht nat fincliidinA Alirrant nAartic EQQ R1. 20K 27Kt 10Q N9~



Capital lease obligations — — 233 83¢€ 1,53
Total liabilities 746,77 572,31: 269,39’ 58,21¢ 45,90:

Significant events affecting our historical earrsirntgends from 2012 through 2014, including acqioisst, are described in Item 7 of Par
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan@aindition and Results of Operations.”
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FI NANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

Management’s discussion and analysis of financialdition and results of operations (“MD&A’s a supplement to the accompan
consolidated financial statements and is intendegrovide a reader of our financial statements witinarrative from the perspective
management on our businesses, current developnfigatscial condition, results of operations andildity. Significant sections of the MD&
are as follows:

Overview.This section, beginning below, provides a deswiptf recent developments we believe are impoitaninderstanding o
results of operations and financial condition adl we understanding anticipated future trends.Idb grovides a brief description
significant transactions and events that affectdbmparability of financial results and a discussid the progress being made on
growth initiatives.

Consolidated Results of Operatiofi$is section, beginning on page 27, provides atysisaof our consolidated results of operation:
the three years ended December 31, 2014.

Segment Results of Operatiofitis section, beginning on page 30, provides arysisaof each business segment for the three
ended December 31, 2014 as well as Corporate keghEliminations. In addition, we discuss signifitkansactions, events and tre
that may affect the comparability of the resultsmigeanalyzed.

Liquidity and Capital ResourcesThis section, beginning on page 39, providesralyais of our cash flows for the three years e
December 31, 2014. We also discuss restrictiorsash movements, future commitments and capitaliress.

Critical Accounting PoliciesThis section, beginning on page 42, identifies ¢hascounting principles we believe are most imparte
our financial results and that require significartigment and estimates on the part of managemeagpptication. We provide all of o
significant accounting policies in Note 2 to the@mpanying consolidated financial statements.

Other Matters.This section, beginning on page 45, provides audsion of offbalance sheet arrangements to the extent they &
addition, we provide a tabular discussion of casitral obligations, discuss any significant commitiiseor contingencies and rela
parties.

OVERVIEW

Our Business

We are a premier marketplace and transaction solutprovider for the real estate, mortgage and wuoes debt industries offering bt
distribution and content. We leverage proprietargibess process, vendor and electronic paymentgearent software and behavioral scie
based analytics to improve outcomes for marketpbectcipants.

Our business segments are based upon our organalastructure, which focuses primarily on the smwoffered, and are consistent with
internal reporting used by our Chief Executive €Hfito evaluate operating performance and to asisesglocation of our resources.

We classify our businesses into three reportabjensats. TheMortgage Servicesegment provides services that span the mortgadjeea
estate lifecycle and are typically outsourced bgnlservicers, loan originators and investors amerosellers of single family homes. ~
Financial Service:segment provides collection and customer relatignstanagement services primarily to debt originatmmd servicers (e.
credit card, auto lending, retail credit and mogtgaand the utility, insurance and hotel industridee Technology Servicesegmenprincipally
consists of our REALSuite software applications,ugr's software applications, Mortgage Buildesoftware applications and our
infrastructure services. The REALSuite platformpdes a fully integrated set of software applicati@nd technologies that manage the en
to-end lifecycle for residential and commercial moggdoan servicing including the automated managéraed payment of a distribut
network of vendors. Equator’s software applicatiprsvide comprehensive, end-¢ad workflow and transaction services to manageestat:
and foreclosure related activities and purchasatedlservices from vendors. Mortgage Builder presighortgage origination and servic
software applications. In additioorporate Items and Eliminationisclude eliminations of transactions between thgortable segmen
interest expense and costs related to corporatgosufunctions including executive, finance, legabmpliance, human resources, vel
management, risk and operational effectivenessyartieting.
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We classify revenue in three categories: servigemae, revenue from reimbursable expenses anccominelling interests. In evaluating ¢
performance, we focus on service revenue. Serggenue consists of amounts attributable to oubfesed services. Reimbursable expe
and non-controlling interests are palsssugh items for which we earn no margin. Reimbhls expenses consist of amounts we incur on t
of our customers in performing our fee-based sesyibut we pass such costs directly on to our mest® without any additional markup. Non
controlling interests represent the earnings ofdees One, a consolidated entity not owned by Altise, and are included in revenue
reduced from net income to arrive at net incomebatiable to Altisource.

We have prepared our consolidated financial statésni@ accordance with accounting principles gdherccepted in the United States
America.

Altisource’s Vision and Growth Initiatives

Altisource provides a suite of mortgage, real estand consumer debt services, leveraging our téogmoand global operations. C
relationship with Ocwen provided a foundation onickhwe built our business and Ocwen, as our largastomer, remains an import
priority for us. Leveraging the services we havétliirough the Ocwen and other relationships, siltirce is focused on becoming the pre
provider of real estate and mortgage marketplatfesimy both distribution and content to a diveiesif customer base. Within the real estate
mortgage markets, we are facilitating transacti@tated to home sales, home rentals, home maintenamortgage origination and mortg
servicing.

While we expect our revenue from Ocweiervicing portfolio will decline in 2015, we bele we have opportunities to continue to build
business from our revenue and diversification atites. Ocwen remains a very important componerduofbusiness and we believe tha
existing nonGSE portfolio provides continuing revenue opportiesi for Altisource. While we have been working aur strategic grow
initiatives for some time, we have historically htmdbalance this activity with the need to supg@cdwen during a period of its own ra
growth. Given our current expectations relativeOiowen going forward and the recognized importarfcdiversifying further our custom
base, we are increasing our focus on our stratrgiwth initiatives. Our strategic growth initiativare:

Mortgage market:

» attract new clients to our comprehensive defaldtted business
e grow our origination services and technolo

Real estate market:

» expand our innovative online real estate markeg
e grow our property management and renovation ses\csines

Stock Repurchase Plan

On February 28, 2014, our shareholders approveewastock repurchase program, which replaced theique stock repurchase progri
Under the new program, we are authorized to puechpgo 3.4 million shares of our common stockebdasn a limit of 15%f the outstandir
shares of common stock on the date of approvaharopen market, at a minimum price of $1.00 paresland a maximum price of $5000€
share. This is in addition to amounts previouslychased under the prior programs. From authorizatiothe previous programs throt
December 31, 2014, we have purchased approxim@i2lgnillion shares of our common stock in the operket at an average price®#9.1¢
per share. We purchased 2.5 million shares of camsimck at an average price of $103p&T share during the year ended December 31,
and 1.2 million shares at an average price of &P 6er share during the year ended December 31, 284 2f December 31, 201
approximately 1.1 millionshares of common stock remain available for remsehunder the new program. Our senior secured It
agreement limits the amount we can spend on slegmerahases in any year and may prevent repurchiasesrtain circumstances. As
December 31, 2014, approximately $225 million wasilable to repurchase our common stock under enios secured term loan.

Separation of Residential Asset Businesses

On December 21, 2012, we completed the spin-ofRRedidential and AAMC to our shareholders. Se&eparation of the Residential As
Businesse” in Item 1 of Part |, “Business”
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On December 24, 2012, the shares of Residentiald#@MC were distributed to our shareholders of recas of December 17, 2012, in
form of a taxable pro rata stock distribution. @bareholders received a pro rata distribution of:

« one share of Residential common stock for evemgetishares of Altisource common stock t
» one share of AAMC common stock for every ten shafédtisource common stock held; ¢
» cashin lieu of fractional Residential and AAMC st&

Residential is focused on acquiring and managinglsifamily rental properties by acquiring sub-periing and norperforming residenti
mortgage loans as well as single family homes afotbowing the foreclosure sale throughout the ©ditStates. AAMC provides as
management and certain corporate governance seriocBesidential. We provide property managemesdtsd management and renove
management services to Residential. Prior to thars¢éion, we capitalized Residential with $100 imillof cash and AAMC with $5 millioof
cash.

We eliminated the assets and liabilities of Redidémnd AAMC from our consolidated balance sheétative at the close of business
December 21, 2012. As Residential and AAMC wereettjgment stage companies and had not yet commesme@tions at the time
separation, these entities had no historical resfitoperations. We do not expect any negative énpa our future operations other tl
interest expense on the debt we borrowed in Nove2®E2 to capitalize these entities.

The carrying value of net assets transferred bigdlirce was as follows:

(in thousands) Residential AAMC Total
Cash $ 100,00( $ 5,000 $ 105,00(
Reduction in Altisource retained earnings $ 100,000 $ 5,000 $ 105,00(

Correction of Immaterial Errors

As previously disclosed, during 2014 we determirnleat while we properly identified our related pestiin previously issued financ
statements, disclosures of certain immaterial edlagarty expenses were omitted. We have correbigbrieviously presented disclosure
related party expenses in Note #Fransactions with Related Partiend on the face of the consolidated statementp@efations for the yee
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012. The impact oéciorg these items in the notes to the consolitifitancial statements had the effect of:

* increasing the amounts disclosed as relatey pat of revenue from Ocwen by $20.0 million arid$ million for the years end:
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively;

* increasing the amounts disclosed as sellingegémnd administrative expenses (“SG&A”) from Oawazllings to Altisource byb1.7
million and $0.7 million for the years ended DecemB1, 2013 and 2012, respectively;

» decreasing the amounts disclosed as SG&A frotisd\rce billings to Ocwen by $0.1 million and lekan $0.1 milliorfor the year
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively; and

» decreasing the amounts disclosed as SG&A frotisdrce billings to AAMC by $0.5 millioffior the year ended December 31, 2
( no adjustment for the year ended December 312)201

Correcting these items on the face of the consitlatatements of operations resulted in the discdoof related party cost of revenuebad.(
million and $13.5 millionfor the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012ecteely, and a decrease in previously disclostated part
SG&A by $2.4 million and $3.0 million for the yeagaded December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

In accordance with the Financial Accounting StaddaBoard’s Accounting Standards Codification (“A$Qbpic 250,Accounting Chang
and Error Corrections the Company evaluated the effect of the disclosund presentation errors on its previously issuedial and quartel
financial statements, both qualitatively and quatitiely, and concluded that the related partyld@aes in the Comparg/’previously issue
annual and quarterly financial statements are ragerally misstated.
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Factors Affecting Comparability

The following items may impact the comparabilityonfr results:

» The average number of loans serviced by OcweRBALServicing was 2.2 millioffior the year ended December 31, 2014 comj
to 1.2 million and 0.7 million for the years endedcember 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The geemamber of delinquent non-
GSE loans serviced by Ocwen on REALServicing wastBbusand for the year ended December 31, 2014 aa@d to296 thousan
and 211 thousand for the years ended Decembe033,&hd 2012, respectively;

* On November 21, 2014, we acquired Owners.col@ading selfdirected online real estate marketplace, for aminpurchase price
$19.8 million plus contingent earn out considerataf up to an additional $7.0 millioover two years, subject to Owners.c
achieving annual performance targets;

* Inthe fourth quarter of 2014, we discontinued lemder placed insurance brokerage line of busi

e« On September 12, 2014, we completed the acquisitfoortgage Builder, a provider of mortgage loaigimation and servicir
software systems, for an initial purchase pric818.7 million plus contingent earn out consideratd up to an addition&7.0 millior
over three years, subject to Mortgage Builder achgeannual performance targets;

» Bad debt expense increased during 2014, driviemapily from the default management services bessn A change in our customers
business model and fourth quarter 2014 discussidtihsthese customers led us to believe that a gomif the accounts receiva
balance is no longer collectible;

e On November 15, 2013, we acquired Equator foinaial purchase price of $63.4 milligrlus contingent earn out consideration
to an additional $80 milliomver three years, subject to Equator achieving anperformance targets. During 2014, the fair vadt
the Equator contingent consideration was reduce®3®.9 millionwith a corresponding increase in earnings. As altrexf the
adjustment in the fair value of the Equator corgimgconsideration, we determined that the Equatmdgill was impaired ar
recorded an estimated impairment loss of $37.5aniih 2014. The net impact on earnings was areeme of $0.5 million ;

e On April 12, 2013, we completed the Resider@iapital, LLC (“ResCap”) fedvased business transaction with Ocwen for an agtf
purchase price of $128.8 million ;

e« On March 29, 2013, we completed the acquisitibthe Homeward Residential Capital, Inc. (‘Homesafee-based businesses fr
Ocwen for an aggregate purchase price of $75.8mijland

* In November 2012, we borrowed $200.0 million end senior secured term loan agreement and irtteas borrowings t&400.(
million on May 7, 2013. On December 9, 2013, we refinartbedsenior secured term loan which included, amathgr change
lowering the interest rate of the term loans. Omgusat 1, 2014, we amended our senior secured teamdgreement and increased
borrowings by $200.0 million to $594.5 million .témest expense totaled $23.4 millidor the year ended December 31, Z
compared to $20.3 million and $1.2 million for Years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respegctivel
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CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Summary Consolidated Results

Following is a discussion of our consolidated ressaf operations for the years ended December @4,22013 and 2012. For a more detze
discussion of the factors that affected the resifltsur business segments in these periods, Segrhent Results of Operatidrselow.

The following table sets forth information on oesults of operations for the years ended Decemhber 3

% Increase % Increase
(in thousands, except per share data) 2014 (decrease) 2013 (decrease) 2012
Service revenue
Mortgage Services $ 650,02t 33 $ 490,33 3¢ $ 351,90t
Financial Services 98,31: 6 92,47¢ 45 63,97¢
Technology Services 230,36 122 103,89: 4C 74,18¢
Eliminations (40,02¢) 62 (24,64 6 (23,147
938,67 42 662,05¢ 42 466,92
Reimbursable expenses 137,63« 34 102,47¢ 7 96,14%
Non-controlling interests 2,60¢ (32 3,82 (28) 5,28¢
Total revenue 1,078,911 40 768,35 35 568,36(
Cost of revenue 707,18( 44 492,48( 34 366,20:
Gross profit 371,73t 35 275,87 3€ 202,15¢
Selling, general and administrative expenses 201,28: 77 113,81( 52 74,71
Income from operations 170,45: 5 162,06 27 127,44
Other income (expense), net:
Interest expense (23,367) 15 (20,29)) N/M (1,210
Other income (expense), net 174 (69 557 13t (1,58¢)
Total other income (expense), net (23,189 18 (29,739 N/M (2,799
Income before income taxes and non-controlling
interests 147,26! 3 142,33 14 124,64¢
Income tax provision (20,179 19 (8,540 () (8,739
Net income 137,08 2 133,79: 15 115,91:
Net income attributable to non-controlling intesest (2,607) (32) (3,820 (29) (5,289
Net income attributable to Altisource $ 134,48 3 $ 129,97 17 $ 110,62
Margins:
Gross profit/service revenue 40% 42% 43%
Income from operations/service revenue 18% 24% 27%
Earnings per share:
Basic $ 6.22 10 $ 5.6 ¢ 9 4,74
Diluted $ 5.6¢ 1c $ 5.1¢ 17 9 4.4z

N/M — not meaningful.
Revenut
We recognized service revenue of $938.7 millios621 million and $466.9 milliofor the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 ang,

respectively. The continued growth in service rexenver the three year period was primarily dribgrOcwens growth, higher auction
for houses sold on Hubzu, revenue from Equator fivivie acquired in November 2013 and growth in onafRcial Services business from 1



customer relationship management customers. Thesesises were partially offset by (1) a declinthendefault management services busi
driven by lower levels of foreclosure starts anyl tf#2 fourth quarter of 2013 loss of an originatimanagement services customer w
eliminated its affinity relationship with Altisouecand its other similar vendor partners.
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The increase in revenue from reimbursable expedsdng the three year period is due primarily te #rowth of Ocwers loan servicin
portfolio, although reimbursable expenses can sawificantly from period to period based on thexmi services ordered.

Certain of our revenues are impacted by seasondlitye specifically, Mortgage Servicegvenue is impacted by REO sales and
maintenance, which tend to be at their lowest lelging the fall and winter months and highest nigispring and summer months. Finar
Services'asset recovery management revenue tends to ber hilgtiee first quarter, as borrowers may utilize tafunds and bonuses to |
debts, and generally declines throughout the retbtsoyear.

Cost of Revenue and Gross Profit

Cost of revenue principally includes payroll andpbogee benefits associated with personnel emplayedstomer service and operations r
fees paid to external providers related to the igiom of services, reimbursable expenses, techyodogl telecommunications expenses
depreciation and amortization of operating assets.

We recognized cost of revenue of $707.2 milliod925 million and $366.2 milliofor the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 ang,
respectively. The increase in cost of revenue dutfie three year period is primarily attributaldeévenue growth during the same period
the increased investment in the development oftecinology. However, our 2014 cost structure isindine with our current vision ai
expected growth. Recognizing that our businesk Witwen is not expected to grow in the near term tduchallenges faced by Ocwen,
developed and are executing on a plan that incledesinating certain nomevenue generating businesses, reducing vendos eos
eliminating staff to realign our expenses for thésv reality.

Gross profit increased to $371.7 million , représen40% of service revenue, for the year endedebier 31, 2014 compared $275.¢
million , representing 42% of service revenue,tf@ year ended December 31, 2013 and $202.2 milliepresenting 43%f service revenu
for the year ended December 31, 2012. Gross @sfit percentage of service revenue declined in 20f#a shift in revenue across segm
with higher growth in the lower margin Technologgr@ces segment. Margin expansion in the Mortgag@i€es segment was partially off
by margin decreases in the other segments. In trglge Services segment, we expanded our groBsmesgin by fully utilizing employee
that we were carrying in 2013 in anticipation ofwnbusiness and performing certain services with @mployees that were previou
performed by outside vendors. In the Financial Bes/segment, the gross profit margin decline waged by revenue mix as the hig
margin mortgage chargef collections business represented a lower peéagenof revenue in the Financial Services segmeg0il4. In th
Technology Services segment, gross profit marganedesed primarily due to our continued investmemdur technology to support our grov
partially offset by higher gross profit margin inet Equator business. In 2013, we experienced higrewth in the lower margin prope
inspection and preservation services from theahitferrals from the Homeward and ResCap portfoind higher costs in our Technol
Services segment due to investing in the developroérour technology to support our growth initissy partially offset by improw
performance in our Financial Services segment filoengrowth of higher margin mortgage chagjeand customer relationship manager
services.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses ardrme from Operations

SG&A includes payroll for personnel employed in exi&ve, finance, legal, compliance, human resoyrgesdor management, risk ¢
operational effectiveness and marketing roles. €htegory also includes occupancy costs, profeakiers and depreciation and amortize
of intangible assets.

We recognized SG&A of $201.3 million , $113.8 nuti and $74.7 millionfor the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 an@,
respectively. The increase in SG&A during the thyear period was primarily driven by higher markgtcosts primarily related to Hubzu :
increased amortization of intangible assets primdrdom the Homeward, ResCap and Equator acquistiwhich closed on March 29, 20
April 12, 2013 and November 15, 2013, respectiviprketing costs were $24.1 million , $5.0 milliand $2.5 millionfor the years end:
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.rAnation expense was $37.7 million , $28.2 milliamd $5.0 millionfor the years end:
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 5@&o increased from higher compensation expendeelated employee and occupe
costs from increased headcount to support growdhhégher legal and compliance related costs. Bdud elgpense increased for the year el
December 31, 2014 by $13.7 million, driven primaifilom the default management services businesshakge in our customerbusines
model and fourth quarter 2014 discussions withdlmsstomers led us to believe that a portion ofatmunts receivable balance is no lo
collectible.

The liability for contingent consideration is rafted at fair value and adjusted each reportingogesiith the change in fair value recognize
earnings. During 2014, the fair value of the cogeimt consideration related to the Equator acqaisitvas reduced by $37.9 milliomith a
corresponding increase in earnings based on marmagesmevised estimates that expected earnings of

28




Table of Contents

Equator will be lower than projected at the timeasfjuisition. As a result of the adjustment in fhg value of the Equator conting:
consideration and based on our goodwill assessmentietermined that the Equator goodwill was imgghind recorded an impairment los
$37.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2014.

The following table presents the impact of the d&aim the fair value of the Equator contingent aderstion (“Equator Earn Outgnd Equatc
goodwill impairment for the year ended December2Bil4 and are included in SG&A in the consolidatedements of operations:

(in thousands)

Change in the fair value of Equator Earn Out $ (37,92¢)
Goodwill impairment 37,47
$ (451)

Our 2014 cost structure is not in line with ourreat vision and expected growth. Recognizing thatbusiness with Ocwen is not expecte
grow in the near term due to challenges faced byed¢ we developed and are executing on a planiribhtdes reducing vendor costs
eliminating staff to realign our expenses for thésv reality.

Income from operations increased to $170.5 millioepresenting 18%f service revenue, for the year ended Decembe2@®1l4 compared
$162.1 million , representing 24% of service rewvarfor the year ended December 31, 2013 and $18iflidn , representing 27%f service
revenue, for the year ended December 31, 2012d&beease in operating income margin is primarilyedr by higher growth in lower marg
services, the timing of investments in new seryidde timing of boarding new loans, higher Hubzurketing costs, increases in

amortization of intangible assets recorded in cotioe with the Homeward, ResCap and Equator adipnsi and the other increases in SG
as discussed above.

Other Income (Expense), net

Other income (expense), net principally includdsriest expense and interest income. Interest eggenshe year ended December 31, -
was $23.4 million , an increase of $3.1 million gmared to the year ended December 31, 2013 resdtong the additiona$200.0 millior
senior secured term loan borrowings on August 142thd the additional $200.0 milli@enior secured term loan borrowings on May 7, 2
partially offset by lower interest rates from tten®r secured term loan refinancing on Decemb@09%3. Interest expense for the year el
December 31, 2013 was $20.3 million , an increds&16.1 millioncompared to the year ended December 31, 2012 ires@lom the initia
senior secured loan borrowing in the fourth quaofe2012 and the additional $200.0 millisenior secured term loan borrowings on Me
2013. We recognized interest income of $0.1 milfimnthe year ended December 31, 2014. Additionally recognized interest income®#f.<
million and $0.2 millionfor the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012ecteely, primarily from a $75.0 million loan toc@en, whicl
was repaid in February 2013.

Income Tax Provisio

We recognized an income tax provision of $10.2iamill, $8.5 million and $8.7 milliofor the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and,
respectively. Our effective tax rate was 6.9% %6.and 7.0%for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and, 2@%pectively. Tt
effective tax rate in all three periods differsrfrdghe Luxembourg statutory tax rate ( 29.2% in 209.2% in 2013 and 28.8% 2012
primarily due to the effect of certain deductions_uxembourg from a tax ruling, which expires inl90unless extended or renewed, anc
mix of income and losses with varying tax ratesmaltiple taxing jurisdictions. Our consolidated exffive income tax rate for financ
reporting purposes may change periodically duéhmges in enacted tax rates, fluctuations in theahincome earned from our domestic
international operations, which may be subjectifi@idng tax rates, and our ability to utilize regterating loss and tax credit carryforwards.
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SEGMENT RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following section provides a discussion of tessaf operations of our business segments. Traiosschetween segments are accounte
as third party arrangements for purposes of presprgegment results of operations. Intercompangstaetions primarily consist of
infrastructure services. We reflect these as semggenue in the Technology Services segment ahtddogy and telecommunications expe
within cost of revenue and SG&A in the segmentirgog the services.

Financial information for our segments is as fokow

For the year ended December 31, 2014

Corporate
Mortgage Financial Technology Items and Consolidated
(in thousands) Services Services Services Eliminations Altisource
Revenue
Service revenue $ 650,02t % 98,31 $ 230,36 $ (40,02¢) $ 938,67¢
Reimbursable expenses 137,44 187 — — 137,63«
Non-controlling interests 2,60: — — — 2,60:
790,07t 98,49¢ 230,36’ (40,02¢) 1,078,91!
Cost of revenue 484,51 64,33¢ 194,30: (35,97) 707,18(
Gross profit 305,56« 34,16 36,06¢ (4,055) 371,73t
Selling, general and administrative expenses 94,67¢ 18,79: 31,95( 55,86 201,28:
Income from operations 210,88t 15,37( 4,11¢ (59,919 170,45¢
Other income (expense), net 204 62 (31) (23,42¢) (23,189
Income before income taxes and non-controlling
interests $ 211,09 % 15,43. % 4,088 % (83,34) $ 147,26
Margins:
Gross profit/service revenue 47% 35% 16% N/M 40%
Income from operations/service revenue 32% 16% 2% N/M 18%
Transactions with related parties:
Revenue $ 544.25¢ % 27,06¢ % 95,48: $ — $ 666,80(
Cost of revenue 35,56¢ 18¢€ 2,85 — 38,61(
Selling, general and administrative expenses 1,07¢ — 33t (1,687) (26¢)

N/M — not meaningful.

30




Table of Contents

For the year ended December 31, 2013

Corporate
Mortgage Financial Technology Items and Consolidated
(in thousands) Services Services Services Eliminations Altisource
Revenue
Service revenue 490,330 $ 92,47¢ $ 103,89. $ (24,644) 662,05¢
Reimbursable expenses 101,99¢ 47¢ — — 102,47¢
Non-controlling interests 3,82( — — — 3,82(
596,15: 92,95¢ 103,89: (24,64 768,35’
Cost of revenue 374,71 55,32¢ 84,53¢ (22,099 492,48(
Gross profit 221,43t 37,63( 19,35 (2,545 275,87
Selling, general and administrative expenses 46,51t 15,57 12,44: 39,28: 113,81(
Income from operations 174,92 22,05¢ 6,911 (41,829 162,06
Other income (expense), net (13€) (20 7 (19,59%) (19,739
Income before income taxes and non-controlling
interests 174,78t  $ 22,04¢ % 6,91t % (61,427) 142,33:
Margins:
Gross profit/service revenue 45% 41% 1% N/M 42%
Income from operations/service revenue 36% 24% 7% N/M 24%
Transactions with related parties:
Revenue 423,96¢ $ 27,59. % 50,527 $ — 502,08
Cost of revenue 19,04¢ 82¢ 10¢€ — 19,98:
Selling, general and administrative expenses 391 — 244 (66) 56¢
Interest income — — — 773 778
N/M — not meaningful.
For the year ended December 31, 2012
Corporate
Mortgage Financial Technology Iltems and Consolidated
(in thousands) Services Services Services Eliminations Altisource
Revenue
Service revenue 351,90¢ % 63,97¢ $ 74,18¢ $  (23,14) 466,92
Reimbursable expenses 95,60¢ 543 — — 96,14%
Non-controlling interests 5,28¢ — — — 5,28¢
452,79t 64,52; 74,18¢ (23,14 568,36(
Cost of revenue 285,58¢ 46,73. 54,63« (20,75¢) 366,20:
Gross profit 167,21( 17,78¢ 19,55¢ (2,39)) 202,15¢
Selling, general and administrative expenses 25,09¢ 13,41¢ 8,88¢ 27,31( 74,71
Income from operations 142,11: 4,37( 10,661 (29,70)) 127,44
Other income (expense), net (1,719 (27) (25) (1,037 (2,799
Income before income taxes and non-controlling
interests 140,39¢ $ 4,34: % 10,64: $ (30,739 124,64¢
Margins:
Gross profit/service revenue 48% 28% 26% N/M 43%



Income from operations/service revenue

Transactions with related parties:
Revenue
Cost of revenue
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Interest income

N/M — not meaningful.

$

40%

306,77-
13,33(
84

31

7%

20¢
88

14%

31,24¢
51
37C

N/M 27%

— $ 33822
_ 13,46¢
(996) (542)
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Mortgage Services
Revenut

Revenue by service line was as follows for the yesded December 31:

% Increase % Increase
(in thousands) 2014 (decrease) 2013 (decrease) 2012
Service revenue:
Asset management services $ 356,43 80 $ 197,99 84 $ 107,48
Insurance services 154,83( 29 119,83! 40 85,60!
Residential property valuation 101,17: (2 103,30( 29 80,32
Default management services 22,72¢ (46) 41,81 a7 50,22
Origination management services 14,86: (46) 27,381 (3) 28,28:
Total service revenue 650,02t 33 490,33: 39 351,90¢
Reimbursable expenses:
Asset management services 130,86¢ 35 96,94 4 92,99:
Insurance services 4,40¢ 16¢€ 1,647 (25) 2,18¢
Default management services 2,032 (36) 3,171 N/M 42¢€
Origination management services 14z (39) 231 N/M —
Total reimbursable expenses 137,44 35 101,99¢ 7 95,60¢
Non-controlling interests 2,60: (32 3,82( (28 5,28¢
Total revenue $ 790,07t 33 $ 596,15 32 % 452,79

Revenue from related parties:
Asset management services $ 374,49 42 $  264,35( 45 § 181,94
Insurance services

54,97¢ 29 42,48 12 37,84¢

Residential property valuation
97,44¢ 2 98,95¢ 35 73,40¢
Default management services 15,33¢ @) 16,45: 21 13,54¢
Origination management services 1,99¢ 16 1,72¢ N/M 23
Total revenue from related parties $ 544,25 28 $ 423,96 3¢ $ 306,77

N/M — not meaningful.

We recognized service revenue of $650.0 milliontfier year ended December 31, 2014, &3Bcrease compared to the year ended Dece
31, 2013. The growth in asset management servicgsngurance services was primarily due to Ocwembwth as loans from its servic
acquisitions are boarded on REALServicing. The ghoin asset management services is also from teehiauction mix of houses sold
Hubzu. Growth in the insurance services business paatially offset by the discontinuation of th@der placed insurance brokerage lin
business in the fourth quarter of 2014. The dedlingefault management services revenue was dpviemarily by lower levels of foreclosu
starts. The lower origination management serviesgmue was primarily due to the loss of a custoimehe fourth quarter of 2013 w
eliminated its affinity relationship with Altisouecand its other similar vendor partners along witblose to 40% decline in U.S. original
volume.

We recognized service revenue of $490.3 milliontifier year ended December 31, 2013, &3i@icrease compared to the year ended Dece
31, 2012. This growth in all of the business linescept default management services and originatianagement services, was driver
Ocwen’s growth as loans from its servicing platform asgigns were boarded on REALServicing. During 2048, assisted Ocwen with 1
boarding of 1.1 million loans onto REALServicingifin Ocwen’s acquisitions of Homeward and ResCagitfqgrins and OneWest Bank FSB’
servicing rights. The lower margin property insp@ettand preservation services, which immediatelio¥o loan boarding, were a signific:



driver of the 84% growth in asset management service revenue. Assgigement service revenue also increased fronseesices introduce

in 2013, from expanding the percentage of homed gobugh auction on Hubzu and from capturing rederfor certain services before
loans were boarded on REALServicing. Growth initigurance services and residential property valodbusinesses also reflected Ocvgen
larger loan portfolio, but did not reflect the naired referral volume we expected from the newtfpbos. Default management servi
revenue was lower as one of Ocwersubservicing customers continued its temporaryatodum on the foreclosure of its loans,
requirements under the “Making Homes Affordablebgmam limit servicersability to initiate a foreclosure while pursuinghet avenues
resolution and a greater percentage of loans pgridieclosure actions were being placed on holdrfodification consideration
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or stopped due to modification. Origination managetrservice revenue only declined 3 % in 2013 &@%¥2, despite the estimated %
decline in overall U.S. origination volume.

Certain of our Mortgage Services businesses aradtad by seasonality. REO sales and lawn maintensenwices are generally lowest du
the fall and winter months and highest during ivéng) and summer months.

Cost of Revenue and Gross Profit

Cost of revenue consists of the following for tteags ended December 31:

% Increase % Increase

(in thousands) 2014 (decrease) 2013 (decrease) 2012

Compensation and benefits $ 76,12¢ 18 3 64,64+ 20 % 53,84
Outside fees and services 238,19! 27 187,13¢ 61 116,32
Reimbursable expenses 137,44 35 101,99¢ 7 95,60¢
Technology and telecommunications 30,30¢ 58 19,15( 3 18,50¢
Depreciation and amortization 2,44( 37 1,781 36 1,30¢
Cost of revenue $ 484,51. 29 $ 374,71 31 $ 285,58t

Cost of revenue for the year ended December 314 p0$484.5 million increased by 28 compared to the year ended December 31,
primarily driven by the growth of Ocwen's loan seivg portfolio on REALServicing. The overall in@se in cost of revenue was consis
with the increase in service revenue. However, @rsgtion and benefits cost and outside fees anitssrexpense as a percentage of se
revenue decreased as we experienced the benefitrofvorkforce efficiency initiatives on higher refal volumes and transitioned

performance of certain services to lower cost gaoigies as well as vendor cost initiatives.

Cost of revenue for the year ended December 313 p0$374.7 million increased by 34 compared to the year ended December 31,
driven primarily by the growth of Ocwesnloan servicing portfolio on REALServicing. Outsifees and services increased at a greater ral
service revenue due to revenue mix, primarily tighér level of property inspection and preservatieferrals. Compensation and ben:
increased at a lower rate than service revenueeaegan to experience the benefit of our workf@ffigiency initiatives on higher refer
volumes even after carrying excess employees jpartof the year to support Mortgage Services'cimaited growth.

Gross profit increased to $305.6 million , représen47% of service revenue, for the year endedebier 31, 2014 compared $221.
million , representing 45% of service revenue,tf@ year ended December 31, 2013 and $167.2 milliepresenting 48%f service revenu
for the year ended December 31, 2012. We expandegdross profit margin in 2014 by fully utilizingrgployees that we were carrying in 2|
in anticipation of new business and performing aiarservices with our employees that were previopglrformed by outside vendors. -
increase in gross profit margin was also driverthgyimpact of revenue mix, partially offset by héglstaff levels in our origination and ret
property management businesses in preparatiomfarigated growth. In 2013, the decrease in grogsyin percentage compared to 2012
primarily attributable to revenue mix of serviceslidered and the timing of boarding new loans. Wpegienced higher growth in the lov
margin property inspection and preservation sesvicem the early referrals from the Homeward and@ portfolios, partially offset

lower compensation and benefits costs as a pegemtaservice revenue from process efficiencieskagter utilization. Property inspectic
are generally higher following the boarding of avrgortfolio.

Our margins can vary substantially depending upervise revenue mix and when Ocwen acquires anddboaervicing rights on
REALServicing. Typically, compensation and benefitdl increase in anticipation of a boarding as tiee and train personnel to deli
services in advance of the actual boarding of lo@n&r time, these costs as a percentage of semi@mue decline as we generate rev
with no increased costs and as we experience lterfiefim our workforce efficiency initiatives. Wherew loans are boarded by Ocwen «
REALServicing, for the initial months pobbarding, we tend to deliver an elevated levelosfdr margin residential property valuation
property inspection and preservation services.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expenses ardrme from Operations

SG&A expenses consist of the following for the weanded December 31:

% Increase % Increase

(in thousands) 2014 (decrease) 2013 (decrease) 2012

Compensation and benefits $ 1,72¢ 126 $ 765 N/M  $ 77
Professional services 8,29¢ N/M 1,661 (65) 4,79¢
Occupancy related costs 10,08¢ 8 9,30¢ 3 9,04¢
Amortization of intangible assets 27,77( 32 21,05¢ N/M 2,68¢
Depreciation and amortization 2,031 104 994 134 42~
Marketing costs 23,77: N/M 4,907 97 2,48¢
Other 20,99 168 7,82¢ 40 5,57¢
Selling, general and administrative expenses $ 94,67¢ 104 $ 46,51¢ g5 $ 25,09¢

N/M — not meaningful.

SG&A for the year ended December 31, 2014 of $®dillion increased by 104%ompared to the year ended December 31, 2013, rilsn
driven by marketing costs largely related to Huldzigher legal costs and bad debt expense in 20d4remeased amortization of intangi
assets recorded in connection with the acquisitiothe Homeward and ResCap feased businesses. Bad debt expense increased4rbg
$12.0 million, driven primarily from the default magement services business. A change in our cussbmesiness model and fourth qua
2014 discussions with these customers led us tevaethat a portion of the accounts receivablermdads no longer collectible. SG&A for 1
year ended December 31, 2013$46.5 million increased by 85%ompared to the year ended December 31, 2012, filgnekiven by the
increase in amortization expense from the 2013 iattipuns of the Homeward and ResCap based businesses partially offset by hii
professional services costs incurred in 2012 imecotion with the Separation of the Residential ABsesinesses.

Income from operations increased to $210.9 millioepresenting 32%f service revenue, for the year ended Decembe2@®1l4 compared
$174.9 million , representing 36% of service revagrfor the year ended December 31, 2013 and $Idiflitn , representing 40%f service
revenue, for the year ended December 31, 20t .decrease in operating income margin is primalrilven by higher Hubzu marketing cc
and increases in the amortization of intangibletssecorded in connection with the Homeward argl0Re feebased business acquisitions
the other increases in SG&A, as discussed abo#014, the decrease in operating income marginpaetgally offset by the higher gross pr:
margin, as discussed above. In 2013, the operatamne margin was impacted by lower gross profitgims and higher amortization expense.

Financial Services
Revenu

Revenue by service line was as follows for the yeaded December 31.:

% Increase % Increase
(in thousands) 2014 (decrease) 2013 (decrease) 2012
Service revenue:
Customer relationship management $ 51,41 13 $ 45,68( 33 $ 34,391
Asset recovery management 46,90: — 46,79¢ 58 29,58:
Total service revenue 98,31: 6 92,47¢ 45 63,97¢
Reimbursable expenses:
Asset recovery management 187 (62) 47¢ (12 54z
Total reimbursable expenses 187 (61) 47¢ (12 542
Total revenue $ 98,49¢ 6 3 92,95¢ 44  $ 64,52:

Revenue from related parties:



Asset recovery management $ 27,06 @ $ 2759 NM o $ 208

N/M — not meaningful.
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We recognized service revenue of $98.3 milliontfer year ended December 31, 2014,% 6icrease compared to the year ended Dece
31, 2013, primarily due to growth in the custonmaationship management business from the additiorew clients and expansion of servi
provided to existing clients.

We recognized service revenue of $92.5 milliontfa year ended December 31, 2013, &Amcrease compared to the year ended Dece
31, 2012, primarily due to increased mortgage ahaffycollections and growth in customer relationsim@anagement revenues from
addition of two new clients during 2013 and expansof services provided to existing clients. Theréases were partially offset by lo\
credit card charge-off placements from record loedit card delinquency rates. With respect to tletgage chargeff business, we expanc
our capabilities in connection with the ResCap liased business transaction, and in the secondequdr2013, we began providing th
services to the ResCap loans serviced by Ocwem anéater portion of the other loans in the Ocwentfplio.

Certain of our Financial Services businesses apadted by seasonality. Revenue in the asset recavanagement business tends to be h
in the first quarter, as borrowers may utilize tafunds and bonuses to pay debts, and generallnegthroughout the rest of the year.

Cost of Revenue and Gross Profit

Cost of revenue consists of the following for tleags ended December 31:

% Increase % Increase

(in thousands) 2014 (decrease) 2013 (decrease) 2012

Compensation and benefits $ 47,06 13 $ 41,80( 28 $ 32,70(
Outside fees and services 3,361 (29 4,401 (27) 5,59¢
Reimbursable expenses 187 (62) 47¢ (12 54z
Technology and telecommunications 12,271 59 7,704 7 7,221
Depreciation and amortization 1,45(C 54 944 40 67=
Cost of revenue $ 64,33¢ 16 $ 55,32¢ 18 $ 46,73

Cost of revenue for the year ended December 314 201%64.3 million increased by 1% compared to the year ended December 31,
primarily due to higher compensation and benefists and higher technology and telecommunicatioiperese from investments in our
infrastructure to support revenue growth. Cosestnue for the year ended December 31, 2013 o8%$86Blion increased by 18 compared 1
the year ended December 31, 2012, driven primhbgilhigher compensation cost from an increase imtihmaber of employees in the mortg
chargeeff and customer relationship management busindsssspport revenue growth. These increases in Yedins were partially offset
lower outside fees and services as we experiemedenefit of our vendor cost reduction initiatives

Gross profit decreased to $34.2 million , represgn85% of service revenue, for the year ended Des 31, 2014 compared ®87.¢
million , representing 41% of service revenue,tf@ year ended December 31, 2013 and $17.8 milliepresenting 28%f service revenu
for the year ended December 31, 2012. In 2014 sgoosfit margin decreased due to higher technoboyy telecommunications expense f
investments in our IT infrastructure and an incesiasemployee costs due to increases in headcowupport revenue growth and a slight
in revenue mix. In 2013, gross profit as a peragniaf service revenue increased due to growthehtgher margin mortgage chargi-anc
customer relationship management services.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expenses ardrme from Operations

SG&A expenses consist of the following for the weanded December 31:

% Increase % Increase

(in thousands) 2014 (decrease) 2013 (decrease) 2012

Compensation and benefits $ 672 (38 $ 1,07¢ 9 $ 1,18¢
Professional services 98¢ N/M 273 (80) 1,374
Occupancy related costs 7,19:¢ 38 5,22( 3 5,36¢
Amortization of intangible assets 5,35¢ (9 5,88¢ 151 2,34¢
Depreciation and amortization 1,87(C 12¢ 82€ 34 617
Other 2,718 19 2,28t (10) 2,52¢
Selling, general and administrative expenses $ 18,79: 21 $ 15,57: 16 $ 13,41¢

N/M — not meaningful.

SG&A for the year ended December 31, 2014 of $&@lBon increased by 21% compared to the year er@diecember 31, 2013, principally
from higher occupancy related costs driven by higieadcount and facility relocations. SG&A for tfear ended December 31, 2013 of $15.6
million increased by 16% compared to the year emdkeckmber 31, 2012, primarily driven by higher atization expense from the 2013
acquisition of the ResCap fee-based business.

Income from operations was $15.4 million , repréisen16% of service revenue, for the year endedebdser 31, 2014 compared $82.1
million , representing 24% of service revenue,tf@ year ended December 31, 2013 and $4.4 millfepresenting 7%f service revenue, f
the year ended December 31, 2012. The decreaggenating income as a percentage of service revem@814 is the result of lower grc
profit margins and an increase in SG&A as a pesgmif service revenue, as discussed above. Infmmeoperations as a percentag
service revenue increased in 2013 compared to @0&20 higher gross margins and slower SG&A growéspite the increase in amortiza
expense from the acquisition of the ResCap feeebbgsiness.

Technology Services
Revenut

Revenue by service line was as follows for the yesded December 31:

% Increase % Increase

(in thousands) 2014 (decrease) 2013 (decrease) 2012
Service revenue:
Software services $ 154,40:. 12¢  $ 67,31¢ 41 % 47,77
IT infrastructure services 75,96¢ 10¢€ 36,57 38 26,41¢
Total revenue $ 230,36 122 9 103,89: 40 $ 74,18¢
Revenue from related parties:
Software services
$ 53,11« 56 $ 34,03: 63 $ 20,89
IT infrastructure services 42,36 157 16,49¢ 59 10,35!
Total $ 95,48: gg $ 50,52’ 62 9 31,24:

We recognized service revenue of $230.4 million tfee year ended December 31, 2014, a #®22ncrease compared to the year el
December 31, 2013, primarily driven by increasesdftware services as a result of the acquisitibRquator in November 2013, includi
recognition of acquisition related deferred revemueacreased licensing revenue from REALDoc andwmtioin Ocwens residential lozg
servicing portfolio on REALServicing. IT infrastrure services revenue also increased in 2014 dae tacrease in headcount and cos



both Ocwen and Altisource, which are typically dxllon a cost plus basis.

We recognized service revenue of $103.9 milliontfier year ended December 31, 2013, &4Bcrease compared to the year ended Dece
31, 2012, primarily due to growth in software seed related to Ocwesnloan servicing portfolio on REALServicing. Reveralso increased
software services from the November 2013 acquisitioEquator. IT infrastructure
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services revenue increased in 2013 due to an eErea costs to support strategic initiatives anddeeunt growth at both Ocwen
Altisource.

For segment presentation purposes, revenue frowcssrprovided by Technology Services to our otleportable segments is eliminate:
consolidation. This intesegment revenue is included as revenue in the démim Services segment and as technology and tal@cmication
expense, a component of cost of revenue and SG&&uti other reportable segments.

Cost of Revenue and Gross Profit

Cost of revenue consists of the following for tteags ended December 31:

% Increase % Increase
(in thousands) 2014 (decrease) 2013 (decrease) 2012
Compensation and benefits $ 132,70: 162 $ 50,36¢ 89 $ 26,60:
Outside fees and services 1,87t ©)] 1,92¢ 14 1,69(
Technology and telecommunications 42,11% 10t 20,54¢ 13 18,15¢
Depreciation and amortization 17,60¢ 51 11,69¢ 43 8,18t
Cost of revenue $ 194,30: 13¢ $ 84,53¢ 55 $ 54,63

Cost of revenue for the year ended December 314 20$194.3 million increased by 138 compared to the year ended December 31,
primarily due to the acquisition of Equator and tiiéng of more and higher cost personnel to suptha development of our next genera
technologies. Technology and telecommunicationtsagsere higher primarily as a result of the acdigisiof Equator, the increase in empla
headcount and the expansion of facilities. Dept@riaand amortization increased as a result of a@épy new hardware and softw
applications as well as the acquisition of Equator.

Cost of revenue for the year ended December 313 20$84.5 million increased by 36 compared to the year ended December 31, 201
primarily due to hiring more and higher cost persrto support the development of our next genamatchnologies. In addition, we acqu
Equator in November 2013 and recognized Equatoo’st of revenue from the date of acquisition. lejation and amortization increase!
2013 primarily as a result of our 2012 investmeara disaster recovery center.

Gross profit was $36.1 million , representing 16%service revenue, for the year ended December2@14 compared to $19.4 million
representing 19% of service revenue, for the yedee@ December 31, 2013 and $19.6 million , reptaser26%of service revenue, for t
year ended December 31, 2012. In 2014 and 2018s gnwfit as a percentage of service revenue demtledue to our continued investmer
our next generation technology, partially offsetthg acquisition of the higher margin Equator besi

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses ardrime from Operations

SG&A expenses consist of the following for the weanded December 31:

% Increase % Increase

(in thousands) 2014 (decrease) 2013 (decrease) 2012

Compensation and benefits $ 5,93¢ NM  $ 1,871 76 $ 1,062
Professional services 68¢€ 70 404 33 304
Occupancy related costs 12,25( 118 5,61( 25 4,49t
Amortization of intangible assets 4,55¢ N/M 1,22¢ N/M —
Depreciation and amortization 1,20t 58 763 167 28¢
Change in the fair value of Equator Earn Out (37,929 N/M — N/M —
Goodwill impairment 37,47: N/M — N/M —
Other 7,767 N/M 2,56¢ (6) 2,741
Selling, general and administrative expenses $ 31,95( 157 $ 12,44: 40 $ 8,88¢

N/M — not meaningful.



SG&A for the year ended December 31, 2014 of $3@l0on increased by 157%ompared to the year ended December 31, 2013, il
due to the acquisition of Equator, higher admiatste employee costs and increased occupancy detatgs driven by higher headcount
facility relocations as well as increased intangikéset amortization related to the Homeward asCRe
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fee-based business acquisitions and the Equator atiquisThe liability for contingent considerationrisflected at fair value and adjusted ¢
reporting period with the change in fair value gai@aed in earnings. During 2014, the fair valuglaf contingent consideration related to
Equator acquisition was reduced by $37.9 milliotthwa corresponding increase in earnings based orageaens revised estimates tl
expected earnings of Equator will be lower tharjguied at the time of acquisition. As a resulthe adjustment in the fair value of the Equ
contingent consideration and based on our goodygilessment, we determined that the Equator goodwsl impaired and recorded
impairment loss of $37.5 million for the year end®etember 31, 2014.

SG&A for the year ended December 31, 2013 of $ir#ildon increased by 40%ompared to the year ended December 31, 2012, pisirdae
to an increase in amortization expense from the32&dquisitions of the Homeward and ResCapbiaged businesses and Equator, hi
administrative employee costs and increased ocoypafated costs driven by higher headcount.

Income from operations was $4.1 million , represen2% of service revenue, for the year ended Déeei81, 2014 compared to $6.9 millipn
representing 7% of service revenue, for the yede@mecember 31, 2013 and $10.7 million , reprasgriid%of service revenue, for the yi
ended December 31, 2012. Income from operatiorss gercentage of service revenue decreased in 2012413 due to increased emplc
and occupancy related costs and intangible assettization related to the Homeward and ResCapbBesed business acquisitions anc
Equator acquisition and the impact of the declingrbss profit margins, as discussed above.

Corporate Items and Eliminations
Corporate Items and Eliminations include interegtemse and costs related to corporate supportifunscincluding executive, finance, lec
compliance, human resources, vendor managemeiit,arid operational effectiveness and marketing. I$b a@ncludes eliminations

transactions between the reportable segments.

Corporate costs consist of the following for thangeended December 31:

% Increase % Increase

(in thousands) 2014 (decrease) 2013 (decrease) 2012

Compensation and benefits $ 36,76: 52 % 24,15( 28 % 18,83¢
Professional services 8,62¢ 52 5,68¢ 68 3,381
Occupancy related costs 8,73¢ 5 8,29( 61 5,13¢
Depreciation and amortization 2,44z 19 2,05( 60 1,281
Other (709) (22) (892 (33 (1,339
Selling, general and administrative expenses 55,86 42 39,28: 44 27,31(
Other expense, net 23,42¢ 2C 19,59: N/M 1,03
Total corporate costs $ 79,28 3 $ 58,87: 106 $ 28,34!

N/M — not meaningful.

Corporate costs for the year ended December 314 20%$79.3 million increased by 35%mpared to the year ended December 31, .
primarily due to higher compensation and employdated costs, legal and compliance related costsraerest expense. We incurred hig
compensation and employee related costs as wexpa@ding certain corporate functions to supportamntinued growth.

Corporate costs for the year ended December 313 20$58.9 million increased by 108&8bmpared to the year ended December 31, .
primarily due to higher compensation and employdated costs, consulting expenses, depreciatioraamattization expenses, lease costs
interest expense. We incurred higher compensationemployee related costs as we expanded certgiorede functions in 2013 to supg
our continued growth. The higher depreciation amdrdization and lease costs relate to the buildodutew facilities to support our contint
expansion. We reflect initial lease and other fgcilelated costs in our Corporate segment unélfécilities are approximately 40% occug
by the business unit(s), at which time the costilected in the respective segment or segmemtahfiial statements.
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Interest expense for the year ended December 34, 28s $23.4 million , an increase of $3.1 millammpared to the year ended Decembe
2013 resulting from the additional $200.0 millioensor secured term loan borrowings on August 1,4284d the additiong$200.0 millior
senior secured term loan borrowings on May 7, 2@&Btially offset by lower interest rates from thenior secured term loan refinancing
December 9, 2013. Interest expense for the yeaceBeécember 31, 2013 was $20.3 million , an in@ed$19.1 millioncompared to the ye
ended December 31, 2012 resulting from the insgadior secured loan borrowing in the fourth quasfe2012 and the addition&200.0 millior
senior secured term loan borrowings on May 7, 20¥8.recognized interest income of $0.1 millifmm the year ended December 31, 2
Additionally, we recognized interest income of $@n8lion and $0.2 millionfor the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012ecteely
primarily from a $75.0 million loan to Ocwen, whigras repaid in February 2013.

Intercompany revenue that is eliminated in consti@h increased for the year ended December 314 2@inpared to the years en
December 31, 2013 and 2012. These intercompangactions primarily consisted of IT infrastructurendces. While the expenses
recognized in the Mortgage Services and Finana@ali€es segments above, the elimination of thepereses is reflected in Corporate It
and Eliminations.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Liquidity

Our primary source of liquidity is cash flows frasperations. We seek to deploy excess cash genénagedisciplined manner. Principally,
intend to use excess cash to develop complemesgavices and businesses that we believe will gémat&ractive margins in line with our ¢
capabilities and strategy. We may consider busiaeggisitions and other opportunities that mayeaftiem time to time. During January 20
we used $4.0 millioto repurchase Altisource common stock. Our relatigm with Ocwen is subject to a number of risks andertainties th
could result in changes to our relationship andehaw adverse effect on our liquidity. See Item IAPart |, “ Risk Factors.” We intend t
closely monitor the Ocwen related uncertainties gndhodify our business plan as needed in respdsa result of these uncertainties,
intend to increase our cash and cash equivalestigrothroughout 2015. However, we will continwemhonitor market conditions, and may
some point in the future, consider repurchasingconnmon stock and/or our debt if conditions arefable.

Senior Secured Term Loan

On November 27, 2012, we entered into a sevensaaor secured term loan agreement with Bank of dgagN.A. as administrative age
pursuant to which we borrowed $200.0 millio®n May 7, 2013, we amended the senior securedlan agreement to increase the prin
amount of the senior secured term loan by $200Ibomiand to increase the maximum permitted amount ofriReed Junior Payments |
defined in the senior secured term loan agreemartyding increasing the amount of Company shepurchases permitted, among o
changes. On December 9, 2013, we entered into AmentdNo. 2 (“Second Amendmenty) the senior secured term loan agreement in v
we incurred indebtedness in the form of Refinanddedpt (as defined in the senior secured term Igareanent), the proceeds of which v
used to refinance, in full, the term loans outstagdinder the senior secured term loan agreemantilately prior to the effectiveness of
Second Amendment. The Refinancing Debt bearsasteit lower rates and has a maturity date appaigignone year later than the prior y
term loans. Generally, the margin applied to eitter Adjusted Eurodollar rate or the Base Ratejedsed in the senior secured term |
agreement, was reduced by 1 percentage point anffoibr was reduced by 0.25 percentage points.Sd¢wmnd Amendment further modif
the senior secured term loan agreement to, amdreg changes, increase the maximum permitted anafuRestricted Junior Payments.
August 1, 2014, we entered into Amendment No. hifd Amendment”}to the senior secured term loan agreement to iseréd& principi
amount of the term loan commitments under the ses@oured term loan agreement by $200.0 miléiod, among other changes, increas
maximum amount of permitted Restricted Junior Paysby $200.0 million Under the terms of the senior secured term laaamended, v
have the ability to request to borrow up to $20@illion of additional debt under an accordion provisione Ténders of the senior secured t
loan, as amended, have no obligation to providesais additional debt under the accordion provision

After giving effect to the Third Amendment, the Reincing Debt must be repaid in equal consecutuatgrly principal installments 1.5
million , which commenced on September 30, 2014, with #ienlce due at maturity. All amounts outstandingeuritie senior secured te
loan agreement will become due on the earlier pD@cember 9, 2020, being the seventh annivershitheo closing date of the Secc
Amendment, and (ii) the date on which the loansdeelared to be due and owing by the administragigent at the request (or with
consent) of the Required Lenders (as defined irsémior secured term loan agreement) upon the @owe of any event of default under
senior secured term loan agreement. However, driye ratios, as defined in the senior secured leam agreement, exceed 3.00 to 1.@0
percentage of cash flows must be used to repay
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principal. No mandatory prepayments were requingtihd the year ended December 31, 2014. Intergsheats are due monthly. The inte
rate as of December 31, 2014 was 4.50% .

The debt covenants in the senior secured termdgagement limit, among other things, our abilityirtour additional debt, pay dividends i
repurchase stock. In the event we require additiam#dity, our ability to obtain it may be limiteby the senior secured term loan.

Cash Flows

The following table presents our cash flows forykars ended December 31:

% Increase % Increase

(in thousands) 2014 (decrease) 2013 (decrease) 2012

Net income adjusted for non-cash items $ 224,67 18 $ 190,65 31 $ 145,67
Changes in operating assets and liabilities (27,180) N/M (5,187) (82) (29,149
Net cash flows provided by operating activities 197,49: 6 185,47- 59 116,52¢
Net cash flows used in investing activities (101,269 (53 (215,94:) 95 (110,56
Net cash flows (used in) provided by financing tigs (65,18¢) (21¢) 55,29 (18) 67,41:
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 31,03} 25 24,82 (66) 73,37
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 130,32- 24 105,50: 22¢ 32,12¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 161,36 24 $ 130,32 24 $ 10550:

N/M — not meaningful.
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash flows from operating activities generally densf the cash effects of transactions and ev#ras enter into the determination of
income. For the year ended December 31, 2014, wergied cash flows from operating activities of BEamillion , or approximately $0.2%br
every dollar of service revenue compared to cashisflfrom operating activities of $185.5 millionr, approximately $0.28r every dollar c
service revenue for the year ended December 31 and $116.5 million of cash flows from operatioos approximately $0.2per dollar o
service revenue for the year ended December 32. 20t increase in cash flows from operations du2i@14 compared to 2013 is princip:
driven by the increase in net income after addiagkldepreciation and amortization, including theogtimation of intangible assets, parti
offset by unfavorable working capital changes. @eanin working capital were principally due to heglaccounts receivable from reve
growth and the timing of collections. The decreiaseash flows from operating activities per dokdirservice revenue is primarily the resul
lower operating income as a percentage of serei¢ernue and, to a lesser extent, timing differefmte®nverting accounts receivables to ¢
The increase in cash flows from operating actisiti@ring 2013 compared to 2012 was primarily duthéoincrease in net income, after ad
back depreciation and amortization, including amation of intangible assets and favorable charigeworking capital, particularly tt
collection of accounts receivable.

In periods of growth, operating cash flows per s&rvevenue dollar can be negatively impacted beeadf the nature of some of our servi
Certain services are performed immediately follayvor shortly after the referral, but the collectiohthe receivable does not occur un
specific event occurs (e.g., the foreclosure ismeta, the REO asset is sold, etc.). As we grow,receivables also grow and our cash fl
from operations may be negatively impacted whengaoing one period to another.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Cash flows from investing activities include capiexpenditures of $64.8 million , $34.1 million ai$85.6 million for the years end:
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectivelyagrily related to facility buildsuts and investments in IT infrastructure, the Eop
integration and the development of our next gef@raechnologies.

On November 21, 2014, we acquired Owners.com f@&&inillion plus contingent consideration of up$6.0 million. On September 1
2014, we acquired Mortgage Builder for $14.9 miilip net of acquired cash of $0.7 million , plus taogent consideration of up 7.C
million .

On March 29, 2013, we acquired the Homeward feedasisiness from Ocwen for $75.8 million , aftevaking capital and pracquisitior
net income adjustment payment by Ocwen totaling Birillion , which we received in September 2013. On April 2213, we entered into
agreement with Ocwen to establish additional tenetegted to the existing servicing arrangements
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between Altisource and Ocwen in connection with @c\s acquisition of certain mortgage servicing folah assets of ResCap. The ¢
consideration paid by Altisource to Ocwen underResCap agreements totaled $128.8 milli@n November 15, 2013, we acquired Eqt
for initial consideration of $63.4 millionbefore a working capital adjustment payment mades to the sellers in 2014. On March 31, 2
we sold our 49% interest in Correspondent One §@orrespondent One”) to Ocwen for $12.6 millio®n February 15, 2013, Ocwen rej
the $75.0 million loan that it borrowed from usDecember 2012.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Cash flows from financing activities for the yearded December 31, 2014 primarily include activiss@ciated with debt proceeds, sl
repurchases, stock option exercises and paymenmtsri@ontrolling interests. On August 1, 2014, veerbwed $200.0 milliorin connectio
with amending our senior secured term loan agregnzend received $198.0 million of cash proceedsaiesa $2.0 millionoriginal issu
discount. For the year ended December 31, 2014neuered debt issuance costs of $2.6 milljon connection with the debt issuances. Fo
year ended December 31, 2014, we s1$255.7 million to repurchase our common stock. Stgtion exercises provided proceeds$afi
million . During 2014, we repaid $5.0 million ofehborrowings under the senior secured term loan distibuted $2.6 million to non-
controlling interests.

Cash flows from financing activities for the yearded December 31, 2013 primarily included actidgsociated with debt proceeds,
issuance costs, share repurchases, stock optioniseseand payments to noontrolling interests. On May 7, 2013, we amended senio
secured term loan agreement to increase the painaipount of the senior secured term loan by $260lon and received $201.0 million
including a $1.0 milliororiginal issue premium. We also incurred debt ieseacosts of $2.4 million in connection with theesmdment. O
December 9, 2013, we entered into the Second Amentrthe proceeds of which were used to refinaimcé&yll, the $397.5 millionof terrr
loans outstanding and included an original issweealint of $0.5 million. We incurred an addition@.& million of debt issuance costs
connection with the Second Amendment. In 2013, pens$141.0 milliorto repurchase our common stock and stock optiorceses provide
proceeds of $6.9 million . Also during 2013, weaip$3.5 million of the borrowings under the sersecured term loan and $0.2 milliof
capital lease obligations and distributed $4.2iomlko non-controlling interests.

Cash flows from financing activities for the yearded December 31, 2012 primarily included actidgsociated with debt proceeds,
issuance costs, the distribution of cash in conmeatith the Separation of the Residential AssesiBesses, share repurchases, stock ¢
exercises and payments to non-controlling interé&tsNovember 27, 2012, we entered into a $200lomisenior secured term loan, wh
included an original issue discount of $2.0 millipand incurred related debt issuance costs of $dl®n . A total of $105.0 millionof the
senior secured term loan proceeds were distribint&@kcember 2012 in connection with the Separatibtihhe Residential Asset Businesse:
2012, we spent $16.8 million to repurchase our comstock and stock option exercises provided pideeé $3.2 million. Also during 201:
we distributed $7.1 million to non-controlling iméssts.

Liquidity Requirements after December 31, 2014

In November 2013, we completed the acquisition giidor. The purchase agreement provided for thenpatof up to $80 million in potent
additional consideration determined based on Equafajusted EBITA (as defined in the purchase agrent) in the three consecutive 12
month periods following closing. Up to $22.5 mitliof this potential additional consideration cobilearned in each of the first two dntt
periods, and up to $35.0 million could be earnethenthird 12month period. Any amounts earned upon the achiemenfeAdjusted EBIT/
thresholds are payable through 2017. We may, atlisaretion, pay up to 20% of each payment of drthis potential additional considerat

in shares of Company restricted stock, with theuhed to be paid in cash. As of December 31, 20&4estimated the fair value of the poter
additional consideration related to the Equatougition to be $8.1 million . No payment was earmeding the initial 12month period. Th
amount ultimately paid will depend on Equator'suattAdjusted EBITA in the three consecutive 12-niopériods following closing.

On September 12, 2014, we acquired Mortgage Buillee Mortgage Builder purchase agreement provideshe payment of up t87.C
million in potential additional consideration based on Athd Revenue (as defined in the purchase agreenvéathave estimated the 1
value of the Mortgage Builder potential additiosahsideration to be $1.6 millicsss of December 31, 2014. The amount ultimately palk
depend on Mortgage Builder's Adjusted Revenue @ed in the Purchase and Sale Agreement) inhtteetconsecutive 12wonth period
following closing.

On November 21, 2014, we acquired Owners.com. TivaeBs.com purchase agreement provides for a payofenp to $7.0 millionof
potential additional consideration based on revezar@ed in the two consecutive ®nth periods following closing. We have estimatiee
fair value of the Owners.com contingent consideratd be $1.9 millioras of December 31, 2014. The amount ultimately paliddepend o
Owners.com’s revenue earned in the two conseclifiveonth periods following closing.
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During the first quarter of 2015, we expect to rilxtte $0.6 million to the Lenders One membersasenting norcontrolling interests, rep.
$1.5 million of outstanding principal under the isersecured term loan and pay $6.7 million of iatgrexpense under the senior secured
loan.

We believe that we will generate sufficient cagiwi from operations to fund capital expenditured eguired debt and interest payment:
the next 12 months.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ESTIMATES AND RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENT

We prepare our consolidated financial statemengcaordance with accounting principles generallyeated in the United States of Amer
In applying many of these accounting principles, weed to make assumptions, estimates and judgrtteattaffect the reported amounts
assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses in owsatimated financial statements. We base our etsrend judgments on historical experie
and other assumptions that we believe are reasounabler the circumstances. These assumptions,adstirand judgments, however, are ¢
subjective. Actual results may be negatively affdcbased on changing circumstances. If actual ateane ultimately different from o
estimates, the revisions are included in our resaflbperations for the period in which the acarmbunts become known.

We have identified the critical accounting policesd estimates addressed below. We also have kdlgesiccounting policies, which invol
the use of assumptions, estimates and judgmenrtathaignificant to understanding our results. &aditional information, see Note 2 to
consolidated financial statements. Although wedwelithat our assumptions, estimates and judgmeetseasonable, they are based
information presently available. Actual results mdiffer significantly from these estimates undeffatent assumptions, judgments
conditions.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue from the services we provideccordance with ASC Topic 60Bevenue RecognitigiASC Topic 605”").ASC Topic
605 sets forth guidance as to when revenue izeshbr realizable and earned which is generallynndikof the following criteria are met: |
persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;glR)edy has occurred or services have been perfdrif®) the selles price to the buyer
fixed or determinable; and (4) collectability issenably assured. Generally, the contract termthése services are relatively short in dura
and we recognize revenue as the services are perfoeither on a per unit or a fixed price basis.

In the Mortgage Services segment, we recognizentexér the majority of the services we provide witge services have been performed
default processing services and certain propegggivation services, we recognize revenue ovegralied during which we perform the rela
services, with full recognition upon recording tie¢ated foreclosure deed or on closing of the eelaieal estate transaction. We record rev
associated with real estate sales on a net basie gerform services as an agent without assunhiegisks and rewards of ownership of
asset and the commission earned on the salexsdfiercentage.

In the Financial Services segment, we generally ear fees for asset recovery management servicagparcentage of the amount we co
on delinquent consumer receivables and chadfediortgages on behalf of our clients and recogmeavenue upon collection from the debi
We also earn fees for packaging and selling chaoffethortgages and recognize revenue after the ¢fathe notes and once the risks
rewards of the mortgage notes are transferredegtinchasers. In addition, we provide custometioglship management services for wt
we earn and recognize revenue on a per-persorcaiesr per-minute basis as the related serviceparformed.

In the Technology Services segment, we charge flwesur REALSuite platform based on the numberaznis on the system or on a pet
transaction basis. We record transactional revemuen the service is provided and other revenue hhprtased on the number of lo
processed or services provided. For Equatsoftware applications, we recognize revenue fesrangements with multiple deliverables
accordance with ASC Subtopic 605-Fgvenue Recognition: Multiple-Element ArrangemémSC 605-25"),and Securities and Exchai
Commission Staff Accounting Bulletin Topic 1Revenue RecognitiofSAB Topic 13”). ASC 60525 and SAB Topic 13 require ei
deliverable within a multipleleliverable revenue arrangement to be accounteaisfarseparate unit if both of the following ciisiesire met: (2
the delivered item or items have value to the custoon a standalone basis and (2) for an arrangetim@nincludes a general right of ret
relative to the delivered item(s), delivery or peniance of the undelivered item(s) is consideratbgiole and substantially in the selter’
control. Deliverables not meeting the criteriadocounting treatment as a separate unit are coohlarith a deliverable that meets that criter
Equator derives its revenue from platform servifaes, professional services fees and other serviemsator does not begin to recogi
revenue for platform services fees until these feeme billable, as the services fees are nodl #&el determinable until such time. Platfi
services fees are recognized ratably over the ehaoft the term of the contract with the customertlog minimum cancellation peric
Professional services fees consist primarily offigomation services related to customizing thefplan for individual customers
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and are generally billed as the hours are workegt @ the essential and specialized nature of dhéiguration services, these services dc
qualify as separate units of accounting separat@ fihe platform services as the delivered servilkesiot have value to the customer ¢
standalone basis. Therefore, the related feeseamrded as deferred revenue until the project gardiion is complete and then recogn
ratably over the longer of the term of the agreenwnthe estimated expected customer life. Othevises consist primarily of trainin
including agent certification and consulting seegicThese services are generally sold separatdha@nrecognized as revenue as the sel
are performed and earned. For Mortgage Buildemso# applications, we recognize subscription reesntatably over the contract te
beginning on the commencement date of each conRasenues for usadmsed transactions are generally recognized asstige occurs,
that is the point when the fee becomes fixed cerdeihable. Mortgage Builder generally invoicestougers on a monthly basis. We providk
infrastructure services to Ocwen, HLSS, Residerstied AAMC and charge for these services primarilyaocost plus basis, based on
number of employees that are using the applicajgtems and the number and type of licensed platfarsed by Ocwen, HLSS, Resider
and AAMC. We record revenue associated with impleaitéon services upon completion of the serviced ae record revenue frc
maintenance activity ratably over the related seryperiod.

Significant areas of judgment include the periogtrowhich we recognize property preservation reveané certain default managernr
services revenue.

Gooduwill and Identifiable Intangible Assets
Goodwill

We evaluate goodwill for impairment annually durithg fourth quarter or more frequently when an &e&eurs or circumstances change
manner that indicates the carrying value may natgoeverable. We first assess qualitative factordetermine whether it is more likely tt
not that the fair value of a reporting unit is lélsan its carrying value as a basis for determinuhgther we need to perform the quantite
two-step goodwill impairment test. Only if we deténe, based on qualitative assessment, that ioie dikely than not that a reporting usit’
fair value is less than its carrying value will e&culate the fair value of the reporting unit. Weuld then test goodwill for impairment by fi
comparing the book value of net assets to thevtline of the reporting units. If the fair valuedstermined to be less than the book vall
second step is performed to compute the amoumhpéirment as the difference between the estimatied/dlue of goodwill and the carryi
value. We estimate the fair value of the reportinifs using discounted cash flows. The discountsh dlow method is based on the pre
value of projected cash flows. Forecasts of futagh flows are based on our estimate of futures sald operating expenses, based primari
estimated pricing, sales volumes, market segmereshkost trends and general economic conditioedaid estimates of discounted cash fl
involve businesses with limited financial histompdadeveloping revenue models. The estimated castsfare discounted using a rate
represents our weighted average cost of capital.

During 2014, as a result of the decline in fairueabf the Equator Earn Out, management evaluatdddatermined that Equator good\
should be tested for impairment. The decline im f@lue of the Equator Earn Out was based on manages estimate that the expec
earnings of Equator would be lower than those ptepkat the time of acquisition. Consequently, migaited a quantitative twetep goodwil
impairment test by comparing the carrying valughaf net assets of Equator to its fair value basea discounted cash flow analysis.
determined, based on this assessment, that thevdhie of Equator was less than its carrying vane the resulting Equator good\
impairment was approximately $37.5 milligrwhich is reflected as a component of SG&A in tdomsolidated statements of operations
Note 18).

Because we recorded an impairment of goodwill duen interim period in 2014, we elected to bypassititial analysis of qualitative factc
and perform a quantitative twsiep goodwill impairment test of all of our repogiunits during our annual testing in the fourtlager of 201<
For purposes of the annual goodwill impairment sssent, our reporting units are our reportable segsn We calculated the fair value of €
of our reporting units by using a discounted cdetv fanalysis. As of December 31, 2014, the faiueabf the Mortgage Services, Finan
Services and Technology Services reporting uniteeded their carrying values by a significant mar@ionsequently, we determined tha
further goodwill impairment existed as of Decem®gr 2014. There were no goodwill impairments in201 2012.

Identifiable Intangible Asse

Identified intangible assets consist primarily aomer relationships, acquired trade names addnrarks. We perform tests for impairmel
conditions exist that indicate the carrying valuaymmot be recoverable. When facts and circumstamzbsate that the carrying value
intangible assets determined to have definite ey not be recoverable, management assessesctheerability of the carrying value

preparing estimates of cash flows of discrete igitsle assets consistent with models utilized faerinal planning purposes. If the sum of
undiscounted expected future cash flows is less tihea carrying value, we would
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recognize an impairment to the extent the carrgimpunt exceeds fair value. Based on the 2014, 28d2012 cash flow analyses prepare
management for certain of the intangible assetémpairments of intangible assets were recordedhferyears ended December 31, 2014,
and 2012.

Acquisitions

For those acquisitions that meet the definitiom tusiness combination, we allocate the purchase, pncluding any contingent considerat
to the assets acquired and the liabilities assushekeir estimated fair values as of the date efabquisition with any excess of the purcl
price paid over the estimated fair value of neetsacquired recorded as goodwill. The fair valtithe assets acquired and liabilities asst
is typically determined by using either estimatéseplacement costs or discounted cash flow vadnathethods. When determining the
value of tangible assets acquired, we estimatectist to replace the asset with a new asset takiteg donsideration such factors as

condition and the economic useful life of the as¥éihen determining the fair value of intangibleessacquired, we estimate the applic
discount rate and the timing and amount of futxghcflows, including rate and terms of renewal attdtion. The determination of the fit
purchase price and the fair values on the acquisiate of the identifiable assets acquired arallii@s assumed may extend over more

one period and result in adjustments to the preknyi estimate recognized.

Accounting for Income Taxes

We are subject to income taxes principally in Lukenrg, the United States, India and the Philippirg&gnificant judgment is required
evaluating our tax positions and determining owvfgion for income taxes. During the ordinary ceuos business, there are many transac
and estimates for which the ultimate tax deternmatay vary from year to year. For example, odedive tax rates could be advers
affected by lower than anticipated earnings in ¢oes where we have lower effective tax rates aigtidr than anticipated earnings in coun
where we have higher effective tax rates, by chamgéoreign currency exchange rates or by chaig#e relevant tax, accounting and o
laws, regulations, principles and interpretationge are subject to audits in various taxing jurisdits, and such jurisdictions may as:
additional income tax during an examination. Althbwe believe our recorded tax liabilities are isight to support our future tax liabilitie
the final determination of tax audits and any editigation could differ from the balances we @accrued.

Future Adoption of a New Accounting Pronouncement

In May 2014, FASB issued Accounting Standards Upddd. 2014-09Revenue from Contracts with Customérkis standard establishe
single comprehensive model for entities to useceooanting for revenue arising from contracts witlstomers and supersedes most cu
revenue recognition guidance. The core princilthe new standard is an entity should recognizemae to depict the transfer of promi
goods or services to customers in an amount tflatte the consideration to which the entity expdotbe entitled in exchange for those gt
or services. This new standard will be effectiee &nnual reporting periods beginning after Decenilie 2016, including interim peric
within that reporting period. Early adoption istp@rmitted. The Company is currently evaluating impact this new guidance may hawvi
its results of operations and financial position.
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OTHER MATTERS

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Our off-balance sheet arrangements consist of esanal trust arrangements and operating leases.

We hold customersassets in escrow and trust accounts at variousdiakinstitutions pending completion of certaimlrestate activities. V!
also hold cash in trust accounts at various fireriostitutions where contractual obligations maedaaintaining dedicated bank account:
Financial Services collections. These amounts até im escrow and trust accounts for limited pesiad time and are not included in
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Amowhdsif escrow and trust accounts were $62.5 mildod $71.8 milliorat December 3
2014 and 2013, respectively.

Contractual Obligations, Commitments and Contingenies

Our long-term contractual obligations generallylude our longeerm debt and operating lease payments on cerfawuio property an
equipment. The following table sets forth informoatrelating to our contractual obligations as ot&maber 31, 2014:

Payments due by period

Less than More than
(in thousands) Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Non-cancelable operating lease obligations $ 6347¢ $ 1792 $ 27,19¢ $ 13,001 $ 5,35¢
Long-term debt 591,54: 5,94¢ 11,89( 11,89( 561,81
Contractual interest paymerits 153,63¢ 26,51¢ 52,23¢ 51,16¢ 23,71¢
Total $ 80866( $ 50,38 $ 9132« $ 76,051 $ 590,89:

@ Represents estimated future interest payments iosenior secured term loan based on applicablesistieates as of December 31, 2!

For further information, see Notes 14 and 22 tocihresolidated financial statements.
Related Parties
Ocwen

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 an2, 2 generated Mortgage Services segment reveaae @cwen of $528.3 million
$421.3 million and $306.5 million respectively. For the years ended December 314,2P013 and 2012, we generated Financial Sel
segment revenue from Ocwen of $27.1 million , $2WiBion and $0.2 million, respectively. Also, for the years ended Decen®igr2014
2013 and 2012, we generated Technology Servicemesggrevenue from Ocwen of $95.4 million , $50.9lioni and $31.2 million,
respectively. Services provided to Ocwen during {riod included residential property valuaticeglrestate asset management and
trustee management services, property inspectiah pmaservation, insurance services, chafjemortgage collections, IT infrastructi
management services and software applicationsdirduour software platforms. We provided all seegiat rates we believe to be compai
to market rates.

We earn additional revenue on the portfolios sexiby Ocwen that is not considered related pangmee when a party other than Oc
selects Altisource as the service provider. Foryiars ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012ecegmized revenue of $256.0 millign
$161.9 million and $125.4 million , respectively the portfolios serviced by Ocwen that are notstered related party revenue.

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 ari] @xdven billed us $38.6 million , $20.0 millionca$13.5 million, respectively, for da
access fees and contractor and/or employee codes magreements described in Note 4 to the congetidinancial statements. These amao
are reflected as a component of cost of reventieeiitonsolidated statements of operations. On DieeeBi, 2014, we notified Ocwen that
are canceling the Data Access and Services Agrdeeféective March 31, 2015.
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For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 ari] @@lbilled Ocwen $4.5 million , $2.8 million aB&.7 million, respectively, and Ocw
billed us $6.1 million , $4.6 million and $3.2 nidlh , respectively, for other services provided undier agreements described in Note 4 t
consolidated financial statements. These amouatseflected as a component of SG&A in the constdidiatatements of operations.

On December 27, 2012, we entered into a seniorcunsé term loan agreement with Ocwen under whicHoaaed $75.0 milliorio Ocwen
Payments of interest were due quarterly at a rat@pnum equal to the Eurodollar Rate (as defingdé agreement) plus 6.75%rovided the
the Eurodollar Rate was not less than 1.5 February 15, 2013, Ocwen repaid the outstgngliimcipal amount of this loan and all accr
and unpaid interest and the term loan was termindi¢erest income related to this loan was $0.aniand $0.1 millionfor the years end:
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively ( no coamipe amount for 2014).

On January 31, 2013, we entered into non-bindittgrie of intent with Ocwen to acquire certain feeséd businesses associated with Ocsver
acquisitions of the Homeward and ResCap servicortfglios. Ocwen acquired the Homeward servicingtfipio on December 27, 2012 ¢
the ResCap servicing portfolio on February 15, 2048source acquired the Homeward feased businesses from Ocwen on March 29,
(see Note 5 to the consolidated financial stateg)eAftisource entered into an agreement with Ocareri\pril 12, 2013 to establish additio
terms related to our services in connection withRiesCap fee- based businesses (see Note 5 torthalidated financial statements).

Correspondent One and HLSS

In July 2011, we acquired an equity interest in rEgpondent One. Correspondent One purchased clomg#drming and governme
guaranteed residential mortgages from approvedgaget bankers. On March 31, 2013, we sold our #8&sest in Correspondent One
Ocwen for $12.6 million . For the years ended DemenB81, 2013 and 2012, we billed Correspondent IBse than $0.1 million an$l0.£
million , respectively (no comparative amount for 2014)e3dhamounts are reflected as a component of SG&#Aeinonsolidated statement:
operations. We also provided certain originatielated services to Correspondent One. We earneduevof $0.1 million and $0.3 millicior
the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, rasgecfor these services ( no comparative amoanp14).

HLSS is a publicly traded company whose primaryeotiye is the acquisition of mortgage servicinditigand related servicing advances, i
held for investment and other residential mortgedated assets. Under a support services agreememovide HLSS certain finance, hur
resources, tax and facilities services. For thesyeaded December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, welBilleSS $0.9 million , $0.7 millioranc
$0.6 million , respectively. These amounts areeéid as a component of SG&A in the consolidatatdstents of operations.

Residential and AAM!

Residential and AAMC were spuwff on December 21, 2012 and their equity was ithigted to our shareholders on December 24, 201
they are each separate publicly traded companisidential is focused on acquiring and managinglasifamily rental properties by acquir
sub-performing and noperforming residential mortgage loans as well aglsifamily homes at or following the foreclosusedesthroughout tf
United States. AAMC is an asset management companyding portfolio management and corporate goance services to Residential.

For purposes of governing certain ongoing relatigrs between Altisource, Residential and AAMC, wéeeed into certain agreements v
Residential and AAMC. We have agreements to proRdsidential with renovation management, lease gemant and property managen
services. In addition, we have agreements with deesial and AAMC to provide services such as fimgnieuman resources, faciliti
technology and insurance risk management. Funihethave separate agreements for certain servitaeddo income tax matters, tradern
licenses and technology services.

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2018jllwe Residential $16.0 million and $2.6 milligmespectively (no comparative amc
for 2012). This excludes revenue where we arerretaby Ocwen to provide services to Residerstimlans serviced by Ocwen. That reven
included in related party revenue from Ocwen. Feryears ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, we BRIC $0.1 millionand less the
$0.1 million, respectively, under the services agreements ibescin Note 4 to the consolidated financial stagata (no comparative amol
for 2012). These amounts are reflected in revenube consolidated statements of operations. litiaddfor the years ended December
2014 and 2013, we billed AAMC $0.9 million and $0rllion , respectively, under the services agreements idescin Note 4 to tt
consolidated financial statements (no comparatimeumt for 2012). These amounts are reflected asrgaonent of SG&A in the consolida
statements of operations.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK
Market Risk

Our financial market risk consists primarily oféengst rate risk and foreign currency exchange risk.
Interest Rate Risk

As of December 31, 2014, the interest rate chamgethe senior secured term loan was #&0The interest rate is calculated based o
Adjusted Eurodollar Rate (as defined in the sesémured term loan agreement) with a minimum fldd.00 % plus 3.50 %.

Based on the principal amount outstanding at Deeerith, 2014, a one percentage point increase irfEtimedollar rate would increase
annual interest expense by approximately $1.4 onillibased on the December 31, 2014 Adjusted EuradRfige. There would be no cha
in our annual interest expense if there was a enegntage point decrease in the Eurodollar Rate.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk
We are exposed to currency risk from potential glearin currency values of our foreign currency deinated expenses, assets, liabilities
cash flows. Our most significant foreign currencypesure relates to the Indian Rupee. Based on sgpencurred in Indian Rupees du

2014, a one percentage point increase or decreasdue of the Indian Rupee in relation to the BadiStates dollar would increase or decr
our annual expenses by $1.0 million .
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Alirge Portfolio Solutions S.A.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Altisource Portfolio Solutions S.Ad aubsidiaries (the “Company&s o
December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related coasetl statements of operations, consolidated stmtsnof equity, and cash flows for e
of the three years in the period ended Decembe@l4. Our audits also included the financial steet schedule listed in the Index at |
15. These financial statements and financial statg¢rachedule are the responsibility of the Compamnyanagement. Our responsibility i
express an opinion on the financial statementdiaadcial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversightuBiogUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finastiééments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digidg in the financial statements. An @
also includes assessing the accounting princigded and significant estimates made by managenmemtelhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial stateta@eferred to above present fairly, in all matierespects, the financial position of AltisoL
Portfolio Solutions S.A. and subsidiaries as of &aber 31, 2014 and 2013, and the results of thprations and their cash flows for eac
the three years in the period ended December 314,28 conformity with accounting principles gerisraaccepted in the United States
America. Also, in our opinion, such financial staent schedule, when considered in relation to #&cbconsolidated financial stateme
taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all mategapects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 4 to the consolidated findratimements, Ocwen Financial Corporation ("Ocwen"yelated party, is the Compai
largest customer. As discussed in Note 22 to thealaated financial statements, Ocwen has beersasubject to a number of pending fed
and state regulatory matters and is subject tor atha@lenges and uncertainties that could havefgignt adverse effects on Ocwen's busir
Note 22 also discusses the potential implicatidrth@se uncertainties to the Company including ehassociated with the possible cessati
the continuing relationship with Ocwen.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the

Company'’s internal control over financial reportiag of December 31, 2014, based on the criterabkstied ininternal Control—Integratec
Framework (2013issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatanthe Treadway Commission and our report datedcM&, 201
expressed an unqualified opinion on the Compamy&rmal control over financial reporting.

/sl Deloitte & Touche LLI
Atlanta, Georgia
March 2, 2015
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Alirge Portfolio Solutions S.A.:

We have audited the internal control over financegorting of Altisource Portfolio Solutions S.And subsidiaries (the “Company8s o
December 31, 2014, based on criteria establishéaténnal Control — Integrated Framework (201i8fued by the Committee of Sponso
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. As dbsdrinManagement’s Report on Internal Control over Finah&eporting, manageme
excluded from its assessment the internal contvel éinancial reporting for the businesses andaierassets acquired and certain liabil
assumed of Mortgage Builder Software, Inc. and Qwelvantage, LLC which were acquired on SeptemBef014 and November 21, 20
respectively, and whose combined financial statésneonstitute 5% of total assets and less than fl8venues and net income attributabl
Altisource as reflected in the consolidated finahstatement amounts as of and for the year en@éeébber 31, 2014. Accordingly, our a
did not include the internal control over financiaporting for the businesses and certain assefsirad and certain liabilities assumec
Mortgage Builder Software, Inc. and Owners Advaatdg C. The Compang’ management is responsible for maintaining effedtterna
control over financial reporting and for its assesnat of the effectiveness of internal control o¥iancial reporting, included in t
accompanying Management Report on Internal Cowtret Financial Reporting. Our responsibility isegpress an opinion on the Company’
internal control over financial reporting basedaam audits.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statglof the Public Company Accounting Oversight ld@nited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting w
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal cordgrar financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, and testing aatli@ing the design and operating effectivenedatefnal control based on the assessed
and performing such other procedures as we corsidecessary in the circumstances. We believethradudit provides a reasonable basi
our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed by, or under the supenvidi the compang’ principal executiv
and principal financial officers, or persons pemiorg similar functions, and effected by the companyoard of directors, management,
other personnel to provide reasonable assuranegdieg the reliability of financial reporting antdet preparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generally miedeaccounting principles. A compasyihternal control over financial reporting inclg
those policies and procedures that (1) pertaiheéanaintenance of records that, in reasonablel dataurately and fairly reflect the transacti
and dispositions of the assets of the companypi@jide reasonable assurance that transactione@weded as necessary to permit prepar
of financial statements in accordance with gengdtcepted accounting principles, and that receiptsexpenditures of the company are k
made only in accordance with authorizations of mgan@ent and directors of the company; and (3) peove&hsonable assurance regar
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asijjon, use, or disposition of the compasiyssets that could have a material effect o
consolidated financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcoinover financial reporting, including the pogsti of collusion or improper

management override of controls, material misstatémdue to error or fraud may not be preventedeatected on a timely basis. Al
projections of any evaluation of the effectivenet¢he internal control over financial reportingftdure periods are subject to the risk tha
controls may become inadequate because of changesnditions, or that the degree of compliance vifit policies or procedures n
deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialerespects, effective internal control over fical reporting as of December 31, 2(
based on the criteria establishedriternal Control — Integrated Framework (201i8sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatad
the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the

consolidated financial statements and financiaiestent schedule as of and for the year ended Dezmregih 2014 of the Company and
report dated March 2, 2015 expressed an unqualiffgdion on those financial statements and includedexplanatory paragraph regarc
significant transactions with Ocwen Financial Cogimn (“Ocwen”), a related party and an emphabe matter related to Ocwen uncertainty.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLI
Atlanta, Georgia
March 2, 2015
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ALTISOURCE PORTFOLIO SOLUTIONS S.A.

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Deferred tax assets, net
Total current assets

Premises and equipment, net
Deferred tax assets, net
Goodwill

Intangible assets, net

Other assets

Total assets

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Current portion of long-term debt
Deferred revenue
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, less current portion
Deferred tax liabilities, net
Other non-current liabilities

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except per share data)

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Commitments, contingencies and regulatory mattdote 22 )

Equity:

Common stock ($1.00 par value; 25,413 shares am#itband issued, and 20,279 outstanding, as of
December 31, 2014; 100,000 shares authorized, 2%40ied and 22,629 outstanding as of

December 31, 2013)
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings

Treasury stock, at cost (5,134 shares as of Dece®ih@014 and 2,784 shares as of December 31,

2013)
Altisource equity

Non-controlling interests
Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financétistents

December 31,

2014 2013

161,36 $ 130,32
112,18: 104,78°
23,56 10,99¢
4,987 2,831
302,09 248,94
127,75¢ 87,25:
— 622
90,85: 99,41«
245,24 276,16
22,26 17,65¢
788,22: $ 730,05:
111,76¢ $ 84,70¢
5,94¢ 3,97t
9,82¢ 36,74:
13,22° 10,13:
140,76° 135,55«
582,66 391,28:
2,691 —
20,64¢ 45,47¢
25,41 25,41
91,50¢ 89,27
367,96 239,56:

(444,49)) (197,549

40,39 156,69
1,04¢ 1,042
41,44 157,74
788,22: $ 730,05:
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ALTISOURCE PORTFOLIO SOLUTIONS S.A.

Consolidated Statements of Operations

(in thousands, except per share data)

Revenue
Cost of revenue

Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses

Income from operations
Other income (expense), net:
Interest expense
Other income (expense), net
Total other income (expense), net

Income before income taxes and non-controllingrexts
Income tax provision

Net income
Net income attributable to non-controlling intesest

Net income attributable to Altisource

Earnings per share:
Basic
Diluted

Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

Transactions with related parties included above:
Revenue
Cost of revenue
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Other income

For the years ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

$ 1,078,91 768,35 $ 568,361
707,18 492,48 366,20
371,73 275,87 202,15
201,28: 113,81 74,71
170,45: 162,06° 127,44
(23,369) (20,29:) (1,210

174 557 (1,58¢)

(23,189 (19,739 (2,799
147,26! 142,33: 124,64
(10,17%) (8,540) (8,739
137,08° 133,79: 115,91
(2,609) (3,820) (5,28/)

$ 134,48: 129,97 $ 110,62°
$ 6.2z 565 $ 4.7¢
$ 5.6¢ 51¢ $ 4.4%
21,62 23,07: 23,35¢

23,63 25,05: 24,96

$ 666,80 502,08 $ 338,22
38,61( 19,98: 13,46¢

(26¢) 56¢ (542)

— 777 86

See accompanying notes to consolidated financéstents
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ALTISOURCE PORTFOLIO SOLUTIONS S.A.

Consolidated Statements of Equity
(in thousands)

Altisource Equity

Balance, January 1, 2012

Net income

Contributions from norcontrolling
interest holders

Distributions to non-controlling
interest holders

Net assets distributed in connect
with the Separation of the
Residential Asset Businesses

Sharebased compensation expe!

Exercise of stock options

Repurchase of shares

Balance, December 31, 2012

Net income

Contributions from norcontrolling
interest holders

Distributions to non-controlling
interest holders

Sharebased compensation expel
Exercise of stock options
Repurchase of shares

Balance, December 31, 2013

Net income

Distributions to non-controlling
interest holders

Sharebased compensation expel
Exercise of stock options
Repurchase of shares

Balance, December 31, 2014

Non-
Additional Retained Treasury stock, controlling
Common stock paid-in capital earnings at cost interests Total
Shares
25,417 $ 2541 $ 83,22¢ $ 126,16: $ (72,049 $ 3,18¢ $ 165,94
— — — 110,62 — 5,28¢ 115,91:
— — — — — 43 43
— — — — — (7,145 (7,145
— — — (105,00() — — (105,00()
— — 3,64¢ — — — 3,64¢
— — — (7,661) 10,87¢ — 3,21¢
— — — — (16,78)) — (16,787
25,41 25,41 86,87 124,12 (77,959 1,37( 159,82¢
— — — 129,97: — 3,82( 133,79
— — — — — 28 28
_ — — — — (4,176) (4,176)
— — 2,40( — — — 2,40(
— — — (14,539 21,424 — 6,88t
— — — — (141,01 — (141,019
25,41 25,41 89,27: 239,56: (197,549 1,04z 157,74
— — — 134,48 — 2,60: 137,08
— — — — — (2,596 (2,596
— — 2,23¢ — — — 2,23¢
— — — (6,07 8,76¢ — 2,68¢
— — — — (255,715 — (255,715
2541 $ 25,417 $ 91,50¢ $ 367,96 $ (444,49H $ 1,04¢ $ 41,44

See accompanying notes to consolidated financétstents
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ALTISOURCE PORTFOLIO SOLUTIONS S.A.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in thousands)

For the years ended December 31,

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigenl by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of intangible assets
Change in the fair value of Equator Earn Out
Goodwill impairment
Share-based compensation expense
Equity in losses of investment in affiliate
Bad debt expense
Amortization of debt discount
Amortization of debt issuance costs
Deferred income taxes
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, neffetts of acquisitions:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Other current and non-current liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Additions to premises and equipment
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired
Loan to Ocwen
Proceeds from loan to Ocwen
Proceeds from sale of equity affiliate
Other investing activities
Change in restricted cash

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayment of long-term debt and payments on cdp#ak obligations

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt

Distribution of cash in connection with the Sep@amabf the
Residential Asset Businesses

Debt issuance costs

Proceeds from stock option exercises
Purchase of treasury stock

Contributions from non-controlling interests
Distributions to non-controlling interests

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equival

2014 2013 2012

$ 137,08 $ 133,79 $ 115091
29,04¢ 19,05¢ 12,77¢
37,68 28,17¢ 5,03(
(37,929 — —
37,47: — —
2,23¢ 2,40( 3,64¢
— 17€ 1,741
16,25’ 2,54¢ 3,04¢
317 227 27
1,151 95¢ 57
1,16€ 2,01¢ 2,99:
184 1,30¢ 445
(22,497 (5,602) (39,999
(12,50:) (2,817) (2,616)
(1,750 (1,586) 2,17¢
24,28t 7,381 11,65:
(14,729 (2,557 (352)
197,49: 185,47: 116,52¢
(64,846 (34,139 (35,569
(34,720 (267,94 —
— — (75,000

— 75,00 —

— 12,64¢ —
(300) (50) —
(1,402 (1,467 —
(101,269  (21594)  (110,56)
(4,95¢) (3,729 (60%)
198,00 200,50: 198,00(
— — (105,00()
(2,609) (3,200 (4,317)
2,68¢ 6,88¢ 3,21¢
(255,71) (141,019 (16,78:)
— 28 43
(2,59€) (4,176 (7,145)
(65,18%) 55,29; 67,41
31,03 24.82: 73,37



Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning oféhieg 130,32 105,50: 32,12¢

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period $ 161,36. $ 130,32: $ 105,50:

Supplemental cash flow information:
Interest paid $ 2182¢ $ 19,32¢ $ 1,13¢
Income taxes paid, net 13,34( 3,671 4,917

Non-cash investing and financing activities:

(Decrease) increase in payables for purchasesafipes and equipment $ (2,329 % 4552 $ 2,457
Decrease in acquisition of businesses from subsgguerking capital true-ups (3,71)) (2,039 —
Amortization of tax-deductible goodwiill — — 3,33¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financééstents.
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NOTE 1 — ORGANIZATION

Description of Business- Altisource Portfolio Solutions S.A., together Wwitts subsidiaries (which may be referred to astis@urce,”the
“Company,” “we,” “us” or “our”),is a premier marketplace and transaction solutposider for the real estate, mortgage and consuteb
industries offering both distribution and contéie leverage proprietary business process, venabek@etronic payment management soft\
and behavioral science based analytics to improteomes for marketplace participants.

We conduct our operations through threportable segments: Mortgage Services, Finaneali@&s and Technology Services. In addition
report our corporate related expenditures and eétions separately (see Note 23 for a descripti@muobusiness segments).

NOTE 2 — BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNI FICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting and Presentation The consolidated financial statements are preparadcordance with accounting principles gene
accepted in the United States of America (“GAARHtercompany and intesegment transactions and accounts have been ei@dirik
consolidation.

Principles of Consolidation- The financial statements include the accounth®@fCompany, its whollpwned subsidiaries and those entitie
which we have a variable interest and are the pyirbaneficiary.

The Mortgage Partnership of America, L.L.C. ("MPA§ wholly-owned subsidiary of Altisource, serves as the manad) Best Partne
Mortgage Cooperative, Inc. doing business as Len@sre Mortgage Cooperative (“Lenders On®MPA provides services to Lenders (
under a management agreement that ends on Dec8mb2025. MPA acts on behalf of Lenders One anthémbers principally to provide
members with education and training along with neseenhancing, cost reducing and market share digropportunities. For providii
these services, MPA receives payments from Len@daes and in some instances the vendors, basedrgyimpon the benefits achieved for
members. The management agreement provides MPAbnaid powers such as recruiting members for Len@ere, collection of fees a
other obligations from members of Lenders One, ggsing of all rebates owed to Lenders One and migot and executing contracts w
vendors including executing contracts on behalfexiders One.

The management agreement between MPA and LenderspOrsuant to which MPA is the management compéhyenders One, represen
variable interest in a variable interest entity. MiB the primary beneficiary of Lenders One asai lthe power to direct the activities that r
significantly impact Lenders Orgeeconomic performance and the obligation to ablmdes or the right to receive benefits from Lesadene
As a result, Lenders One is presented in the acaowipg consolidated financial statements on a dateted basis with the interests of
members reflected as non-controlling interestsofABecember 31, 2014, Lenders One had total as$e$3.7 millionand total liabilities ¢
$6.7 million . As of December 31, 2013, Lenders @ad total assets of $4.6 million and total lidtgs of $3.5 million .

Correction of Immaterial Errors - As previously disclosed, during 2014 we determitied while we properly identified our related pastir
previously issued financial statements, disclosofesertain immaterial related party expenses veenéted. We have corrected the previol
presented disclosures of related party expensh®ie 4 -Transactions with Related Partiesd on the face of the consolidated statemel
operations for the years ended December 31, 20d38h2. The impact of correcting these items innbh&es to the consolidated finan
statements had the effect of:

* increasing the amounts disclosed as relateg padt of revenue from Ocwen Financial Corporatod its subsidiaries (“Ocwenby
$20.0 million and $13.5 million for the years end®ecember 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively;

* increasing the amounts disclosed as sellingeg¢and administrative expenses from Ocwen b#litgAltisource by $1.7 millioanc
$0.7 million for the years ended December 31, 28182012, respectively;

» decreasing the amounts disclosed as sellinggrgeand administrative expenses from Altisourdknigs to Ocwen by $0.1 millioanc
less than $0.1 million for the years ended Decer8theP013 and 2012, respectively; and

» decreasing the amounts disclosed as selling, geaac administrative expenses from Altisource i to Altisource Ass
Management Corporation (“AAMC”) by $0.5 million fdhe year ended December 31, 2013 (adfustment for the year enc
December 31, 2012).

Correcting these items on the face of the conswliiatatements of operations resulted in the disciof related party cost of revenuebad.(
million and $13.5 million for the years ended Detem31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and a decrease
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previously disclosed related party selling, genarad administrative expenses by $2.4 million and $8illion for the years ended Decem
31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

In accordance with the Financial Accounting StaddeéBoard’s Accounting Standards Codification (*“A$Qbpic 250,Accounting Changs
and Error Corrections the Company evaluated the effect of the disclsund presentation errors on its previously issuedial and quartel
financial statements, both qualitatively and quatitiely, and concluded that the related partyldmaes in the Compang/’previously issue
annual and quarterly financial statements are regéerially misstated.

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith GAAP requires estimates and assumptionsdfiact the reporte
amounts of assets and liabilities, revenue andresgeeand related disclosures of contingent ligsliin the consolidated financial statem
and accompanying notes. Estimates are used forndiutimited to, determining shatesed compensation, income taxes, collectabili
receivables, valuation of acquired intangibles goddwill, depreciable lives of fixed assets andtomencies. Actual results could dif
materially from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents We classify all highly liquid instruments with aniginal maturity of three months or less at thetiof purchas
as cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable, Net Accounts receivable are net of an allowance forbtfoliaccounts that represents an amount that tima® to b
uncollectible. We have estimated the allowancedforbtful accounts based on our historical wotks, our analysis of past due accounts b
on the contractual terms of the receivables andissessment of the economic status of our custoihkr®wn. The carrying value of accou
receivable, net, approximates fair value.

Premises and Equipment, Net We report premises and equipment, net at cosstonated fair value at acquisition and depreciagsé asse
over their estimated useful lives using the straligle method as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 5 years

Office equipment 5 years

Computer hardware 5 years

Computer software 3-7 years

Leasehold improvements Shorter of useful life, 10 years or the term of leeese

Maintenance and repair costs are expensed as égcWWe capitalize expenditures for significant ioy@ments and new equipment
depreciate the assets over the shorter of theatiapidl asset’s life or the life of the lease.

We review premises and equipment for impairmentnelier events or changes in circumstances indibatehe carrying amount of an asse
asset group may not be recoverable. We measureanatslity of assets to be held and used by coraparof the carrying amount of an asst
asset group to estimated undiscounted future dasls expected to be generated by the asset or gissai. If the carrying amount of an a
or asset group exceeds its estimated future caslsflwe recognize an impairment charge for the arnthat the carrying value of the asse
asset group exceeds the fair value of the assetsat group.

Computer software includes the fair value of sofwacquired in business combinations and purchaséttvare. Purchased software
recorded at cost and amortized using the strdigatmethod over its estimated useful life. Sofvarcquired in business combination
recorded at its fair value and amortized usingsth@ight-line method over its estimated useful life

Business Combinations We account for acquisitions using the purchasthatkeof accounting in accordance with ASC Topic ,88sines
Combinations. The purchase price of an acquisition is allocdtethe assets acquired and liabilities assumetgusie fair values as of t
acquisition date.

Investment in Equity Affiliates - We utilize the equity method to account for invesiis in equity securities where we have the abit
exercise significant influence over operating aindricial policies of the investee. We include apprtionate share of losses of equity me
investees in equity losses of affiliates, net whiglincluded in other income (expense), net indbesolidated statements of operations.
review investments in equity affiliates for an attiean temporary impairment whenever events ouaiistances indicate that the carrying v
is greater than the fair value of the investmeuat e loss is other than a temporary decline.

Goodwill - Goodwill represents the excess cost of an acquitesiness over the fair value of the identifiablegible and intangible ass
acquired and liabilities assumed in a business gmatibn. We evaluate goodwill for impairment anryaluring the fourth
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quarter or more frequently when an event occursircumstances change that indicates the carryihgevaay not be recoverable. We 1
assess qualitative factors to determine whethisrritore likely than not that the fair value of pading unit is less than its carrying value .
basis for determining whether we need to perforengihantitative twestep goodwill impairment test. Only if we determibased on qualitati
assessment, that it is more likely than not thegpmrting units fair value is less than its carrying value wikk walculate the fair value of 1
reporting unit. We would then test goodwill for imipment by first comparing the book value of netets to the fair value of the report
units. If the fair value is determined to be Idsant the book value, a second step is performednauate the amount of impairment as
difference between the estimated fair value of gabb@nd the carrying value. We estimate the failue of the reporting units using discout
cash flows. The discounted cash flow method is dasepresent value of projected cash flows. Foteaasfuture cash flows are based on
estimate of future sales and operating expenseagdbarimarily on estimated pricing, sales volunmarket segment share, cost trends
general economic conditions. Certain estimatesisdodinted cash flows involve businesses with lichifmancial history and developi
revenue models. The estimated cash flows are disedwsing a rate that represents our weightechgearost of capital.

Because we recorded an impairment of goodwill duan interim period in 2014 (see Notd,5ve elected to bypass the initial analysi
qualitative factors and perform a quantitative tstep goodwill impairment test of all of our repodiunits during our annual assessment i
fourth quarter of 2014. For purposes of the anmgaddwill impairment assessment, our reporting uaits our reportable segments.
calculated the fair value of each of our reportimits by using a discounted cash flow analysisoABecember 31, 2014, the fair value of
Mortgage Services, Financial Services and TechiyolSgrvices reporting units exceeded their carryiladues by a significant marg
Consequently, we determined thatfagher goodwill impairment exists as of Decembgy 3014. There were no goodwill impairments in 2
or 2012.

Intangible Assets, Net Jdentifiable intangible assets acquired in busiressbinations are recorded based on their fairesmht the date
acquisition. We determine the useful lives of aleritifiable intangible assets after consideringgdpecific facts and circumstances relate
each intangible asset. Factors we consider whesrrdigting useful lives include the contractual tesfrany arrangements, the history of
asset, our longerm strategy for use of the asset and other ecimnf@aciors. We amortize intangible assets that eenuto have definite lives
proportion to actual and expected customer reveauen a straight-line basis over their usefuldivgenerally ranging from 5 to 20 years .

We perform tests for impairment if conditions exisat indicate the carrying value may not be recabie. When facts and circumstar
indicate that the carrying value of intangible éssgetermined to have definite lives may not beovecable, management assesse:
recoverability of the carrying value by preparirggimates of cash flows of discrete intangible assensistent with models utilized for intet
planning purposes. If the sum of the undiscounigrbeted future cash flows is less than the carryalge, we would recognize an impairrr
to the extent the carrying amount exceeds fairezaBased on the 2014, 2013 and 2012 cash flow semlgrepared by management for ce
of the intangible assets, no impairment of intalegédssets was recorded for the years ended Dec&hp2014, 2013 and 2012.

Debt Issuance Costs Debt issuance costs are capitalized and amortizedtérest expense through maturity of the relatedt using th
effective interest method.

Long-Term Debt - Long-term debt is reported net of applicable discounpr@mium. The debt discount or premium is amortitteéhteres
expense through maturity of the related debt utiegeffective interest method.

Fair Value Measurements- Fair value is defined as an exit price, represgritie amount that would be received for an asspaiuf to transfe
a liability in an orderly transaction between margarticipants at the measurement date. The tiigedrerarchy for inputs used in measu
fair value, which prioritizes the inputs used ie thethodologies of measuring fair value for asaetsliabilities, is as follows:

Level 1— Quoted prices in active markets for identical asaed liabilities
Level 2— Observable inputs other than quoted prices includléevel 1
Level 3— Unobservable inputs that are supported by litttammarket activity and that are significant to thie value of assets or liabilities.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are sifisd based on the lowest level of input thatigggicant to the fair value measurements.
assessment of the significance of a particulartibpthe fair value measurements requires judgnaend,may affect the valuation of the as
and liabilities being measured and their placemetttin the fair value hierarchy.

Functional Currency - The currency of the primary economic environmenivitich our operations are conducted is the UnitedeS dollai
Therefore, the United States dollar has been datedo be our functional and reporting currencgnMJnited
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States dollar transactions and balances have beasured in United States dollars in accordance A8IC Topic 830,Foreign Currenc
Matters . All transaction gains and losses from the measeant of monetary balance sheet items denominatetidJnited States doll:
currencies are reflected in the statement of ojper®bs income or expenses, as appropriate.

Defined Contribution 401(k) Plan - Some of our employees currently participate in findd contribution 401(k) plan under which we r
make matching contributions equal to a discretipiercentage determined by us. We recorded experid®9 million , $0.4 million an&0.Z
million for the years ended December 31, 2014, 20182012, respectively, related to our discretip@anounts contributed.

Share-Based Compensation Share-based compensation is accounted for undeprthasions of ASC Topic 718Compensation Stocl
Compensation Under ASC Topic 718, the cost of employee sesviezeived in exchange for an award of equity umsénts is general
measured based on the grant-date fair value obwerd. Shardased awards that do not require future serviceeapensed immediate
Sharebased employee awards that require future serveceegognized over the relevant service periodthieay as required under ASC Ta
718, we estimate forfeitures for share-based awhatsare not expected to vest.

Earnings Per Share- We compute earnings per share (“EPS”) in accarelavith ASC Topic 260Earnings Per Share Basic net income p
share is computed by dividing net income attriblgab Altisource by the weighted average numbeshafres of common stock outstanding
the period. Diluted net income per share refldotsassumed conversion of all dilutive securities.

Revenue Recognition We recognize revenue from the services we prowideccordance with ASC Topic 60Rgvenue RecognitianASC
Topic 605 sets forth guidance as to when revenueaiized or realizable and earned, which is gdiyandien all of the following criteria a
met: (1) persuasive evidence of an arrangementseX®) delivery has occurred or services have lpgformed; (3) the selles’price to th
buyer is fixed or determinable; and (4) collectityils reasonably assured. Generally, the conteaats for these services are relatively shc
duration, and we recognize revenue as the sergiceperformed either on a per unit or a fixed phesis. Specific policies for each of
reportable segments are as follows:

Mortgage Services segmentVe recognize revenue for the majority of the m@w we provide when the services have been peefbrifio
default processing services and certain propemggivation services, we recognize revenue ovepéhied during which we perform t
related services, with full recognition upon redogdthe related foreclosure deed or on closinghef ielated real estate transaction.
record revenue associated with real estate salasneh basis as we perform services as an agdmwriassuming the risks and reward
ownership of the asset and the commission earnéldeosele is a fixed percentage. Reimbursable esgsenf $137.4 million$102.0 millior
and $95.6 millionincurred for the years ended December 31, 20143 201 2012, respectively, are included in revenith an equs
offsetting expense included in cost of revenue grily related to our property preservation and difarocessing services. These amao
are recognized on a gross basis, principally becaweshave complete control over selection of vesm@dmd the vendor relationship is v
us, rather than with our customers.

Financial Services segmente generally earn our fees for asset recoveryagament services as a percentage of the amountlizetor
delinquent consumer receivables and chaafédiortgages on behalf of our clients and recogmeévenue upon collection from the debt
We also earn fees for packaging and selling chaoffethortgages and recognize revenue after the (fallee notes and once the risks
rewards of the mortgage notes are transferredetptinchasers. In addition, we provide custometioglship management services for wt
we earn and recognize revenue on a per-call, pgoper per-minute basis as the related servieepenformed.

Technology Services segmeffior our REALSuite platform, we charge based anrthmber of loans on the system or on atgersactio
basis. We record transactional revenue when thécseis provided and other revenue monthly basethemumber of loans processe:
services provided.

For Equator, LLC’s (“Equator”software applications, we recognize revenue frorargrements with multiple deliverables in accord
with ASC Subtopic 605-25Revenue Recognition: Multiple-Element ArrangemefifsSC 605-25"), and Securities and Exchai
Commission Staff Accounting Bulletin Topic 1Revenue RecognitioiSAB Topic 13”). ASC 60525 and SAB Topic 13 require et
deliverable within a multipleleliverable revenue arrangement to be accountedsfarseparate unit if both of the following cidesire me
(1) the delivered item or items have value to thst@mer on a standalone basis and (2) for an arnaegt that includes a general righ
return relative to the delivered item(s), delivanyperformance of the undelivered item(s) is comsid probable and substantially in
seller’'s control. Deliverables not meeting the criterimdocounting treatment as a separate unit are caubwvith a deliverable that me
that criterion. Equator derives its revenue fromitfolrm services fees, professional services fedotirer services. Equator does not beg
recognize revenue for platform services fees uhéke fees become billable, as the services feesdrfixed and determinable until si
time.
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Platform services fees are recognized ratably dwvershorter of the term of the contract with thetomer or the minimum cancellat
period. Professional services fees consist primafilconfiguration services related to customizing platform for individual customers ¢
are generally billed as the hours are worked. Dughé¢ essential and specialized nature of the gordtion services, these services dc
qualify as separate units of accounting separata the platform services as the delivered servittesot have value to the customer «
standalone basis. Therefore, the related feesameded as deferred revenue until the project gardiion is complete and then recogn
ratably over the longer of the term of the agreenwerthe estimated expected customer life. Otherises consist primarily of trainin
including agent certification, and consulting seed. These services are generally sold separatelyage recognized as revenue as
services are performed and earned.

For Mortgage Builder Software, Inc. (“Mortgage Blgl”) software applications, we recognize subscriptioveneies ratably over t
contract term, beginning on the commencement da¢ach contract. Revenues for uségesed transactions are generally recognized !
usage occurs, as that is the point when the feenbes fixed or determinable. Mortgage Builder gelginvoices customers on a mont
basis.

We provide information technology (“IT”) infrastriure services to Ocwen, Home Loan Servicing Sahstid_td. (“HLSS”), Altisource
Residential Corporation (“Residentiajpd AAMC and charge for these services primarilydobon the number of employees that are |
the applicable systems and the number and typeaided platforms used by Ocwen, HLSS, Resideatidl AAMC. We record reven
associated with implementation services upon cotimplend maintenance ratably over the related semperiod.

Income Taxes- We account for certain income and expense itenferdiitly for financial purposes and income tax pses. We recogni
deferred income tax assets and liabilities for ehgifferences between the financial reporting bast the tax basis of our assets and liabi
as well as expected benefits of utilizing net opegaloss and credit carryforwards. The most sigaiit temporary differences relate to acc
compensation, amortization and loss and credityframwards. We measure deferred income tax assetdianilities using enacted tax ra
expected to apply to taxable income in the yearshich we anticipate recovery or settlement of ghtmmporary differences. The effect
deferred tax assets and liabilities of a changmrrates is recognized in income in the periodmtiee change is enacted. Deferred tax a
are reduced by a valuation allowance when it isentigely than not that some portion or all of thefetred tax assets will not be realized.

Tax laws are complex and subject to different ptetations by the taxpayer and respective govertahéaxing authorities. Significa
judgment is required in determining tax expenseiar@/aluating tax positions including evaluatingartainties under ASC Topic 74ncome
Taxeg(*“ASC Topic 740").

Future Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncement

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards oasued Accounting Standards Update No. 2014Re%enue from Contractsith
CustomersThis standard establishes a single comprehensiveinfor entities to use in accounting for revenusirag from contracts wit
customers and supersedes most current revenuenigopgguidance. The core principle of the new dtd is an entity should recogr
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goodseorices to customers in an amount that reflé&sonsideration to which the entity exp
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or sesviThis new standard will be effective for anmeglorting periods beginning after Decen
15, 2016, including interim periods within that ogfing period. Early adoption is not permitted. T®@mpany is currently evaluating the img
this new guidance may have on its results of ofmraiand financial position.

NOTE 3 — SEPARATION OF RESIDENTIAL ASSET BUSINESSES

On December 21, 2012, we completed the spin-offsvof wholly-owned subsidiaries, AAMC and Residential, into safgpublicly trade
companies (the “Separation of the Residential ABsstnesses”).

On December 24, 2012, Altisource shareholdersafrekas of December 17, 2012 received a pro ratalalition of:

» one share of Residential common stock for evemyetlshares of Altisource common stock t
» one share of AAMC common stock for every ten shafédtisource common stock held; ¢
» cashin lieu of fractional Residential and AAMC st&

We eliminated the assets and liabilities of Redidémnd AAMC from our consolidated balance shdétative at the close of business
December 21, 2012. As Residential and AAMC weresttigyment stage companies and had not commencedtiopesr
at the date of separation, these entities hadstorfdal results of operations.
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The carrying value of the net assets transferredlitiyource was as follows:

(in thousands) Residential AAMC Total
Cash $ 100,000 $ 5,000 $ 105,00
Reduction in Altisource retained earnings $ 100,00 $ 5,000 $ 105,001

We incurred $2.7 milliorof expenses for the year ended December 31, 2@it@senting salaries of certain employees who be@npoyee
of AAMC after the separation (included in cost effenue) and advisory expenses (included in selgegeral and administrative expen
incurred in connection with the Separation of thesiBential Asset Businesses. These expenses dudaedan our Mortgage Services segn
(no comparative amounts for 2014 and 2013).

Impact on Share-Based Compensation

The exercise price of each outstanding stock optifoAltisource was adjusted to reflect the valueRafsidential and AAMC common stc
distributed to Altisource shareholders. On the ssjn date, all holders of Altisource stock op#aerceived the following:

» stock options (issued by Residential and AAMC) ¢quare the number of shares of Residential or AAMEYMon stock equal to t
product of (a) the number of Altisource stock opsioheld on the separation date and (b) the disiviburatio of one share
Residential common stock for every three sharesltidource common stock and one share of AAMC stfmrkevery ten shares
Altisource common stock; and

e an adjusted Altisource stock option, with a reduerelrcise price per stock opti

NOTE 4 — TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Through January 16, 2015, William C. Erbey servedar Chairman as well as the Executive Chairma@afen and Chairman of eact
HLSS, Residential and AAMC. Effective January 1612, Mr. Erbey stepped down as the Executive Clairef Ocwen and Chairman
each of Altisource, HLSS, Residential and AAMC asco longer a member of the Board of Directorsday of these companies. As
December 31, 2014, Mr. Erbey owned or controllegraximately 29% of the common stock of Altisourapproximately 14%f the commo
stock of Ocwen, approximately 1% of the common lstoicHLSS, approximately 4%f the common stock of Residential and approxiny
28% of the common stock of AAMC. As of December 3014, Mr. Erbey also held 873,56ftions to purchase Altisource common stock
of which were exercisable), 3,620,498 options tpase Ocwen common stock ( 3,370,498 of which w&ezcisable) and 87,3%iptions t(
purchase AAMC common stock (all of which were eigable). Accordingly, as a result of Mr. Erbgylositions and the continuing comr
ownership, these companies have been and aredrglaties of Altisource.

Ocwen
Revenu

Ocwen is our largest customer. Ocwen purchasesicearortgage services and technology services fusnunder the terms of the ma
services agreements and amendments to the masteeseagreements (collectively, the “Service Agneeats”)with terms extending throu
August 2025. The Service Agreements, among otliegghcontain a “most favored natiopfovision and the parties to the Service Agreen
have the right to renegotiate pricing. In connectidth our March 29, 2013 acquisition from Ocwerntlué feebased businesses of Homew
Residential, Inc. (“Homeward”) and the April 12,13transaction with Ocwen related to the besed businesses of Residential Capital,
(“ResCap”) (see Note } our Service Agreements with Ocwen were amendeektend the term from 2020 to 2025. Further, as qfathe
amendments, Ocwen agreed not to establish sindkxbésed businesses that would directly or indyrextmpete with Altisources service
with respect to the Homeward and ResCap busineBeemg 2014, we agreed with Ocwen to apply a mggice standard with respec
indemnification obligations arising out of propefyeservation and inspection services. Previousliisource and Ocwen applied a gr
negligence standard with respect to these indeaatidin obligations. The impact of changing the igggice standard did not have a mat
effect on our results of operations. In additiomw@n purchases certain origination services frotisélirce under an agreement that ext
through January 2017, subject to termination urtdgtain conditions. We settle amounts with Ocwenaodaily, weekly or monthly ba:
depending upon the nature of the service and wieesérvice is provided.
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Related party revenue primarily consists of reveaamed directly from Ocwen and revenue earned tl@rioans serviced by Ocwen wil
Ocwen designates us as the service provider. Rlefstey revenue from Ocwen as a percentage of sagamel consolidated revenue wa
follows for the years ended December 31:

2014 2013 2012
Mortgage Services 67% 71% 68%
Financial Services 27% 30% <1%
Technology Services 41% 49% 42%
Consolidated revenue 60% 65% 59%

We record revenue we earn from Ocwen under thei®eAgreements at rates we believe to be markes ra$ we believe they are consis
with the fees we charge to other customers for @vaige services and/or fees charged by our coroptit

We earn additional revenue on the portfolios sexiby Ocwen that is not considered related pangmee when a party other than Oc
selects Altisource as the service provider. Foryiars ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012ecegmized revenue of $256.0 millign
$161.9 million and $125.4 million , respectively the portfolios serviced by Ocwen that are notsaered related party revenue.

Cost of Revenue

At times, we use Ocwes'contractors and/or employees to support Altiseuietated services. Ocwen generally bills us feséhcontracto
and/or employees based on their fully-allocatedt.céslditionally, we purchase certain data relatimg Ocwens servicing portfolio i
connection with a Data Access and Services Agreerie Data Access and Services Agreement mayregotiated and may be cancellec
either Altisource or Ocwen with 90 dapsior written notice. Ocwen bills us a per asset fer this data. For the years ended Decemb
2014, 2013 and 2012, Ocwen billed us $38.6 milljo$20.0 million and $13.5 million respectively. These amounts are reflected
component of cost of revenue in the consolidatatéstents of operations. On December 31, 2014, wiedoOcwen that we are canceling
Data Access and Services Agreement, effective Matgl2015.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

We provided certain other services to Ocwen anddédcprovided certain other services to us in conoeatith Support Services Agreemel
These services include such areas as human respwargdor management, vendor oversight, corpoetdces, operational effectivene
quality assurance, quantitative analytics, tax &edsury. The Support Services Agreement with OcMemtgage Servicing, Inc. exter
through September 2018 with automatic opear renewals thereafter. The Support Services elgemt with Ocwen Financial Corporat
extends through October 2017 with automatic on@ar-yenewals thereafter. Billings for these serviegse generally based on the fully-
allocated cost of providing the service based opstimate of the time and expense of providingsewwice or estimates thereof. For the y
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, we biltxde® $4.5 million , $2.8 million and $2.7 milliomespectively, and Ocwen billed $8.1
million , $4.6 million and $3.2 million respectively. These amounts are reflected asmgpanent of selling, general and administrative espt

in the consolidated statements of operations.

Unsecured Term Loan

On December 27, 2012, we entered into a seniorcunsé term loan agreement with Ocwen under whichoaeed $75.0 milliorio Ocwen.
Payments of interest were due quarterly at a ratepnum equal to the Eurodollar Rate (as defingba agreement) plus 6.75%rovided the
the Eurodollar Rate was not less than 1.50@n February 15, 2013, Ocwen repaid the outstgnpliincipal amount of this loan and all accr
and unpaid interest and the term loan was terndnalteterest income related to this loan was $0il8am and $0.1 millionfor the years end:
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively ( no caatiga amount for 2014).

Transactions Related to Fee-Based Businesses
On January 31, 2013, we entered into non-bindittgrie of intent with Ocwen to acquire certain feesdd businesses associated with Ocsver
acquisitions of the Homeward and ResCap servicortfgios. Ocwen acquired the Homeward servicingtfipio on December 27, 2012 ¢

the ResCap servicing portfolio on February 15, 2@d8source acquired the Homeward fee-based
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businesses from Ocwen on March 29, 2013 (see NQteABisource entered into an agreement with OcwanApril 12, 2013 to establi
additional terms related to our services in corinaavith the ResCap fee-based businesses (seeSNote

Correspondent One and HLSS

In July 2011, we acquired an equity interest in rEgpondent One S.A. (“Correspondent One&Cprrespondent One purchased clc
conforming and government guaranteed residentiatgages from approved mortgage bankers. On MarcR@13, we sold our 49%teres
in Correspondent One to Ocwen for $12.6 milliorPrior to the sale to Ocwen, we provided Corresigat One certain finance, hun
resources, legal support, facilities, technologgndor management and insurance risk managemeitesennder a support services agreer
For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 201ilied Correspondent One less than $0.1 million &Adt million , respectively (o
comparative amount for 2014). These amounts dlected as a component of selling, general and aidinative expenses in the consolid;
statements of operations. We also provided cedggination related services to Correspondent Qtie.earned revenue of $0.1 milli@amc
$0.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2882012, respectively, for these services ( nopaoative amount for 2014).

HLSS is a publicly traded company whose primaryeotiye is the acquisition of mortgage servicinditigand related servicing advances, i
held for investment and other residential mortged@ted assets. Under a support services agreememovide HLSS certain finance, hur
resources, tax and facilities services. For thesyeaded December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, wel BilleSS $0.9 million , $0.7 millioranc
$0.6 million, respectively. These amounts are reflected asnganent of selling, general and administrative esps in the consolidat
statements of operations.

Residential and AAMC

Residential and AAMC were spuwoff on December 21, 2012 and their equity was ithigted to our shareholders on December 24, 201
they are each separate publicly traded companisidential is focused on acquiring and managinglaifamily rental properties by acquir
sub-performing and noperforming residential mortgage loans as well aglsifamily homes at or following the foreclosusedesthroughout tf
United States. AAMC is an asset management companyding portfolio management and corporate goance services to Residential.

For purposes of governing certain ongoing relatigrs between Altisource, Residential and AAMC, wéeeed into certain agreements v
Residential and AAMC. We have agreements to proRdsidential with renovation management, lease gemant and property managen
services. In addition, we have agreements with deesial and AAMC to provide services such as fimgnieuman resources, faciliti
technology and insurance risk management. Furihehave separate agreements for certain servitseddo income tax matters, trader
licenses and technology services.

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 201Bjliwe Residential $16.0 million and $2.6 milliomespectively ( n@omparative amou
for 2012). This excludes revenue where we arerretaby Ocwen to provide services to Residerstimans serviced by Ocwen. That reven:
included in related party revenue from Ocwen. heryears ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, we BiRMC $0.1 millionand less the
$0.1 million , respectively, under the serviceseagnents ( n@omparative amount for 2012). These amounts atectefl in revenue in tl
consolidated statements of operations. In addifionthe years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013jilled AAMC $0.9 million and$0.£
million , respectively, under the services agreeimémocomparative amount for 2012). These amounts akectetl as a component of selli
general and administrative expenses in the coraeliistatements of operations.

NOTE 5 — ACQUISITIONS
Homeward Fee-Based Businesses

On March 29, 2013, we acquired certain fee-baseaihbsses associated with Ocweacquisition of Homeward. As part of the acquosi,
Ocwen agreed not to develop similar fesed businesses that would directly or indiremtiyipete with services provided by Altisource rek
to the Homeward servicing portfolio. Additionallfhe terms of our Service Agreements with Ocwen veenended to extend the term fi
2020 to 2025 (see Note 4). We paid $75.8 milli@iter a working capital and peequisition net income adjustment payment by Ocuof
$11.1 million , which we received in September 2013

Since the acquisition date, management adjuste@uhehase price allocation and assigned assocaseet lives based upon information
has become available. In addition to the workingiteh adjustment, we also reduced premises andhewnt by $1.2 million based on a post
acquisition detailed analysis of software licenseseived and increased current liabilities by $&illion based on a subsequent det:
analysis of obligations payable as of the closiatgdwhich we paid in 2014. Consequently,
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the Company retrospectively adjusted the fair valfighe assets acquired and liabilities assumethénconsolidated balance sheet a
December 31, 2013 as well as disclosed the cometipg amount of norash investing and financing activities in the aidsited statement
cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2013.

The final adjusted allocation of the purchase piscas follows:

(in thousands)

Premises and equipment $ 1,55¢
Customer relationship 75,60¢
Goodwill 2,03¢

79,20"
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (3,390
Purchase price $ 75,811

Estimated life
(in years)

Premises and equipment 3-5
Customer relationship 7

ResCap Fee-Based Businesses

On April 12, 2013, we entered into an agreemenh vdcwen to establish additional terms related ® dRisting servicing arrangeme
between Altisource and Ocwen in connection withtaier mortgage servicing platform assets of ResGhp {(ResCap Business”)The
agreement provides that (i) Altisource will be apder to Ocwen of certain services related to ResCap Business, (i) Ocwen will |
establish similar fee-based businesses that wadrgdtty or indirectly compete with Altisource’services as they relate to the ResCap Bu:
and (iii) Ocwen will market and promote the utiliven of Altisources services to their various third party relatiopshiAdditionally, the parti
agreed to use commercially reasonable best efforehsure that the loans associated with the ReBQajmess are boarded onto Altisousce’
mortgage servicing platform. We paid $128.8 milltorOcwen in connection with the ResCap fee-basethbsses agreement.

We acquired no tangible assets and assumddbitities in connection with the ResCap transactiHowever, certain employees as we
practices and processes developed to support ts€dpeservicing portfolio were components of thendeztion. We accounted for t
transaction as a business combination in accordaitheASC Topic 805Business Combinations

Management prepared a final purchase price allmtatnd assigned associated asset lives based upitabée information at the time of t
agreement and until finalized as of December 31,320 he agreement consideration of $128.8 millias fully allocated to the custon
relationship intangible asset with an estimatedaye useful life of 7 years .

Equator Acquisition

On November 15, 2013, we completed the acquisitiball of the outstanding limited liability comparigterests of Equator pursuant t
Purchase and Sale Agreement dated August 19, 208 3Furchase Agreement”Pursuant to the terms of the Purchase Agreemenpaic
$63.4 million at closing in cash (net of closingrkiog capital adjustments), subject to certain fbasing adjustments based on current a
and current liabilities of Equator at closing. Aftthe acquisition date, management adjusted thehpse price allocation based u
information that has subsequently become availadhéting to acquisition date working capital, réiig in an obligation of the Company to |
the sellers an additional $3.7 milliorConsequently, the Company retrospectively adjugte fair value of the assets acquired and iy
assumed in the consolidated balance sheet as @niexr 31, 2013 as well as disclosed the correspgrathount of normash investing ar
financing activities in the consolidated statenmfrtash flows for the year ended December 31, 2014.

The Purchase Agreement also provided for the paywieap to $80 million in potential additional caderation (“Equator Earn Out”)The
Equator Earn Out will be determined based on Edqisafadjusted EBITA (as defined in the Purchase Agnent) in the three consecutive 12
month periods following closing. Up to $22.5 mitiof the Equator Earn Out could be earned in e&thedfirst two 12 month periods, and |
to $35.0 million could be earned in the third h2onth period. Any amounts earned upon the achienéwf Adjusted EBITA thresholds :
payable through 2017. We may, at our discretiay,yp to 20% of each
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payment of any of the Equator Earn Out in shareGarhpany restricted stock, with the balance to &id py cash. As of the closing date,
estimated the fair value of the Equator Earn Outedb46.0 million, determined based on the present value of futstimated Equator Ea
Out payments at such date, which has subsequesely keduced to $8.1 milligras further described below. The acquisition daitevalue o
the Equator Earn Out is included as a componetiteopurchase price of Equator.

The final adjusted allocation of the purchase piscas follows:

Initial purchase price Adjusted purchase price

(in thousands) allocation Adjustments allocation
Accounts receivable $ 9,29: $ 3,49(C $ 12,78:
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 954 (393 561
Premises and equipment 16,97 — 16,97
Customer relationships, trademarks and trade names 43,39! — 43,39:
Goodwill 82,46( — 82,46(
Other non-current assets 247 78 32(
Assets acquired 153,31¢ 3,17¢ 156,49:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (7,232 53¢ (6,69€)
Deferred revenue (36,689 — (36,689
Liabilities assumed (43,92 53€ (43,389
Purchase price $ 109,39 $ 3,711 % 113,10t

Estimated life

(in years)
Premises and equipment (excluding internally deyedosoftware) 3-5
Internally developed software (included in premiaed equipment) 7
Customer relationships (weighted average) 15
Trade names 4

In accordance with ASC Topic 80Business Combinationthe liability for contingent consideration is refted at fair value and adjusted e
reporting period with the change in fair value gai@aed in earnings. During 2014, the fair valuglaf contingent consideration related to
Equator acquisition was reduced by $37.9 milliotthwa corresponding increase in earnings based orageaens revised estimates tl
expected earnings of Equator will be lower thanguoed at the time of acquisition. The reductiorfdir value was recorded in 2014 an
reflected as a reduction of selling, general andiattrative expenses in the consolidated statesnafnbperations.

As a result of the decline in fair value of the Btpr Earn Out, management evaluated and deterritiaedEquator goodwill should be tested
impairment. Consequently, we initiated a quaniimtiwostep goodwill impairment test by comparing the yiag value of the net assets
Equator to its fair value based on a discountet @asv analysis. In 2014, based on our goodwilleassnent, we determined that the fair v
of Equator was less than its carrying value anddgalbwas impaired. Consequently, we recorded apaimment loss of $37.5 millionwhict
is reflected as a component of selling, generalaaministrative expenses in the consolidated setésrof operations (see Note 18).

The following table presents the impact of the g®aim the fair value of the Equator Earn Out anddgr goodwill impairment for the ye
ended December 31, 2014, which are included imgeljeneral and administrative expenses in theaatated statements of operations:

(in thousands)

Change in the fair value of Equator Earn Out $ (37,929
Goodwill impairment 37,47:

$ (451)
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The following tables present the unaudited pro #iconsolidated results of operations for the yeaded December 31, 2013 and 2012
the Homeward fee-based business, ResCap fee-basie@ss and Equator transactions had occurree dietiinning of the periods presented.

Year ended
December 31, 2013
(in thousands, except per share amounts) As reported Pro forma
Revenue $ 768,35 $ 854,09
Net income attributable to Altisource 129,97: 132,90°
Earnings per share — diluted 5.1¢ 5.31
Year ended
December 31, 2012
(in thousands, except per share amounts) As reported Pro forma
Revenue $ 568,36( $ 781,83:
Net income attributable to Altisource 110,62 129,22¢
Earnings per share — diluted 4.4: 5.1¢

The unaudited pro forma information presents thalioed operating results of Altisource and the Haarel fee-based business, ResCap fe
based business and Equator. The Homeward fee-laséuess, ResCap féased business and Equator operating results vezieed fron
their historical financial statements for the mosmparable periods available. The results pricghtoacquisition dates have been adjust
include the pro forma impact of the adjustment widization of the acquired intangible assets basedhe purchase price allocations,
adjustment of interest expense reflecting the portf our senior secured term loan used in the Keang fee-based business, ResCap fe
based business and Equator transactions and éetréffle impact of income taxes on the pro formasidjents utilizing Altisource’ effective
income tax rate.

The unaudited pro forma results are presentedléstriative purposes only and do not reflect addiil revenue opportunities, the realizatio
any potential cost savings and any related integratosts. Certain revenue opportunities and anghgs may result from the transactions
the conversion to the Altisource model; howeveeréhcan be no assurance that these revenue opfiegwamd cost savings will be achiey
These pro forma results do not purport to be irttiesof the results that would have actually bebtamed if the transactions occurred as o
beginning of the period presented, nor is the prm& data intended to be a projection of resulis ity be obtained in the future.

Mortgage Builder Acquisition

On September 12, 2014, we acquired certain assetsassumed certain liabilities of Mortgage Builgrrsuant to a Purchase and
Agreement dated July 18, 2014 (the “Purchase atel Ageement”).Mortgage Builder is a provider of residential magg loan originatic
and servicing software systems. Pursuant to thastaf the Purchase and Sale Agreement, we paid $@lflion at closing in cash (net
closing working capital adjustments). Additionaltige Purchase and Sale Agreement provides forapment of up to $7.0 milliom potentia
additional consideration (the “MB Earn Outased on Adjusted Revenue (as defined in the Psechad Sale Agreement) in the tt
consecutive 12-month periods following closing. dksing, we estimated the fair value of the MB E@mut to be $1.6 million determine
based on the present value of future estimated MB BEut payments. The Mortgage Builder acquisiijmmot material in relation to t
Company’s results of operations or financial positi
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The preliminary allocation of the purchase pricaggollows:

(in thousands)

Cash $ 72€
Accounts receivable, net 1,12(
Prepaid expenses 38
Premises and equipment, net 553
Software 1,50¢
Trademarks and trade names 20¢
Customer relationship 4,82¢
Goodwill 9,13¢

18,11
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (881)
Purchase price $ 17,23

Owners.com Acquisition

On November 21, 2014, we acquired certain assetassumed certain liabilities of Owners Advantdde; (“Owners.com”).Owners.com is
self-directed online real estate marketplace. Wd $29.8 million at closing in cash plus contingeonhsideration of up to an additiorfaf.C
million over two years (“Owners.com Earn Out”). Albsing, we estimated the fair value of the Owrars. Earn Out to b&1.9 millior
determined based on the present value of futuiema®sd Owners.com Earn Out payments. The Ownersayuisition is not material
relation to the Company’s results of operation§r@ancial position.

The preliminary allocation of the purchase pricassollows:

(in thousands)

Accounts receivable, net $ 41
Prepaid expenses 32
Software 501
Trademarks and trade names 1,431
Goodwill 19,77t

21,78(
Accounts payable (42)
Purchase price $ 21,73¢

NOTE 6 — FAIR VALUE
Fair Value Measurements on a Recurring Basis

The Company had no assets carried at fair valuatatidbilities carried at fair value consist dietacquisition related contingent considerc
as of December 31, 2014 and 2013. The liabilitims dcquisition related contingent consideration evegcorded in connection with -
acquisitions of Equator in 2013 and Mortgage Buildad Owners.com in 2014. The fair values of ttabilities for acquisition relat
contingent consideration were $11.6 million and.$48illion as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectivelym#&asured the liabilities f
acquisition related contingent consideration usiagel 3 inputs as they are determined based oprdsent value of future estimated paym
which included sensitivities pertaining to discotattes and financial projections.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Commanayded acquisition related contingent considematiaconnection with the acquisitions
Mortgage Builder and Owners.com of $1.9 million &1d6 million, respectively (see Note 5). Additionally, the Grany recorded a change
the fair value of the Equator acquisition relateshtergent consideration of $37.9 million (sMete 5), which is reflected as a reductiol



selling, general and administrative expenses irctimsolidated statements of operations.
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For the year ended December 31, 2013, the Compasgrded acquisition related contingent considematib $46.0 millionrelated to th
acquisition of Equator. There were no gains osdgsfrom the valuation of this contingent consitienaduring the year ended December
2013.

There were no transfers in or out of the Level B f@lue hierarchy for the years ended December2B14 and 2013. There were
comparative amounts in 2012.

Fair Value Measurements on a Nonrecurring Basis

The Company recorded a $37.5 millionpairment of its goodwill balance during the yesided December 31, 2014 based on a fair
measurement. The goodwill impairment charge isuihet! in selling, general and administrative expgnsethe consolidated statement:
operations. This fair value measurement was basedpuits classified as Level 3 in the valuatiorrduiehy. See Note 5 .

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The following table presents the carrying amourntt astimated fair value of financial instrumentsdhiey the Company at December 31, Z

and 2013 that are not carried at fair value. The Values are estimated using market informatiod amat the Company believes to
appropriate valuation methodologies under GAAP:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Carrying
Carrying Amount
(in thousands) Amount Fair Value Fair Value
Level 3
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2
Cash and cash
equivalents $ 161,36. $ 161,36: $ — 3 — $ 130,32« $ 130,32c $ — $ =
Restricted cash 3,022 3,02 — — 1,62( 1,62( — —
Long-term debt 591,54: — 467,31¢ — 396,50 — 396,50 —

Our financial assets and liabilities primarily inde cash and cash equivalents, restricted casloagderm debt. Cash and cash equivalents
restricted cash are carried at amounts that appetri their fair value due to the shtatm nature of these instruments. The fair valuecés!
and cash equivalents and restricted cash was neghasing Level 1 inputs. The fair value of our laegn debt as of December 31, 201
based on quoted market prices. However, we do el that there is an active market for our debsed on the frequency of tradi
therefore, the quoted prices are considered Lewep@ts. Our prior year long-term debt was refirmhon December 9, 2013 (see Note)14
and therefore, represents fair value at Decemhge2(RI3.
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NOTE 7 — ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET

Accounts receivable, net consists of the followéisgof December 31:

(in thousands) 2014 2013®
Billed
Non-related parties $ 37,57¢ % 41,01:
Ocwen 22,831 11,65¢
HLSS 86 83
AAMC 12¢ 1,347
Residential 11,32( 547
Other receivables 1,59(C 1,64
73,53 56,28¢
Unbilled
Non-related parties 46,77¢ 44,10:
Ocwen 14,55! 10,027
134,85¢ 110,41¢
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (22,67%) (5,637)
Total $ 112,18: $ 104,78

@ December 31, 2013 accounts receivable has beesetkw reflect a purchase accounting measuremeittdpadjustment related to 1
Equator acquisition. See Note 5 .

Unbilled receivables consist primarily of asset agegment and default management services for whécheaognize revenues over the sei
delivery period but bill following completion of ¢hservice. We also include in unbilled receivalslis®unts that are earned during a montt
billed in the following month.

Bad debt expense amounted to $16.3 million , $2lkomand $3.0 millionfor years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2@%gectively
and is included in selling, general and administeaéxpenses in the consolidated statements ofatpes. Bad debt expense increased di
2014 driven primarily from the default managememvices business. A change in our custombtsiness model and fourth quarter 2
discussions with those customers led us to betieatea portion of the accounts receivable balasemilonger collectible.

NOTE 8 — PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Prepaid expenses and other current assets cohgist following as of December 31.:

(in thousands) 2014 2013%"

Maintenance agreements, current portion $ 6,367 $ 4,60(
Income taxes receivable 5,25¢ 1,64t
Prepaid expenses 6,98¢ 3,67
Other current assets 4,95: 1,07¢
Total $ 23,567 % 10,99¢

@ December 31, 2013 prepaid expenses and other tuassets have been revised to reflect a purchaseu@aing measurement per
adjustment related to the Equator acquisition.$ate 5 .
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NOTE 9 — PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Premises and equipment, net, which include amaentsded under capital leases, consists of theviollg as of December 31:

(in thousands) 2014 2013
Computer hardware and software $ 140,79¢ $ 103,40(
Office equipment and other 36,03: 28,057
Furniture and fixtures 12,231 8,391
Leasehold improvements 34,06¢ 17,57«
223,13: 157,42.
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (95,377 (70,170
Total $ 127,75¢ $ 87,25:

Depreciation and amortization expense, inclusiveaital leases, amounted to $29.0 million , $18illion and $12.8 millionfor the year
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respsgtizetl is included in cost of revenue for operatisgets and in selling, general
administrative expenses for non-operating assdtsiconsolidated statements of operations.

NOTE 10 — GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET
Goodwill

Goodwill primarily relates to the acquisitions ofjiator, Owners.com and Mortgage Builder, discussedote 5, Springhouse, LLC ai
Tracmail acquired in 2011 and MPA acquired in 200banges in goodwill during the years ended Decendie 2014 and 2013 ¢
summarized below:

Mortgage Financial Technology

(in thousands) Services Services Services Total

Balance, January 1, 2013 $ 10,91¢ $ 2,37¢ % 1,61¢ $ 14,91¢
Acquisition of Equator — — 82,46( 82,46(
Acquisition of Homeward” 2,03¢ — — 2,03¢
Balance, December 31, 2013 12,95¢ 2,37¢ 84,07¢ 99,41
Acquisition of Mortgage Builder — — 9,13¢ 9,13¢
Acquisition of Owners.com 19,77¢ — — 19,77¢
Impairment of Equator goodwif? — — (37,479 (37,479
Balance, December 31, 2014 $ 32,731 $ 237 % 55,74( $ 90,85:

@)December 31, 2013 goodwill has been revised tectll purchase accounting measurement period adjostelated to the

Homeward acquisition. See Note 5.

@See Note 5 for a discussion of the Equator goodmilairment.

Intangible Assets, Net

Intangible assets relate to our acquisitions ofHlbeneward and ResCap feased businesses, Equator, Mortgage Builder, Ovauens MP/
and Nationwide Credit, Inc. (“NCI"). No impairmeaharges were taken during the periods presented.
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Intangible assets, net consist of the followingBBecember 31, 2014 and 2013:

Weighted
average Gross carrying amount Accumulated amortization Net book value
estimated
useful life
(in thousands) (in years) 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Definite lived intangible assets:
Trademarks and trade names 13 $ 13,88¢ $ 1224¢ $ (501¢ $ (4539H) $ 887 $ 7,71F
Customer related intangible assets 10 289,30t 284,48: (79,606) (44,209 209,70: 240,27¢
Operating agreement 20 35,00( 35,00( (8,609 (6,859 26,39¢ 28,14¢
Non-compete agreement 4 — 1,30(C — (1,275 — 25
Intellectual property 10 30C — (25) — 27t —
Total $ 338,49° $ 333,030 $ (93,25) $ (56,87) $ 24524t $ 276,16:

Amortization expense for definite lived intangilaesets was $37.7 million , $28.2 million and $5i0ion for the years ended December
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectivelxpected annual definite lived intangible asset @izetion for 2015 through 2019 is $39.4 millio$34.2
million , $30.0 million , $26.1 million and $23.0illion , respectively.

NOTE 11 — INVESTMENT IN EQUITY AFFILIATE

Correspondent One purchased closed conformingeamrtsad mortgages from approved mortgage bankergr B the sale of our interest
Correspondent One to Ocwen on March 31, 2013 (s¢e &), we had significant influence over the generaragions of Correspondent C
consistent with our 49%wnership level, and therefore, accounted for nuestment under the equity method. On March 3132@% sold ot
49% interest in Correspondent One to Ocwen for@rillion .

Our net loss on this investment using the equityhoe: was $0.2 million and $1.2 millidior the years ended December 31, 2013 and
respectively ( no comparative amount for 2014).

NOTE 12 — OTHER ASSETS

Other assets consist of the following as of Decarlie

(in thousands) 2014 2013®

Security deposits, net $ 7271 % 7,31«
Debt issuance costs, net 8,09¢ 6,68
Maintenance agreements, non-current portion 3,32¢ 1,46¢
Restricted cash 3,02z 1,62(
Other 54E 57z
Total $ 22,267 % 17,65¢

@ December 31, 2013 security deposits, net and aibsats have been revised to reflect a purchaser@op measurement period adjustn
related to the Equator acquisition. See Note 5 .

Debt issuance costs of $2.6 million and $ 3.2 ouillvere capitalized for the years ended December 814 &and 2013, respectively,
connection with issuing and refinancing our longrtelebt (see Note 14 ).
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NOTE 13 — ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist ébitbwing as of December 31:

(in thousands) 2014 2013®

Accounts payable $ 22,88( % 15,17:
Accrued expenses - general 25,50( 20,94¢
Accrued salaries and benefits 44,15( 30,01:
Accrued expenses - Ocwen 6,19: —
Income taxes payable 7,64: 11,21:
Payable to Ocwen 5,40( 7,361
Payable to AAMC — 7
Total $ 111,76t $ 84,70¢

@ December 31, 2013 payables have been revisedi¢atrpfirchase accounting measurement period adimssnelated to the Homeward and
Equator acquisitions. See Note 5.

Other current liabilities consist of the followiag of December 31.:

(in thousands) 2014 2013

Book overdrafts $ 478¢ $ 4,23:
Other 8,43¢ 5,89¢
Total $ 13,227 % 10,13:

NOTE 14 — LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consists of the following as of Daber 31.:

(in thousands) 2014 2013

Senior secured term loan $ 591,54: $ 396,50:
Less: unamortized discount, net (2,929 (1,247
Net long-term debt 588,61 395,25¢
Less: current portion (5,945 (3,975
Long-term debt, less current portion $ 582,66¢ $ 391,28:

On November 27, 2012, Altisource Solutions S.a alwholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into dosesecured term lo:
agreement, as subsequently amended, with Bank @friiday N.A., as administrative agent, and certaimdérs, pursuant to which we borro
$200.0 million . The senior secured term loan vased with an original issue discount of $2.0 irill, resulting in net proceeds $198.(
million , with the Company and certain wholly-ownsabsidiaries acting as guarantors (collectivélg,‘Guarantors”).

On May 7, 2013, we amended the senior securedltammagreement to increase the principal amoutti@&enior secured term loan $300.(
million (the “Incremental Term Loan”), which wassised with a $1.0 milliororiginal issue premium, resulting in gross procegaghe
Company of $201.0 million Additionally, the Incremental Term Loan amendhd senior secured term loan agreement to, amdmg
changes, provide for an additional $200.0 millionremental term loan facility accordion and ine@dhe maximum amount of Restric
Junior Payments (as defined in the senior secumd bban agreement) that may be made by us, inguidicreasing the amount of Comp
share repurchases permitted.
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On December 9, 2013, we entered into an Amendmen2N“Second Amendmenttp the senior secured term loan agreement in wivi
incurred indebtedness in the form of Refinancingtias defined in the senior secured term loanemgeat), the proceeds of which were t
to refinance, in full, the $397.5 million of termans outstanding under the senior secured term loan

agreement immediately prior to the effectivenesshef Second Amendment. The Refinancing Debt bedeseist at lower rates and he
maturity date approximately ongar later than the prior term loans. The Seconcerdment further modified the senior secured terar
agreement to, among other changes, increase thienomaxpermitted amount of Restricted Junior Paymentduding share repurchases by
Company.

On August 1, 2014, we entered into Amendment NOTBird Amendment”)to the senior secured term loan agreement to inertrge princip:
amount of the term loan under the senior secuned kean agreement by $200.0 million , which wasiéggswith a $2.0 milliororiginal issu
discount, resulting in gross proceeds to the Compdr$198.0 million . Additionally, the Thirdmendment modified the senior secured 1
loan agreement to, among other changes, to relisstabe $200.0 millionncremental term loan facility accordion and ine@éhe maximui
amount of permitted Restricted Junior Paymentdydicg share repurchases, by $200.0 million .

After giving effect to the Third Amendment, the Reincing Debt must be repaid in equal consecutuatgrly principal installments &1.5
million , which commenced on September 30, 2014, with tlanise due at maturity. All amounts outstandingeurttie senior secured te
loan agreement will become due on the earlier pbéicember 9, 2020, being the seventh annivershye closing date of the Secc
Amendment, and (ii) the date on which the loansdeelared to be due and owing by the administratigent at the request (or with
consent) of the Required Lenders (as defined irsémior secured term loan agreement) upon the mowe of any event of default under
senior secured term loan agreement.

In addition to the scheduled principal paymentg Refinancing Debt is (with certain exceptions)jeabto mandatory prepayment uj
issuances of debt, casualty and condemnation eamdtsales of assets, as well as from a percenfagecess cash flow (as defined in
senior secured term loan agreement) if the leveratie (as defined in the senior secured term bigneement) is greater than 3.00 to 1.0¥oc.
mandatory prepayments were owed for the year ebéedmber 31, 2014.

All of the term loans outstanding under the ses&goured term loan bear interest at rates based apoar option, thédjusted Eurodollar Ra
or the Base Rate (each as defined in the senioreg¢erm loan agreement). Adjusted EurodollaeRetns bear interest at a rate per an
equal to the sum of (i) the greater of (x) the Atipd Eurodollar Rate for the applicable interesiogeand (y) 1.00% plus (ii) a 3.508bargin.
Base Rate loans bear interest at a rate per anquat ® the sum of (i) the greater of (x) the BRs¢e and (y) 2.00% plus (ii) a 2.50%argin
The interest rate at December 31, 2014 was 4.50% .

Payments under the senior secured term loan agntere guaranteed by the Guarantors and are sebyragledge of all equity interests
certain subsidiaries as well as a lien on substiytall of the assets of Altisource Solutions &laand the Guarantors, subject to cel
exceptions.

The senior secured term loan agreement includegnemis that restrict or limit, among other thingsy ability to: create liens a
encumbrances; incur additional indebtedness; safisfer or dispose of assets; make Restrictecd®ayments including share repurche
change lines of business; amend material debt amgnets or other material contracts; engage in cettansactions with affiliates; enter i
sale/leaseback transactions; grant negative pledigagree to such other restrictions relating tosaliary dividends and distributions; mi
changes to its fiscal year and engage in mergefsamsolidations.

The senior secured term loan agreement contaitartevents of default, including (i) failure toypprincipal when due or interest or any o
amount owing on any other obligation under the @emiecured term loan agreement within fidays of becoming due, (ii) matel
incorrectness of representations and warrantiesiwede, (iii) breach of covenants, (iv) failurep@ay principal or interest on any other ¢
that equals or exceeds $40.0 million when duegdéfault on any other debt that equals or excee@93$4illion that causes, or gives the hol
or holders of such debt the ability to cause, algcation of such debt, (vi) occurrence of a CleanigControl (as defined in the senior sec
term loan agreement), (vii) bankruptcy and insobyeavents (as defined in the senior secured teem &greement), (viii) entry by a cour
one or more judgments against us (as defined irs¢inéor secured term loan agreement) in an amouexdess of $40.0 milliothat remai
unbonded, undischarged or unstayed for a certaitbeu of days after the entry thereof, (ix) the aoence of certain ERISA events and (x)
failure of certain Loan Documents (as defined ia $lenior secured term loan agreement) to be irfdtde and effect. If any event of def:
occurs and is not cured within applicable gracdoperset forth in the senior secured term loan eagent or waived, all loans and ot
obligations could become due and immediately payaht the facility could be terminated.
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At December 31, 2014, debt issuance costs wererfilibn , net of $2.2 millionof accumulated amortization. At December 31, 2@kh
issuance costs were $6.7 million , net of $1.0iamllof accumulated amortization. Debt issuance costsirmiuded in other assets in
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Interest expense on the term loans, including amation of debt issuance costs and the net debbdid, totaled $23.4 million$20.3 millior
and $1.2 million for the years ended December 81422013 and 2012, respectively.

Maturities of our long-term debt are as follows:

(in thousands)

2015 $ 5,94¢
2016 5,94¢
2017 5,94t
2018 5,94t
2019 5,94t
Thereafter 561,81¢

$ 591,54:

NOTE 15 — OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other non-current liabilities consist of the follmg as of December 31:

(in thousands) 2014 2013

Acquisition related contingent consideration $ 11,61¢ $ 42,94¢
Other non-current liabilities 9,03: 2,53(
Total $ 20,64¢ % 45,47¢

NOTE 16 — SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND SHARE-BASED COMP ENSATION
Common Stock

At December 31, 2014, we had 25.4 million sharethaired and issued, and 20.3 millishares of common stock outstanding. A
December 31, 2013, the Board of Directors had theep to issue shares of authorized but unissuedramnstock without further sharehol
action, subject to the requirements of applicablesl and stock exchanges, and we had 100.0 milhanes authorized, 25.4 millisshare
issued and 22.6 millioshares outstanding. In 2014, this authorizatiothtoBoard of Directors expired. The holders of shaof Altisourc
common stock are entitled to omete for each share on all matters voted on byettedders, and the holders of such shares will @ssal
voting power.

Equity Incentive Plan

Our 2009 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plarpiovides for various types of equity awards, inglgdstock options, stock appreciation rights, s
purchase rights, restricted shares and other aywards combination of any of the above. Under tlenPwe may grant up t6.7 million
Altisource share-based awards to officers, diractkey employees and to employees of our affiliafesof December 31, 2012,5 million
sharebased awards were available for future grant unlerPlan. Expired and forfeited awards are avaldbl reissuance. Vesting ¢
exercise of share-based awards are generally gamtiron continued employment.

Stock Repurchase Plan
On February 28, 2014, our shareholders approvedwastock repurchase program, which replaced theiqure stock repurchase progri

Under the new program, we are authorized to puechpgto 3.4 million shares of our common stockebasn a limit of 15%f the outstandir
shares of common stock on the date of approvahdaropen market, at a minimum price of $1.00 parssland a maximum price of $50008



share. This is in addition to amounts previoudlychased under the prior programs. From authoomatif the previous programs throt
December 31, 2014, we have purchased approxim@t2Imillion shares
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of our common stock in the open market at an awem@mge of $79.16 per share. We purchased 2.5omifhares of common stock at
average price of $103.67 per share during the grded December 31, 2014 and 1.2 million shares aivarage price of $116.9%r shar
during the year ended December 31, 2013. As of mbee 31, 2014, approximately 1.1 millieshares of common stock remain available
repurchase under the new program. Our senior sg¢arm loan limits the amount we can spend on sheparchases in any year and |
prevent repurchases in certain circumstances. A3egember 31, 2014, approximately $225 milliwas available to repurchase our com
stock under our senior secured term loan.

Share-Based Compensation

We issue share-based awards in the form of stotibrpand certain other equibased awards for certain employees and officerg
recorded share-based compensation expense of $ichm$2.4 million and $3.6 milliorfor the years ended December 31, 2014, 201
2012, respectively.

Outstanding share-based compensation currentlyistengimarily of stock option grants that are anbination of service-based and market
based options.

Service-Based OptionsThese options are granted at fair value on the afaggant. The options generally vest over fourrgedth equa
annual cliff-vesting and expire on the earlier 6fiears after the date of grant or following teration of service. A total 00.8 million
service-based awards were outstanding at Decemh@034.

Market-Based Options These option grants have twomponents, each of which vests only upon the gehient of certain criteria. T
first component, which we refer to internally asdimary performance” grants, consists of two-thiofishe markebased grant and beg
to vest if the stock price is at least double tkereise price, as long as the stock price reaizesmpounded annual gain of at le28%
over the exercise price. The remaining third ofrtfeket-based options, which we refer to internafiy'extraordinary performancegtants
begins to vest if the stock price is at least ¢rifile exercise price, as long as the stock prakzes a compounded annual gain of at
25% over the exercise price. The vesting schedulalf market-based awards is 2%fbon achievement of the criteria and the rema
75% in three equal annual installments. A total & million market-based awards were outstandirigemiember 31, 2014.

The Company granted 0.1 million stock options (ateaghted average exercise price of $ 84.61 pereyhkess than 0.1 milliostock option
(at a weighted average exercise price $104.84h@e}and 0.3 million stock options (at a weigragdrage exercise price of $69 @& share
during the years ended December 31, 2014, 2012@h2, respectively.

The fair value of the service-based options waerd@hed using the Blac&eholes option pricing model and a lattice (bindjniaodel wa
used to determine the fair value of the market-haggions, using the following assumptions as efghant date:

2014 2013 2012
Black-Scholes Binomial
Black-Scholes Binomial Black-Scholes Binomial

Risk-free interest rato) 1.80-1.91 0.01 -2.4¢ 1.02 -1.81 0.01-2.71 0.87 -1.17 0.08 —2.04
Expected stock price

volatility (%) 37.57 45.1¢ 38.38 45.1¢ 36.35 -36.7¢ 36.40 —-36.8( 34.22 -34.6¢ 34.20 -34.6(
Expected dividend yield — — — — — —
Expected option life

(in years) 6.2t — 6.2t — 6.2F —
Contractual life (in years — 14 — 14 — 14
Fair value $15.54 — 81.7¢ $12.66 — 83.6: $31.33 - 89.1¢/ $16.12 - 1.7 $19.25 — 89.8( $9.98 — 92.7¢

The following table summarizes the weighted averfagevalue of stock options granted, the totafiitgic value of stock options exercised
the grant date fair value of stock options vesteaihg the years ended December 31:

(in thousands, except per share amounts) 2014 2013 2012

Weighted average fair value at grant date per share $ 26.92 $ 32.5¢ $ 20.71
Intrinsic value of options exercised 10,25( 40,76 17,59¢
Grant date fair value of options vested duringgbegod 2,641 3,15¢ 2,79(

Share-based compensation expense is recorded egtirnhted forfeiture rates ranging from 1% to 10%
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As of December 31, 2014, estimated unrecognizedpeasation costs related to share-based paymentsnéedoto $3.4 million which we
expect to recognize over a weighted average rentaneiquisite service period of approximately 3.8rge

The following table summarizes the activity relatedur stock options:

Weighted
Weighted average
average contractual Aggregate
Number of exercise term intrinsic value
options price (inyears) (in thousands)
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 2,589,34. $ 18.3: 520 $ 363,29:
Granted 137,00( 84.61
Exercised (108,45() 24.8:
Forfeited (16,00:) 73.1¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 2,601,89. 21.21 4.44 47,80¢
Exercisable at December 31, 2014 2,279,55 13.8: 3.91 47,43(

The following table summarizes information abowic&toptions outstanding and exercisable at Dece®ihe2014:

Options outstanding Options exercisable
Weighted Weighted
average Weighted average Weighted
remaining average remaining average
contractual exercise contractual exercise
Exercise price range Number life price Number life price
$0.00 — $10.0® 1,647,65. 349 $ 9.14 1,647,65. 34¢ % 9.14
$10.01 — $20.0¢ 97,731 1.80 12.4F 97,73 1.8C 12.4¢
$20.01 — $30.0” 477,06 5.31 23.1¢ 443,62 5.31 23.1¢
$30.01 — $40.0¢" 48,30¢ 6.27 33.31 28,31¢ 6.37 33.1(
$40.01 — $50.0°
15,00( 9.94 49.0¢ — — —
$50.01 — $60.0” 10,00( 7.37 53.0( 6,25( 7.37 53.0(C
$60.01 — $70.0° 122,25( 7.19 60.6¢ 48,00: 7.1€ 60.7(
$70.01 — $80.0®
25,60( 9.86 72.7¢ — — —
$80.01 — $90.0( 40,00( 9.04 85.6: 4,68¢ 8.1Z 83.8¢
$90.01 — $100.06° 73,28: 9.31 94.3: 1,407 8.1¢€ 93.8¢
$100.01 — $110.06
15,00( 9.37 105.1: — — —
$120.01 — $130.06 30,00( 8.62 125.9¢ 1,87¢ 8.62 125.9¢

2,601,89: 2,279,55!

@These options contain market-based componentssasilted above. All other options are time-basedrdsva

The following table summarizes the market pricesessary in order for the market performance optiorisegin to vest:

Market-based options

Ordinary Extraordinary
Vesting price performance performance




$170.01 — $180.00
$180.01 — $190.00

Over $190.00

Total

Weighted average share price

75

12,50(

12,50( 40,87t
37,50( 37,65(
62,50( 78,52¢
100.37 78.5¢
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NOTE 17 — COST OF REVENUE

Cost of revenue principally includes payroll andpbogee benefits associated with personnel emplayedstomer service and operations r
fees paid to external providers related to the igiom of services, reimbursable expenses, techygaogl telecommunications expenses as
as depreciation and amortization of operating as3éte components of cost of revenue were as felfowthe years ended December 31:

(in thousands) 2014 2013 2012

Compensation and benefits $ 255,88¢ $ 156,81 $ 113,14!
Outside fees and services 243,32! 193,23: 123,33t
Reimbursable expenses 137,63« 102,47¢ 96,14
Technology and telecommunications 48,83 25,53« 23,40«
Depreciation and amortization 21,49¢ 14,42: 10,167
Total $ 707,18( $ 492,48( $ 366,20:

NOTE 18 — SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPEN SES

Selling, general and administrative expenses irclalyroll for personnel employed in executive, flice, legal, compliance, human resoul
vendor management, risk and operational effectisemeles. This category also includes occupansyscprofessional fees and deprecie
and amortization on nooperating assets. The components of selling, géaed administrative expenses were as followsHeryears end:
December 31:

(in thousands) 2014 2013 2012

Compensation and benefits $ 45,09¢ $ 27,86: $ 21,16¢
Professional services 18,59¢ 8,022 9,86¢
Occupancy related costs 38,26: 28,42« 24,04:
Amortization of intangible assets 37,68( 28,17¢ 5,03(
Depreciation and amortization 7,54¢ 4,63: 2,60¢
Change in the fair value of Equator Earn Out (37,929 — —
Goodwill impairment 37,47: — —
Marketing costs 24,13( 5,02¢ 2,50(
Other 30,417 11,66 9,50z
Total $ 201,28: $ 113,81 $ 74,71:

NOTE 19 — OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE), NET

Other income (expense), net consists of the foligvior the years ended December 31:

(in thousands) 2014 2013 2012

Loss in equity affiliate, including impairment loss $ — 3 a7e) $ (1,74
Interest income 10¢ 89¢ 22z
Other, net 71 (16€) (69)
Total $ 174 % 557 $ (1,58¢)

Loss in equity affiliates primarily represents quoportional share of the losses in Corresponderd &hd impairment loss on the investn
(see Note 11).
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NOTE 20 — INCOME TAXES

The components of income before income taxes anetootrolling interests consist of the following the year ended December 31:

(in thousands) 2014 2013 2012

Domestic - Luxembourg $ 124,18: $ 122,72: $ 107,49¢
Foreign - U.S. 9,57¢ 11,12¢ 4,91¢
Foreign - Non-U.S. 13,50¢ 8,48¢ 12,23¢
Total $ 147,26¢ $ 142,33 $ 124,64¢

The income tax provision consists of the followfogthe years ended December 31:

(in thousands) 2014 2013 2012
Current:
Domestic - Luxembourg $ 4,418 % 2,51¢ $ 2,841
Foreign - U.S. Federal 75 6 —
Foreign - U.S. State 47¢€ 402 35:
Foreign - Non-U.S. 4,04¢ 3,60( 2,552
$ 9,01z $ 6,52F $ 5,74¢
Deferred:
Domestic - Luxembourg $ — 3 — 3 38¢
Foreign - U.S. Federal 1,75¢ 2,50¢ 2,41¢
Foreign - U.S. State (281) 84 (293
Foreign - Non-U.S. (309 (575 20¢
$ 1,16€ $ 2,01t % 2,99:
Total $ 10,17¢  $ 8,54C $ 8,73¢

We received a tax ruling in June 2010 regardingttbatment of certain intangibles that exist forgmses of determining the Compasy’
taxable income, which expires in 2019 unless extdnat renewed. This ruling does not have a matenpact on our deferred tax asset
liabilities. Income tax computed by applying thexembourg statutory income tax rate of 29.2@#ters from income tax computed at
effective tax rate primarily because of the effegfcthe tax ruling and differing tax rates in muléigurisdictions.

We operate under tax holidays in certain geograpihiéndia and the Philippines. The India tax hajigl are effective through 2020, and ma
extended if certain additional requirements aresfadl. The Philippines tax holiday is effectivedhgh 2016, and may also be extended.
tax holidays are conditional upon our meeting derganployment and investment thresholds. The impatiiese tax holidays decreased for
taxes by $0.9 million ( $0.04 per diluted sharé),2$million ( $0.01 per diluted share) and $1.5lioml ( $0.06per diluted share) for the ye
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respsactivel

The Company accounts for certain income and expiégres differently for financial purposes and inatax purposes. We recognize defe
income tax assets and liabilities for these diffess between the financial reporting basis andatkhéasis of our assets and liabilities as we
expected benefits of utilizing net operating losd aredit carryforwards. We measure deferred inctameassets and liabilities using enactet
rates expected to apply to taxable income in tlaesym which we expect to recover or settle thesgpbrary differences.
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A summary of the tax effects of the temporary défeces is as follows for the years ended Decembier 3

(in thousands) 2014 2013

Current deferred tax assets:

Allowance for doubtful accounts and other reserves $ 72 $ 43

Accrued expenses 5,16¢ 3,18:
Current deferred tax liabilities:

Prepaid expenses (250) (389)
Current deferred tax assets, net $ 4987 $ 2,837

Non-current deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carryforwards $ 13,94( $ 12,43¢
U.S. federal and state tax credits 1,20z —
Non-U.S. deferred tax assets 1,78( 1,471
Share-based compensation 85¢€ 784
Other — 7
Non-current deferred tax liabilities:
Intangible assets (5,302 (6,035
Depreciation (11,879 (4,85%)
Other (a77) —
421 3,811
Valuation allowance (3,119 (3,189
Non-current deferred tax assets, net $ — 3 622
Non-current deferred tax liabilities, net $ (2,699 $ —
Net deferred tax assets $ 2,29 % 3,45¢
Total deferred tax assets $ 19,90C $ 14,73¢
Total deferred tax liabilities $ (17,607 $ (11,279

A valuation allowance is provided when it is deemeate likely than not that some portion or all deferred tax asset will not be realizec
determining whether a valuation allowance is needeel considered estimates of future taxable incofutyre reversals of tempor:
differences, the tax character of gains and lossed,the impact of tax planning strategies that lbarimplemented, if warranted. The
decrease in valuation allowance of $0.1 milltaring 2014 relates to an increase in state arelgiodosses generated in the current year .
release of prior year valuation allowance relateddrtain state losses the Company believes witertikely than not be realized.

We have not provided Luxembourg deferred taxes umutative earnings of nobuxembourg affiliates as we have chosen to indefiy
reinvest these earnings. The earnings reinvestefiscember 31, 2014 were approximately $48.0ionill which if distributed would result
additional tax due totaling approximately $9.6 raiil .

The Company had a deferred tax asset of $13.9om#ls of December 31, 2014 relating to the U.S. fddstate and foreign net operat
losses compared to $12.4 million as of DecembefB813. Of this amount, $1.8 millicas of December 31, 2014 related to state net apg
losses subject to a valuation allowance compar&dltd million as of December 31, 2013, and $1.lMonias of December 31, 2014 relate
Luxembourg net operating losses subject to a vialuatllowance compared to $1.8 milli@s of December 31, 2013. The Company ha
recognized the U.S. federal net operating lossyfrawards of $13.6 millionas of December 31, 2014 related to stock optiorescésel
compared to $9.5 million as of December 31, 20fL8:4dlized, the benefit would be an increase tdtemiél paidin capital. The gross amol
of net operating losses available for carryoveutare years is approximately $35.7 million as @d@mber 31, 2014 comparedd@R.6 millior
as of December 31, 2013. Of this amount, $12.2anikhs of December 31, 2014 compared to $13.5anills of December 31, 2013 relate



NCI for periods prior to our acquisition of NCI aiglsubject to Section 382 of the Internal Reve@ude (the‘Code”) which limits their use 1
approximately $1.3 million per year. These lossessaheduled to expire between the years 2022 @2@l 2
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In addition, the Company had a deferred tax ass1 @ million as of December 31, 2014 relatinghte U.S. federal and state tax credits(
comparative amount for 2013). The U.S. federal itredrryforward is scheduled to expire between 2@B2 2034. The state tax cre
carryforwards are scheduled to expire between 200172024.

The distribution of the Company in connection witle separation from Ocwen during 2009 was interideloe a taxree transaction und
Section 355 of the Code. To the extent Ocwen deesgnize tax under Section 355 of the Code, Altiseinas agreed to indemnify Ocwer
addition, we have agreed to indemnify Ocwen shéthddexpected tax treatments not be upheld upoeweor audit to the extent related to
operating results. The Company does not anticipabaterial obligation under this indemnity.

The following table reconciles the income tax psom to the Luxembourg statutory income tax ratetie years ended December 31.:

2014 2013 2012
Statutory tax rate 29.2: % 29.2: % 28.8( %
Permanent difference related to Luxembourg intdegissets (22.60) (23.59 (21.99
Change in valuation allowance (0.05) 0.7€ 0.1¢€
State tax expense 0.0z 0.24 0.17
Tax credits (0.72) — —
Uncertain taxes 0.8¢ — —
Other 0.14 (0.6%) (0.13)
Effective tax rate 6.91% 6.0C % 7.01%

The Company follows ASC Topic 740 which clarifié® taccounting and disclosure for uncertainty ingasitions. We analyzed our tax fili
positions in all of the domestic and foreign taxigdictions where we are required to file income itaturns as well as for all open tax yeal
these jurisdictions. The Company has open tax yieatise United States (2011 through 2013), Indi@l®through 2014) and Luxembo
(2010 through 2013).

The following table reconciles the amount of ungrieed tax benefits for the year ended Decembei2814 (no comparative amounts
2013):

(in thousands) 2014

Amount of unrecognized tax benefits as of the beigim of the year $ —
Increases as a result of tax positions taken irioa period 1,15:
Amount of unrecognized tax benefit as of the enthefyear $ 1,15¢

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits idiclg interest and penalties that, if recognizeduldaffect the effective tax rate &l.:
million as of December 31, 2014 ( mwomparative amount for 2013). The Company recagninterest, if any, related to unrecognizec
benefits as a component of income tax expenseof Aecember 31, 2014, the Company had recordediaddnterest and penalties relate
unrecognized tax benefits of $0.1 million ( no camgiive amount for 2013).

Due to an expected settlement within the next ter@honths, an estimated $1.3 milliohunrecognized tax benefits may be recognizednd
that twelve month period.

NOTE 21 — EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic EPS is computed by dividing income availableommon shareholders by the weighted average euofbcommon shares outstanc
for the period. Diluted EPS reflects the assunwtersion of all dilutive securities using the segy stock method.
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Basic and diluted EPS are calculated as followdHeryears ended December 31:

(in thousands, except per share data) 2014 2013 2012

Net income attributable to Altisource $ 134,48: $ 129,97 $ 110,62°
Weighted average common shares outstanding, basic 21,62¢ 23,07: 23,35¢
Dilutive effect of stock options 2,00¢ 1,981 1,60¢
Weighted average common shares outstanding, diluted 23,63« 25,05 24,96:

Earnings per share:
Basic $ 6.2z $ 5.6 $ 4.74

Diluted $ 5.6¢ $ 5.1¢ $ 4.4:

For each of the years ended December 31, 2014, 942012, less than 0.1 million options that warg-dilutive have been excluded fr(
the computation of diluted EPS. These options veetedilutive because their exercise price was gredi@n the average market price of
common stock. Also excluded from the computatiordiiited EPS are 0.1 million , 0.1 million and G8llion options for the years enc
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectivelntedafor shares that are issuable upon the achiewvieaf certain market and performa
criteria related to our common stock price andramualized rate of return to investors that haveyetteen met.

NOTE 22 — COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND REGULATORY MATTERS
Litigation

From time to time, we are involved in legal and @dstrative proceedings arising in the course af lousiness. We record a liability for th
matters if an unfavorable outcome is probable &edaimount of loss can be reasonably estimatedjdimg expected insurance coverage.
proceedings where the reasonable estimate ofda@ssange, we record a best estimate of loss wiitieimange.

On September 8, 2014, the West Palm Beach FirefighPension Fund filed a putative securities clasrasuit against Altisource and cert
of its officers and directors in the United StaBastrict Court for the Southern District of Floriddleging violations of the Securities Excha
Act of 1934 and Rule 10b-with regard to disclosures concerning pricing tradsactions with related parties that allegedfiated Altisourc
share prices. The court subsequently appointed®émsion Fund of the International Union of Pami@nd Allied Trades District Council
and the Annuity Fund of the International UniorRafinters and Allied Trades District Council 35 &ad Plaintiffs. On January 30, 2015, L
Plaintiffs filed an amended class action complathich adds Ocwen Financial Corporation as a defen@ad seeks a determination thai
action may be maintained as a class action on behplrchasers of the Compasysecurities between April 25, 2013 and DecembgeQ1¢
and an unspecified amount of damages. Altisourands to vigorously defend this lawsuit. Altisoiis unable to predict the outcome of
lawsuit or reasonably estimate the potential ldgkgny, arising from the suit, given that motiors dismiss have not yet been filed
adjudicated, discovery has not commenced and &gniflegal and factual issues remain to be deterdi

In addition to the matter referenced above, wararelved in legal actions in the course of our bess, some of which seek monetary dam
We do not believe that the outcome of these prangedboth individually and in the aggregate, wdlve a material impact on our finan
condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Regulatory Matters

Our business is subject to regulation and overdighederal, state and local governmental autlesitiVe periodically receive subpoenas,
investigative demands or other requests for infoionafrom regulatory agencies in connection witkitltregulatory or investigative author
We are currently responding to such inquiries friaderal and state agencies relating to certaincéspef our business. We believe i
premature to predict the potential outcome or torege any potential financial impact in connectiith these inquiries.
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Ocwen Related Matters

Ocwen is our largest customer and 60% of our 2@¥énue was related party revenue from Ocwen. Autitly, 24%of our 2014 revenue w
earned on the portfolios serviced by Ocwen, butoisconsidered related party revenue because a @iuer than Ocwen selects Altisourct
the service provider. Ocwen has been and is sutjechumber of pending federal and state regylatwmestigations, inquiries and requests
information that have or could result in adversgufatory actions against Ocwen. For example, @&saltrof various regulatory actions, Oc\
is (i) subject to an independent audisoreview of compliance with California servicingv& and has agreed not to obtain any new sen
rights in California until the regulator is satesfi with future document requests, (i) operatinglamthe oversight of an asite operatior
monitor imposed by New York Department of Finan@airvices (“NYDFS”), which is assessing the adegyuaual effectiveness of Ocwen’
operations, including information technology systertiii) required to perform benchmarking pricintudies for transactions with rela
parties, which are subject to periodic review by thonitor imposed by the NYDFS and (iv) subjectequirements under an agreement
the Consumer Finance Protection Bureau and vasstates attorneys general and agencies that impssedfic servicing guidelines a
oversight by an independent national monitor, wéaently reported they were investigating the rditgbof information Ocwen has provide
In addition to these matters, Ocwen continues teutgect to other regulatory investigations, ingsirand requests for information and pen
legal proceedings, and Ocwen may become subjdotuce federal and state regulatory investigationguiries and requests for informati
any of which could also result in adverse regulatorother actions against Ocwen.

As a result of these various difficulties faced @gwen, its debt and servicer ratings have been dmwded. Further, certain bondholder
Ocwen-serviced residential mortgage-backed seesr{tRMBS") alleged that Ocwen, as servicer of @ierimortgageédacked securities trus
defaulted on these servicing agreements.

Ocwen relies, in part, on HLSS to finance its opers. For a significant portion of Ocwen-serviceoh-governmensponsored enterpri
(“non-GSE”) loans, HLSS owns (1) the rights to receive the isgry fees that Ocwen is entitled to receive anpl g&sociated servicil
advances. As a result of certain of the foregoiragtens, HLSS has received notices of default wetipect to certain of its debt financing
has received demands from a shareholder that seg\ie transferred away from Ocwen.

The foregoing may have significant and varied affem Ocwers business and our continuing relationships witiv€t For example, Ocw
may be required to alter the way it conducts bissinéncluding the parties it contracts with forvsegs (including information technolo
services), it may be required to seek changes txiting pricing structure with related partieotherwise, it may lose or sell some or all ¢
non-GSE servicing rights or subservicing arrangementaay lose one or more of its state servicing lsgem Additional regulatory actions n
impose additional restrictions on or require chanigeOcwens business that would require it to sell assetshange its business operatic
Further, Ocwers ability to finance its operations and repay matuobligations rests in large part on its abikityd the ability of HLSS -
continue to borrow money, which also may be affédig any or all of the circumstances described abéwny orall of these effects coL
result in our eventual loss of Ocwen as a cust@narreduction in the volume of services they pasehfrom us or the loss of other customers

If any of the following events occurred, Altisoursaevenue would be significantly lower and our lissaf operations would be materie
adversely affected, including from the impairmentwite-off of goodwill, intangible assets, property andiggnent, other assets and acco
receivable:

» Altisource loses Ocwen as a customer or theresigraficant reduction in the volume of servicesytipeirchase from 1

» Ocwen loses or sells a significant portion doéits nonGSE servicing rights or subservicing arrangen

» Ocwen loses its state servicing licenses irestaiith a significant number of loans in Ocwsegérvicing portfoli

» The contractual relationship between Ocwen ands@dtice changes significantly or there are signiiazhanges to our pricing
Ocwen for services from which we generate mateeiaénue

Management cannot predict the outcome of the Oaekated matters or the impact they may have orséltice. However, in the event th

Ocwen related matters materially negatively impgdltisource, we believe the impact to Altisource Wwbaccur over an extended period of t
and the variable nature of our cost structure alogto realign our cost structure in line with a@mng revenue.
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In this regard, we have a plan that allows us ficiehtly execute on this realignment. We beliekatttransfers of Ocwesi’servicing rights to
successor servicer(s) would take an extended pefiditne because of the approval required from mpasties, including regulators, rat
agencies, RMBS trustees, lenders and others. Dthiageriod of time, we believe we would contiriagyenerate revenue from the service
provide to the portfolio. Additionally, we have sg&l growth initiatives that focus on diversifyingd growing our revenue and customer t
Our major growth initiatives include:

» Attracting new clients to our comprehensive defegithited business
» Growing our origination services and technologyibesse

» Expanding our innovative online real estate maiket

» Growing our property management and renovationiges\business

We have an established sales and marketing strédesyypport each of these initiatives.

Management believes our plans, together with ctiirgmidity and cash flows from operations will befficient to meet working capital, cap
expenditures, debt service and other cash needsd feast the next year. However, there can besaorance that our plans would be succe
or our operations would be profitable.

Leases

We lease certain premises and equipment underugnperating lease agreements. Future minimum leag@ents at December 31, 2
under non-cancelable operating leases with anraligerm exceeding one year are as follows:

Operating lease

(in thousands) obligations
2015 $ 17,92«
2016 15,357
2017 11,84:
2018 7,941
2019 5,06(
Thereafter 5,35¢
$ 63,47¢

Total operating lease expense, net of subleasenecwas $20.1 million , $12.8 million and $10.9lroil for the years ended December
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The operatiagde generally relate to office locations and ceftestomary lease terms which range frbm
to 10 years in duration.

In connection with the acquisition of Equator ($éate 5 ), we executed a standby letter of credthaamount of $1.5 millionelated to a
office lease, secured by a restricted cash baldncaddition, we executed standby letters of creatitling $1.8 millionfor three other offic
leases.

Escrow and Trust Balances

We hold customersissets in escrow and trust accounts at variousdiakinstitutions pending completion of certaimlrestate activities. V
also hold cash in trust accounts at various fireriostitutions where contractual obligations maedaaintaining dedicated bank account:
Financial Services collections. These amountshatd in escrow and trust accounts for limited pesi@f time and are not included in
consolidated balance sheets. Amounts held in wsarl trust accounts were $62.5 million and $71il8an at December 31, 2014 and 2C
respectively.

NOTE 23 — SEGMENT REPORTING
Our business segments are based upon our organaastructure, which focuses primarily on the g®w offered, and are consistent with
internal reporting used by our Chief Executive €dfi (our Chief Operating Decision Maker) to evatuaperating performance and to as

the allocation of our resources.

We classify our businesses into three reportabjensats. TheMortgage Servicesegment provides services that span the mortgadjeea



estate lifecycle and are typically outsourced nlservicers, loan originators, investors and agbéers of single family
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homes. Therinancial Servicesegment provides collection and customer relatipgnsifanagement services primarily to debt originatainc
servicers (e.g., credit card, auto lending, reteéidit and mortgage) and the utility, insurance aotkl industries. Th&echnology Servic
segment principally consists of our REALSuite saitevapplications, Equator’'s software applicatidisrtgage Builders software applicatiol
and our information technology infrastructure seegi The REALSuite platform provides a fully intagpd set of software applications
technologies that manage the enceiat lifecycle for residential and commercial moggdoan servicing including the automated managé
and payment of a distributed network of vendorudgr's software applications provide comprehensanal-toend workflow and transacti
services to manage real estate and foreclosurededativities and purchase related services frenders. Mortgage Builder provides mortg
origination and servicing software applicationsatidition,Corporate Items and Eliminationsclude eliminations of transactions betweer
reportable segments, interest expense and coateddb corporate support functions including exgeu finance, legal, compliance, hun
resources, vendor management, risk and operatifizativeness and marketing.

Financial information for our segments is as fokow

For the year ended December 31, 2014

Corporate
Mortgage Financial Technology Items and Consolidated

(in thousands) Services Services Services Eliminations Altisource
Revenue $ 790,07¢ $ 98,49¢ $ 230,360 $ (40,02¢) $ 1,078,91
Cost of revenue 484,51, 64,33¢ 194,30: (35,97) 707,18l
Gross profit 305,56 34,16 36,06¢ (4,05%) 371,73t
Selling, general and administrative expenses 94,67¢ 18,79: 31,95( 55,86: 201,28:
Income from operations 210,88t 15,37( 4,11¢ (59,919 170,45:
Other income (expense), net 204 62 (31) (23,429 (23,189
Income before income taxes and non-controllin

For the year ended December 31, 2013

Corporate
Mortgage Financial Technology Items and Consolidated

(in thousands) Services Services Services Eliminations Altisource
Revenue $ 596,15: $ 92,95¢ $ 103,89: $ (24,649 $ 768,35
Cost of revenue 374,71: 55,32¢ 84,53¢ (22,099 492,48
Gross profit 221,43¢ 37,63( 19,35 (2,54%) 275,87
Selling, general and administrative expenses 46,51t 15,57: 12,44 39,28: 113,81(
Income from operations 174,92 22,05¢ 6,911 (41,827 162,06
Other income (expense), net (136€) (10) 7 (19,599 (19,739
Income before income taxes and non-controllin

interests 174,785 $ 22,045 $ 6,915 $ (61,42:) $ 142,33:

For the year ended December 31, 2012

Corporate
Mortgage Financial Technology Items and Consolidated
(in thousands) Services Services Services Eliminations Altisource
Revenue $ 452,79¢ $ 64,52: $ 74,18¢ $ (23,14) $ 568,36(
Cost of revenue 285,58t 46,73" 54,63¢ (20,75¢) 366,20:

Gross profit 167,211 17,78¢ 19,55¢ (2,39)) 202,15¢



Selling, general and administrative expenses 25,09¢ 13,41¢ 8,88t 27,31( 74,71
Income from operations 142,11: 4,37( 10,66 (29,707 127,44
Other income (expense), net (1,719 (27 (25) (1,039 (2,799

Income before income taxes and non-controlling
interests $ 140,39¢ $ 4,34 $ 10,64: $ (30,739 % 124,64¢
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Corporate
Mortgage Financial Technology Items and Consolidated
(in thousands) Services Services Services Eliminations Altisource
Total assets:
December 31, 2014 $ 313,20t % 56,09¢ $ 250,40: $ 168,51t $ 788,22:
December 31, 2013 310,25: 55,93( 277,94 85,92¢ 730,05:

Our services are provided to customers primaritated in the United States. Premises and equipmentonsist of the following, by country:

December 31, December 31,
(in thousands) 2014 2013
United States $ 88,27 $ 63,61¢
India 27,08: 16,40
Luxembourg 9,05¢ 3,211
Philippines 3,34¢ 4,01¢
Total $ 127,75¢ $ 87,25:

NOTE 24 — QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

The following tables contain selected unauditedest@nt of operations information for each quarter2014 and 2013. The followil
information reflects all normal recurring adjustrteenecessary for a fair presentation of the infaionafor the periods presented. The opere
results for any quarter are not necessarily intlieadf results for any future period. Our businissaffected by seasonality.

2014 quarter ended™®

(in thousands, except per share data) March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
Revenue $ 239,26¢ $ 296,07: $ 287,68t $ 255,88
Gross profit 91,46¢ 112,07: 98,96+ 69,23t
Income (loss) before income taxes and

non-controlling interests 43,20: 58,22¢ 45,867 (28)
Net income (loss) 40,14¢ 54,73: 43,11¢ (90€)
Net income (loss) attributable to Altisource 39,63: 54,10: 42,28 (1,53

Earnings (loss) per share:
Basic $ 1.7¢ $ 24 % 19 $ (0.0¢)
Diluted $ 161 $ 224 % 17¢ ¢ (0.0%)

Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic 22,50¢ 22,08¢ 21,62¢ 20,30¢
Diluted 24,66 24,16¢ 23,64( 20,30¢
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2013 quarter ended™®

(in thousands, except per share data) March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
Revenue $ 148,82° $ 186,11( $ 210,83 $ 222,58!
Gross profit 51,86¢ 69,13¢ 76,574 78,30(
Income before income taxes and

non-controlling interests 30,67¢ 34,48¢ 38,61+ 38,55¢
Net income 28,521 32,06¢ 36,95¢ 36,24:
Net income attributable to Altisource 27,51¢ 30,93: 36,00¢ 35,51¢

Earnings per share:
Basic $ 11 % 134 $ 15€ % 1.5¢€
Diluted $ 1.1C $ 128 $ 14z $ 1.42

Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic 23,37« 23,16 23,02t 22,73¢
Diluted 25,05¢ 24,82 25,33 25,00¢

@M The sum of quarterly amounts, including per shameunts, may not equal amounts reported for yealate-periods. This is due to the effi
of rounding and changes in the number of weightedlegge shares outstanding for each period.

@We acquired Mortgage Builder on September 12, 20i#acquired Owners.com on November 21, 2014 (s¢e N).

®We acquired the Homeward fee-based businesses orhM8, 2013, completed the ResCaplfased business transaction on April 12, :
and acquired Equator on November 15, 2013 (see Npte
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial 0#r have evaluated the effectiveness of our diseko controls and procedures (as def
in Rule 13a-15(e) and Rule 15d-15(e) of the SeesriExchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exch&wg8) as of the end of the peri
covered by this report. Based on such evaluatiech sfficers have concluded that our disclosurdrotsmand procedures as of the end o
period covered by this report were effective toueaghat information required to be disclosed bynuthe reports that we file or submit un
the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summaaizédeported within the time periods specifiedhiea SEC rules and forms, and to en
that such information is accumulated and commuatt& our management, including the Chief Execudificer and Chief Financial Office
as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regardimuired disclosure.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Finangal Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiging adequate internal control over financigdaging, as defined in Rule 13#(f) of
the Exchange Act. Management has assessed th&wdfexss of our internal control over financialogng as of December 31, 2014 base
criteria established iinternal Control-Integrated Framework (2018sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatnhe Treadwa
Commission. The scope of managemerdssessment of the effectiveness of internal @bwtrer financial reporting includes all of «
businesses except for the businesses and certgtsaxquired and certain liabilities assumed oftdége Builder Software, Inc. and Owr
Advantage, LLC, which were acquired on September2024 and November 21, 2014, respectively, andse&ltombined financial stateme
represent 5% of total assets and less than 1%vehues and net income attributable to Altisourcehef consolidated financial staterr
amounts as of and for the year ended December B4.2See Note %o the accompanying consolidated financial statéméor furthe
discussion of these acquisitions. As a result isf &issessment, management concluded that, as efiidec 31, 2014, our internal control ¢
financial reporting was effective in providing reagble assurance regarding the reliability of foiahreporting and the preparation of finan
statements for external purposes in accordance geétierally accepted accounting principles. DelofiteTouche LLP has independer
assessed the effectiveness of our internal coowe financial reporting and its report is includeztein.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control direxncial reporting (as defined in the Exchange Rciies 13a-15(f) and 15t5(f)) tha
occurred during the quarter ended December 31,,2044 have materially affected, or are reasonéikély to materially affect, our intern
control over financial reporting.

During 2014, we determined that disclosures ofteelsparty expenses in previously issued financiatements were not complete.
connection with our second quarter of 2014 finadn@porting and closing process, we enhanced apiemmented our related party disclos
controls to include disclosure reconciliation preees between us and our related parties and revidwelated party activity reflected
accounts receivable and accounts payable to ensumisclosures are complete.

Limitations on Controls

Our disclosure controls and procedures and intazoadrol over financial reporting are designed tovjide reasonable assurance of achie
their objectives as specified above. Managemens$ doé expect, however, that our disclosure con@als procedures or our internal cor
over financial reporting will prevent or detect attor and fraud. Any control system, no matter lveell designed and operated, is based
certain assumptions and can provide only reasonabteabsolute, assurance that its objectivesbeilimet. Further, no evaluation of cont
can provide absolute assurance that misstatemastsoderror or fraud will not occur or that all ¢ar issues and instances of fraud, if
within the Company have been detected.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART IlI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

The information required by this item is incorpaditerein by reference to our definitive proxy estagnt in connection with our 2015 anr
meeting of shareholders to be filed pursuant touReigpn 14A under the Exchange Act.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorpediterein by reference to our definitive proxy estagnt in connection with our 2015 anr
meeting of shareholders to be filed pursuant touReigpn 14A under the Exchange Act.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item is incorpediterein by reference to our definitive proxy estagnt in connection with our 2015 anr
meeting of shareholders to be filed pursuant touReigpn 14A under the Exchange Act.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is incorpaditerein by reference to our definitive proxy estagnt in connection with our 2015 anr
meeting of shareholders to be filed pursuant touReigpn 14A under the Exchange Act.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorpaditerein by reference to our definitive proxy estagnt in connection with our 2015 anr
meeting of shareholders to be filed pursuant touReigpn 14A under the Exchange Act.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(@)

The following documents are filed as part of tms@al report.

1. Financial Statements
See Item 8 above.

2. Financial Statement Schedules:
Schedule Il Valuation and Qualifying Accountsincluded below.

3. Exhibits:

Exhibit

Number Exhibit Description

2.1 Form of Separation Agreement between Altisourcefélar Solutions S.A. and Ocwen Financial Corparat{incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the Registrant’s Foid1PB/A — Amendment No. 1 to Form 10 as filed wilte Commission on
June 29, 2009)

2.2 Separation Agreement, dated as of December 21, d@h®een Altisource Residential Corporation antisAlrce Portfolio
Solutions S.A. (incorporated by reference to Exti#hl to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on Decembg&r2012)

2.3 Separation Agreement, dated as of December 21, 2@h®een Altisource Asset Management CorporatimhAdtisource
Portfolio Solutions S.A. (incorporated by referemed=xhibit 2.2 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed December 28, 2012)

2.4 Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of Marc2023, by and among Altisource Portfolio Solutioins,, Altisource
Solutions S.ar.l.,, Ocwen Financial Corporationytéavard Residential, Inc. and Power Valuation Sesjiénc. (incorporated |
reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Form 8kd on April 4, 2013)

2.5 Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of Augug018, by and among Altisource Portfolio Soluti&4.., Altisource
Solutions S.a r.l. and the Equity Interestholdér&quator, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibl to the Company’s
Form 8-K filed on August 21, 2013)

3.1 Articles of Incorporation of Altisource Portfolicofiitions S.A. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit to the Company’s Form
10-K filed on February 13, 2014)

10.1 Separation Agreement, dated as of August 10, 2B08nd between Altisource Portfolio Solutions SaAd Ocwen Financial
Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibitllof the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8g<iled with the
Commission on August 13, 2009)

10.2 Tax Matters Agreement, dated as of August 10, 2b9@&nd between Altisource Solutions S.a r.l. acén Financial
Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibif2lof the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8giled with the
Commission on August 13, 2009)

10.3 Transition Services Agreement, dated as of Aug0s2@Q09, by and between Altisource Solutions $.amd Ocwen Financial
Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit3lof the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8g<iled with the
Commission on August 13, 2009)

10.4 Emplovee Matters Aareement. dated as of Auaus2@09. bv and between Altisource Solutions S.and Ocwen Financi



10.5

10.6

Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibi#lof the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8g<iled with the
Commission on August 13, 2009)

Technology Products Services Agreement, dated Asigdist 10, 2009, by and between Altisource Sohgi§.a r.l. and Ocwen
Financial Corporation (incorporated by referenc&xibit 10.5 of the Registrant’s Current ReportFmrm 8K as filed with the
Commission on August 13, 2009)

Services Agreement, dated as of August 10, 200@nkiybetween Altisource Solutions S.a r.l. and GcRieancial Corporation
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of thegRtrant’'s Current Report on Form 8-K as filedvitlie Commission on
August 13, 2009)

88




Table of Contents

10.7

10.8

10.9%

10.10t

10.11t

10.12t

10.13

10.14%

10.15t

10.16

10.17t

10.18t

10.19

10.20t

10.21t

10.22

Data Center and Disaster Recovery Services Agreemated as of August 10, 2009, by and betweersdutice Solutions S.a
r.l. and Ocwen Financial Corporation (incorporabgdeference to Exhibit 10.7 of the Registrant’'sr€nt Report on Form 8-K
as filed with the Commission on August 13, 2009)

Intellectual Property Agreement, dated as of Audst2009, by and between Altisource Solutionsr$.and Ocwen Financial
Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibii8lof the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8g<iled with the
Commission on August 13, 2009)

Altisource Portfolio Solutions S.A. 2009 Equity amtive Plan, dated as of August 7, 2009 (incorgalély reference from
Exhibit 10.8 to Amendment No. 1 to the Registratgiatement on Form 10 of Altisource Portfolio Sians S.A. filed with the
Commission on June 29, 2009)

Employment Contract between Altisource SolutiorisrS. and William B. Shepro (incorporated by refeze from Exhibit 10.9
to Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statemerfammn 10 of Altisource Portfolio Solutions S.A il with the Commission
on June 29, 2009)

Employment Contract between Altisource SolutiorssrS. and Robert D. Stiles (incorporated by refieeefrom Exhibit 10.10 to
Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement amFD of Altisource Portfolio Solutions S.A. filedth the Commission on
June 29, 2009)

Employment Contract between Altisource Solutiorsr3. and Kevin J. Wilcox (incorporated by refezerfrom Exhibit 10.11 t
Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement amF® of Altisource Portfolio Solutions S.A. asfil with the Commission
on June 29, 2009)

Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of FebrRag010, by and among Altisource Portfolio Solui@A., and the Equity
Interest Holders of The Mortgage Partnership of Aoz L.L.C. and the Management Owners (incorparaiereference to
Exhibit 10.12 of the Company’s 10-K as filed wittetCommission on March 17, 2010)

Form of Put Option Agreements (incorporated bynegfee to Exhibit 10.13 of the Company’s 10-K asdilvith the
Commission on March 17, 2010)

Form of Non-qualified Stock Option Agreement, punsuto the 2009 Equity Incentive Plan (incorpordigdeference to
Exhibit 10.14 of the Company’s 10-K as filed witletCommission on February 18, 2011)

First Amendment to the Transition Services Agreetmdaited as of August 10, 2011, by and between @dvirgancial
Corporation and Altisource Solutions S.a r.l. (immrated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the ComyfmB-K as filed with the
Commission on August 16, 2011)

Separation Agreement dated February 22, 2012 batikisource Solutions S.ar.l., Altisource PorifoSolutions S.A. and
Robert D. Stiles (incorporated by reference to BixHi0.1 to the Company’s 8-K as filed with the Guission on February 23,
2012)

Employment Agreement dated March 13, 2012 betwd#sofirce Solutions S.a r.l. and Michelle D. Estamgincorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s 8-Kikesifwith the Commission on March 16, 2012)

Support Services Agreement, dated as of Augus2d1z, by and between Ocwen Mortgage Servicing,dnd.Altisource
Solutions S.ar.l. (incorporated by reference tbikit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on Augas, 2012)

First Amendment to the Employment Contract datedfa#sugust 15, 2012 between Altisource Solutior 9. and William B.
Shepro (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16.the Company’s Form 8-K filed on August 20, 2012)

First Amendment to the Employment Contract datedfasugust 15, 2012 between Altisource Solutiorésd. and Kevin J.
Wilcox (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1002the Company’s Form 8-K filed on August 20, 2012)

Services Agreement, dated as of October 1, 201andybetween Ocwen Mortgage Servicing, Inc. andédtrce Solutions S.a
r | (incornnrated hv referance tn Fyhihit 10 tHe Comnan’<e Farm LK filed nn Octnher 5 2017



10.23

10.24

10.25

Technology Products Services Agreement, dated @swber 1, 2012, by and between Ocwen Mortgageiceg, Inc. and
Altisource Solutions S.a r.l. (incorporated by refece to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 8-kdilon October 5, 2012)

Data Center and Disaster Recovery Agreement, det@d October 1, 2012, by and between Ocwen Moet@agvicing, Inc.
and Altisource Solutions S.a r.l. (incorporateddference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Form 8kd on October 5, 2012)

Intellectual Property Agreement, dated as of Oatdh@012, by and between Ocwen Mortgage Servidirgg,and Altisource
Solutions S.ar.l. (incorporated by reference tbikix 10.4 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on Ocatols, 2012)
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10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36**

10.37

10.38

10.39

10.40

10.41

10.42

First Amendment to Support Services Agreement,ddaseof October 1, 2012, by and between Ocwen Mgegdervicing, Inc.
and Altisource Solutions S.ar.l. (incorporatedéference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Form 8kd on October 5, 2012)

First Amendment to Services Agreement, dated &ctdber 1, 2012, by and between Ocwen Financigb@ation and
Altisource Solutions S.ar.l. (incorporated by refece to Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Form 8-kdilon October 5, 2012)

First Amendment to Technology Products and Sendggeement, dated as of October 1, 2012, by anddmt Ocwen
Financial Corporation and Altisource Solutions S.&incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.the Company’s Form 8-K
filed on October 5, 2012)

First Amendment to Data Center and Disaster Rego¥%greement, dated as of October 1, 2012, by ahddsn Ocwen
Financial Corporation and Altisource Solutions S.&incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8he Company’s Form 8-K
filed on October 5, 2012)

First Amendment to Intellectual Property Agreemelatted as of October 1, 2012, by and between O&ivemcial Corporation
and Altisource Solutions S.a r.l. (incorporateddference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Company’s Form 8kd on October 5, 2012)

Credit Agreement, dated as of November 27, 2012ngmiltisource Solutions S.ar.l., as borrower, @enpany and certain of
the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries, as guaranBank of America, N.A, as Administrative Agamd Collateral Agent,
Bank of America, N.A., Barclays Bank PLC and Citigp Global Markets Inc., as Lead Arrangers and IBgscBank PLC and
Citigroup Global Markets Inc., as Co-Syndicationefits, and certain lenders party thereto from tiontmie (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8l&d on December 3, 2012)

Support Services Agreement, dated as of Decemh&@M2P, between Altisource Residential Corporatind Altisource
Solutions S.ar.l. (incorporated by reference tbikix 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on Dedmm28, 2012)

Support Services Agreement, dated as of Decemh@P, between Altisource Asset Management Cotjporand Altisource
Solutions S.ar.l. (incorporated by reference tbikix 10.2 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on Ded®m28, 2012)

Tax Matters Agreement, dated as of December 212, 2@tween Altisource Residential Corporation attisédurce Solutions
S.ar.l. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 11.3he Company’s Form 8-K filed on December 28,20

Tax Matters Agreement, dated as of December 212, 2@tween Altisource Asset Management CorporatiahAltisource
Solutions S.ar.l. (incorporated by reference tbikix 10.4 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on Ded®@m28, 2012)

Master Services Agreement, dated as of Decemb&MP, between Altisource Residential Corporatiod Altisource
Solutions S.ar.l. (incorporated by reference tbikix 10.5 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on Ded®m28, 2012)

Trademark License Agreement, dated as of Decenthe?.2, between Altisource Residential Corporagind Altisource
Solutions S.ar.l. (incorporated by reference tbikix 10.6 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on Dedmm28, 2012)

Trademark License Agreement, dated as of Decenthe?2, between Altisource Asset Management Catjmor and
Altisource Solutions S.a r.l. (incorporated by refece to Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Form 8-i¢dilon December 28, 2012)

Technology Products Services Agreement, betwedsoiiltce Asset Management Corporation and AltisoGaetions S.ar.l.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to tlerpany’s Form 8-K filed on December 28, 2012)

Senior Unsecured Term Loan Agreement, dated agoémber 27, 2012, among Altisource Solutions §,as. Lender, Ocwen
Financial Corporation, as Borrower, and certairsalibries of Ocwen Financial Corporation, as Gueman(incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8l&d on December 31, 2012)

Second Amendment to Services Agreement, dated Msuah 29, 2013, by and between Ocwen Financiap@wattion and
Altisource Solutions S.a r.l. (incorporated by refece to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-édilon April 4, 2013)

Second Amendment to Technology Productsi@snAgreement, dated as of March 29, 2013, bybatdeen Ocwen Financial



Corporation and Altisource Solutions S.a r.l. (inmrated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the ComyfsaRorm 8-K filed on
April 4, 2013)

10.43 Second Amendment to Data Center and Disaster Rec®egvices Agreement, dated as of March 29, 2B¢and between
Ocwen Financial Corporation and Altisource SolusiGha r.l. (incorporated by reference to ExhibiB10 the Company’s Form
8-K filed on April 4, 2013)
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10.44 Second Amendment to Intellectual Property Agreendsitd as of March 29, 2013, by and between Odvireancial
Corporation and Altisource Solutions S.a r.l. (irmwrated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the ConyfmRorm 8-K filed on
April 4, 2013)

10.45 First Amendment to Services Agreement, dated &dasth 29, 2013, by and between Ocwen Mortgage Segyilnc.
and Altisource Solutions S.a r.l. (incorporateddference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Form 8kd on April 4,
2013)

10.46 First Amendment to Technology Products Services@grent, dated as of March 29, 2013, by and bet®@egren Mortgage
Servicing, Inc. and Altisource Solutions S.a iiricorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to thenpany’s Form 8-K filed on
April 4, 2013)

10.47 First Amendment to Data Center and Disaster RegdServices Agreement, dated as of March 29, 204 2ndl between
Ocwen Mortgage Servicing, Inc. and Altisource Sohg S.a r.l. (incorporated by reference to ExHiif7 to the Company’s
Form 8-K filed on April 4, 2013)

10.48 First Amendment to Intellectual Property Agreemeatted as of March 29, 2013, by and between Ocwemgédge Servicing,
Inc. and Altisource Solutions S.ar.l. (incorporhby reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’snk&K filed on April 4,
2013)

10.49 Agreement, dated as of April 12, 2013, by and amltigource Solutions S.a r.l., Ocwen Financial famation and Ocwen

Mortgage Servicing, Inc. (incorporated by referetm&xhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed April 18, 2013)

10.50 Amendment No. 1 to Credit Agreement, dated as of a&013, among Altisource Solutions S.a r.L.bagower, Altisource
Portfolio Solutions S.A., Bank of America, N.A., administrative agent and incremental term lenderthe other lenders party
thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.the Company’s Form 8-K filed on May 13, 2013)

10.51 Amendment No. 2 to Credit Agreement, dated as afelider 9, 2013, among Altisource Solutions S.aaslborrower,
Altisource Portfolio Solutions S.A., Bank of Ameaid\.A., as Administrative Agent and the Lendengypthereto
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to tlmrpany’s Form 8-K filed on December 11, 2013)

10.52 Amendment No. 3 to Credit Agreement, dated as afusti1, 2014, among Altisource Solutions S.aad.borrower, Altisource
Portfolio Solutions S.A., Bank of America, N.A., Administrative Agent and incremental term lenderd the other lenders
party thereto (incorporated by reference to ExHibBitl to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on Augus2614)

21.1* Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

23.1* Consent of Independent Registered P#ldizounting Firm (Deloitte & Touche LLP).

31.1* Section 302 Certification of the Chiefdexitive Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13&])

31.2* Section 302 Certification of the Chieh&ncial Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 136a)

32.1* Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and i€hFinancial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of Barbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

101* Pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T, the follogvfinancial information from the Company’s Anniréport on Form 16

for the year ended December 31, 2014 is formatteXBRL interactive data files: (i) Consolidated Bate Sheets at Decem
31, 2014 and December 31, 2013; (ii) ConsolidatatieSents of Operations for each of the yearsarthheeyear period ende
December 31, 2014; (iii) Consolidated StatementEadity for each of the years in the thiyesar period ended December
2014; (iv) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows&xh of the years in the thrgear period ended December 31, 2014
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements; afjd~aancial Statement Schedule.

* Filed herewitr



** Portions of this exhibit have been redactedspant to a request for confidential treatment. Atwe-public information has been filed
separately with the Securities and Exchange Conioniss

t Denotes management contract or compensatonyggamaent
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SCHEDULE Il. VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 ari 201

Additions
Balance at Charged to
Beginning of Charged to Other Accounts Deductions Balance at

(in thousands) Period Expenses Note (a)(b) Note (c)(d) End of Period
Deductions from asset accounts:

Allowance for doubtful accounts:

Year 2014 $ 5631 $ 16,257 % 1,39¢ $ 61z $ 22,67¢
Year 2013 3,274 2,54¢ — 192 5,631
Year 2012 2,047 3,04¢ — 1,82 3,27¢
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets:

Year 2014 $ 3,18¢ $ — 3 — 3 74 $ 3,11¢
Year 2013 2,413 — 77¢€ — 3,18¢
Year 2012 2,20¢ — 204 — 2,41%

(a) Allowance for doubtful accounts primarily indles amounts previously written off which were credlidirectly to this account wh
recovered.

(b)Valuation allowance for deferred tax assetsudeb current year increase to valuation allowaheeged to equity and reclassifications f
other balance sheet accounts.

(c) Amounts written off as uncollectible or transésl to other accounts or utilized.

(d) Reductions to valuation allowances relatedefeded tax assets.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regiisthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduaty authorized.

Date: March 2, 2015

Altisource Portfolio Solutions S.A.

By: /s/ William B. Shepro

William B. Shepro
Name:

Director and Chief Executive Officer
Title:

(Principal Executive Officer)

By: /s/ Michelle D. Esterman
Name: Michelle D. Esterman
Title:  Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#tes indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Timo Vatto
Chairman of the Board of Directors March 2, 2015
Timo Vatto
/s/ William B. Shepro Director and Chief Executive Officer

March 2, 2015

William B. Shepro (Principal Executive Officer)

/s W. Michael Linn
Director March 2, 2015

W. Michael Linn

/s/ Roland Miiller-Ineichen Director March 2, 2015
Roland Miller-Ineichen

/s/ Michelle D. Esterman
Chief Financial Officer March 2, 2015




Michelle D. Esterman
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal AccourgiOfficer)
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LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES

Exhibit 21.1

The following are subsidiaries of Altisource PoliioSolutions S.A. as of December 31, 204dd the jurisdictions in which they

organized.

Name

Jurisdiction of incorporation
or organization

Altisource Holdings S.ar.l.

Altisource Solutions S.ar.l.

Altisource Asia Holdings Ltd. |
Altisource Business Solutions Private Limited
Altisource Portfolio Solutions, Inc.
Altisource Fulfillment Operations, Inc.
REALHome Services and Solutions, Inc.
Altisource Solutions, Inc.

Altisource US Data, Inc.

Springhouse, LLC

Western Progressive — Nevada, Inc.
Premium Title Services, Inc.

Premium Title Agency, Inc.

Western Progressive — Arizona, Inc.
Premium Title of California, Inc.

PTS — Texas Title, Inc.

Nationwide Credit, Inc.

Altisource Online Auction, Inc.

Power Default Services, Inc.

Beltline Road Insurance Agency, Inc.
Altisource Asset Acquisition, Inc.
Owners Realty, Inc.

Hubzu USA, Inc.

Hubzu Notes, LLC

noteXchange, LLC

Portfolio Management Outsourcing Solutions, LLC
Western Progressive Trustee, LLC
Altisource Outsourcing Solutions S.R.L.
Altisource Holdings, LLC

Altisource Single Family, Inc.

Altisource Solutions B.V.

Altisource Business Solutions, Inc.

The Mortgage Partnership of America, L.L.C.
Equator, LLC

Altisource Real Estate Web Portal S.ar.l.
Altisource Consumer Analytics S.ar.l.
Altisource Mortgage Solutions S.ar.l.
Altisource Spend Management S.ar.l.
Altisource Business Solutions S.ar.l.
Altisource Technology Solutions S.ar.l.
Altisource Collaborative S.ar.l.
Altisource Document Solutions S.a r.l.

Luxembourg
Luxembourg
Mauritius
India
Delaware
Delaware
Florida
Delaware
Delaware
Missouri
Delaware
Florida
Delaware
Delaware
California
Delaware
Georgia
Delaware
Delaware
Texas
Delaware
California
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Florida
Delaware
Uruguay
Delaware
Delaware
Netherlands
Philippines
Missouri
California
Luxembourg
Luxembourg
Luxembourg
Luxembourg
Luxembourg
Luxembourg
Luxembourg
Luxembourg






Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRedion Statement No. 333-161175 on Form8 8f our reports dated March 2, 2C
relating to the consolidated financial statememd financial statement schedule of Altisource RtidgfSolutions S.A. and subsidiaries (
“Company”) hich report expresses an unqualified opinion an dbnsolidated financial statements and includesxghanatory paragra
related to the significant transactions with Ocviénancial Corporation (“Ocwen”ja related party and an emphasis of a matter rela

Ocwen uncertainty), and the effectiveness of then@amy’s internal control over financial reporting appegrin this Annual Report on Fo
10-K of the Company for the year ended Decembe314 .

/s/ Deloitte and Touche LLP

Atlanta, Georgia
March 2, 2015



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUA NT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, William B. Shepro, hereby certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form lfaikthe period ending December 31, 2@fAltisource Portfolio Solutions S./

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtéde a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, nt#adisg with respect to t
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,aher financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registran$’ other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesigl procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and proceduré® tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidghsubsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pnegzh

(b) designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be designed uni
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargardang the reliability of financial reporting arnlde preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registsagisclosure controls and procedures and presémtbds report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls armteutures, as of the end of the period covered tsyréport based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in thastegnt’s internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrarfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbm® that has materially affected, o
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrant’ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdih on our most recent evaluation of internal @rdver financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaemmmittee of the registrarstboard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aisa@ntifrole in the registrargt’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date:March 2, 2015 By: /s/ William B. Shepro
William B. Shepro
Director and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION BY THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUA NT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Michelle D. Esterman, hereby certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form lfaikthe period ending December 31, 2@fAltisource Portfolio Solutions S./

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtéde a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, nt#adisg with respect to t
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,aher financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registran$’ other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesigl procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢)) and internal control over financial repagtias defined in Exchange /
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and proceduré® tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidghsubsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pnegzh

(b) designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be designed uni
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargardang the reliability of financial reporting arnlde preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registsagisclosure controls and procedures and presémtbds report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls armteutures, as of the end of the period covered tsyréport based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in thastegnt’s internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrarfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbm® that has materially affected, o
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrant’ other certifying officer and | have disclosedséxh on our most recent evaluation of internal @braver financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaemmmittee of the registrarstboard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aisa@ntifrole in the registrargt’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date:March 2, 2015 By: /sl Michelle D. Esterman
Michelle D. Esterman
Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer)




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION UNDER SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXL EY ACT OF 2002
(UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 18, CHAPTER 63, SECTION 1350)
ACCOMPANYING ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K OF
ALTISOURCE PORTFOLIO SOLUTIONS S.A. FOR THE YEAR EN DED
DECEMBER 31, 2014

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 104KAdtisource Portfolio Solutions S.A. (the “Compdhyor the year ende®ecember 3:
2014 , as filed with the Securities and Exchangm@gsion on the date hereof (the “ReporWjilliam B. Shepro, as Chief Executive Offii
of the Company, and Michelle D. Esterman, as Chimfancial Officer of the Company, each hereby fiegj pursuant to 18 U.S.
Section 1350, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the S#earExchange Act of 1934; a

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations of

Company.
By:  /s/ William B. Shepro By: /s/ Michelle D. Esterman
William B. Shepro Michelle D. Esterman
Director and Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Executive Officer) (Principal Financial Officer and

Principal Accounting Officer)
March 2, 2015 March 2, 2015



